02/03/2021 - Education (9:00 AM - 11:30 AM)
Committee Packet

2021 Regular Session
02/03/2021 8:11 AM

Agenda Order

Tab 1 |SB 48 by Diaz (CO-INTRODUCERS) Brandes, Garcia, Baxley, Perry; Educational Scholarship Programs

876706 A S ED, Berman Delete L.275: 02/02 08:42 AM

453090 A S ED, Diaz Delete L.2967 - 2983: 02/02 07:37 AM

854600 A S ED, Berman Delete L.4543 - 4560. 02/02 ©8:43 AM

904122 A S L ED, Jones Delete L.1182 - 1184: 02/02 04:52 PM

837324 A S L ED, Jones Delete L.1204 - 1219: 02/03 07:36 AM

380768 A S L ED, IJones Delete L.3958 - 3960: 02/03 07:38 AM

782544 A S L ED, IJones Delete L.339 - 341: 02/03 07:38 AM

Tab 2 |SB 146 by Brandes; (Compare to H 00611) Civic Education

Tab 3 SB 282 by Baxley (CO-INTRODUCERS) Albritton; (Identical to H 00529) Moments of Silence in Public
Schools

Tab 4 |SB 200 by Berman; Student Retention

794706 D S ED, Berman Delete everything after ©02/02 08:41 AM

Page 1 of 1




2021 Regular Session The Florida Senate

COMMITTEE MEETING EXPANDED AGENDA

EDUCATION
Senator Gruters, Chair
Senator Jones, Vice Chair

MEETING DATE: Wednesday, February 3, 2021
TIME: 9:00—11:30 a.m.
PLACE: Pat Thomas Committee Room, 412 Knott Building

MEMBERS: Senator Gruters, Chair; Senator Jones, Vice Chair; Senators Berman, Bradley, Broxson, Diaz,
Hutson, Passidomo, Polsky, and Thurston

BILL DESCRIPTION and
TAB BILL NO. and INTRODUCER SENATE COMMITTEE ACTIONS COMMITTEE ACTION

PUBLIC TESTIMONY WILL BE RECEIVED FROM ROOM A3 AT THE DONALD L.
TUCKER CIVIC CENTER, 505 W. PENSACOLA STREET, TALLAHASEE, FL 32301

1 SB 48 Educational Scholarship Programs; Requiring the
Diaz Auditor General to conduct certain audits at least

every 3 years instead of annually; adding certain
students to those whom district school boards must
provide preferential treatment in the controlled open
enroliment process; establishing the McKay-Gardiner
Scholarship Program; prohibiting a student from
participating in the program under certain
circumstances; providing that program funding for
specified children constitutes their full funding under
part V of ch. 1002; providing commissioner authority
and obligations relating to suspending or revoking
program participation, etc.

ED 02/03/2021

AED
AP
2 SB 146 Civic Education; Requiring the Commissioner of
Brandes Education to develop minimum criteria for a

nonpartisan civic literacy practicum for high school
students, beginning with a specified school year;
authorizing students to apply the hours they devote to
practicum activities to certain community service
requirements; requiring school districts accept
nonpartisan civic literacy practicum activities and
hours in requirements for certain awards; requiring
the State Board of Education to designate certain
high schools as Freedom Schools, etc.

ED 02/03/2021
AP

S-036 (10/2008)
01252021.1500 Page 1 of 2



COMMITTEE MEETING EXPANDED AGENDA
Education
Wednesday, February 3, 2021, 9:00—11:30 a.m.

BILL DESCRIPTION and

TAB BILL NO. and INTRODUCER SENATE COMMITTEE ACTIONS COMMITTEE ACTION
3 SB 282 Moments of Silence in Public Schools; Providing
Baxley legislative findings; requiring that public school

principals require certain teachers to set aside time
for a moment of silence at the beginning of each
school day; prohibiting teachers from making
suggestions as to the nature of any reflection that a
student may engage in during the moment of silence;
deleting a provision authorizing district school boards
to provide a brief period of silent prayer or meditation;
requiring certain teachers to encourage parents or
guardians to discuss the moment of silence with their
children and to make suggestions as to the best use
of this time, etc.

ED 02/03/2021

JuU
RC
4 SB 200 Student Retention; Authorizing a parent to request
Berman that his or her student be retained in a grade level for

a specified school year; requiring school district
superintendents to grant such requests if they are
timely received; requiring school districts to
administer a certain assessment to specified
students; clarifying that specified students may qualify
for midyear promotion; authorizing a parent to request
such promotion or to request that his or her student
continue to be retained, etc.

ED 02/03/2021
AED
AP

Other Related Meeting Documents

S-036 (10/2008)
01252021.1500 Page 2 of 2



The Florida Senate

BILL ANALYSIS AND FISCAL IMPACT STATEMENT

(This document is based on the provisions contained in the legislation as of the latest date listed below.)

Prepared By: The Professional Staff of the Committee on Education

BILL:

SB 48

INTRODUCER: Senator Diaz and others

SUBJECT: Educational Scholarship Programs
DATE: February 2, 2021 REVISED:
ANALYST STAFF DIRECTOR REFERENCE ACTION
1. Sagues Bouck ED Pre-meeting
2. AED
3. AP
Summary:

SB 48 consolidates student scholarship programs in order to reduce confusion in the eligibility
for and use of awards, and provide parents with more flexibility to meet the educational needs of
their child. The bill merges the John M. McKay Scholarship Program for Students with
Disabilities (McKay program) with the Gardiner Scholarship Program (Gardiner program) and
creates a new scholarship program, the McKay-Gardiner Scholarship Program (McKay-Gardiner
program). The bill incorporates the Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program (FTC program) and
Hope Scholarship Program (HSP) into the Family Empowerment Scholarship Program (FES
program). In addition, the bill:

Establishes both scholarship programs as education savings accounts authorizing parents to
choose from both public and private options to customize the educational experience to best
meet the needs of their child.

Provides that eligible families may receive an award whether their students are currently
attending a public or private school, or a home education program.

Specifies that prior year scholarship recipients are eligible for a scholarship under the
appropriate program.

Increases the scholarship award to 97.5 percent of the per-student-funding calculation and
authorizes up to 2.5 percent as allowable for administrative costs incurred by nonprofit
scholarship funding organizations (SFOs).

Combines specified eligibility requirements from the McKay and Gardiner scholarship
programs to establish the McKay-Gardiner program student eligibility requirements and
award priorities.

Modifies FES program student eligibility requirements and award priorities to incorporate
FTC program and HSP provisions.

Establishes the number of McKay-Gardiner program awards at 50,000 full-time equivalent
(FTE) students and an annual scholarship growth rate of seven percent.



BILL: SB 48 Page 2

e Maintains the current FES program annual growth rate of one percent of the public school
population, and includes prior year FTC program and HSP recipients outside of the growth
cap.

e Establishes common accountability metrics across scholarship programs, maintaining
accountability metrics established through the McKay, Gardiner, FTC, and FES programs,
and the HSP.

e Requires the Auditor General to conduct an operational audit on nonprofit SFOs at least once
every three years.

e Specifies that a private virtual school with at least one administrative office located in Florida
meets the physical location requirement for private schools participating in the state school
choice scholarship program.

The impact on state funding is indeterminate. The state funding will depend on an official
estimate of student FTE participating in the scholarship programs for the 2021-2022 school year,
the amount of revenue transferred into the Florida Education Finance Program (FEFP), and the
amount of state funds allocated to the FEFP during the appropriation process. See Section V.

The bill takes effect on July 1, 2021.
Present Situation:

The present situation for the relevant portions of the bill is discussed under the Effect of
Proposed Changes of this bill analysis.

Effect of Proposed Changes:
Education Choice

Across the United States, an evolving school choice landscape reflects changes in the
accessibility and desirability of an array of education options, including traditional and
nontraditional public schools, private schools, and homeschooling.! Many states are expanding
school choice options. All 50 states and the District of Columbia provide parents the ability to
send their child to a school outside of their zoned school.? Twenty-seven states and the District
of Columbia have enacted policies designed to broaden access to a private education.® The three
primary policies states have adopted that expand private education choices include:*

e School vouchers;

e Scholarship tax credits; and

! National Center for Education Statistics, School Choice in the United States 2019 (2019), available at
https://nces.ed.gov/pubs2019/2019106.pdf.

2 National Conference of State Legislatures, Interactive Guide to School Choice Laws
https://www.ncsl.org/research/education/interactive-guide-to-school-choice.aspx (last visited Jan. 28, 2021).

3 National Conference of State Legislatures, Private School Choice https://www.ncsl.org/research/education/private-school-
choice635174504.aspx (last visited Jan. 28, 2021).

4 School vouchers are state-funded scholarships that pay for students to attend private school rather than public school.
Scholarship tax credits allow individuals and corporations to allocate a portion of their owed state taxes to private nonprofit
scholarship organizations that issue public and private school scholarships to K-12 students. Education Savings Accounts are
state-funded grants deposited into special savings accounts from which parents can withdraw funds for certain educational
expenses. Id.



BILL: SB 48 Page 3

e Education savings accounts.

Education Choice in Florida

Approximately 48 percent of Florida’s Pre-Kindergarten through grade 12 students participate in
education choice programs in Florida.® Students in all programs must meet school attendance
requirements through:®

e Enrolling in a public school;

e Enrolling in a private school;’

e Participating in a home education program directed by his or her parent;® or

e Enrolling in a private tutoring program.®

To help students take advantage of educational choice options, Florida offers multiple student
scholarship programs for students who meet the eligibility requirements. Of these:
e Two scholarship programs serve students with disabilities:
o The John M. McKay Scholarship for Students with Disabilities Program (McKay
program),® a school voucher program; and
o The Gardiner Scholarship Program (Gardiner program),! an education savings account
program.
e Two scholarship programs serve students from low-income families:
o The Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program (FTC program),? a tax-credit scholarship
program; and
o The Family Empowerment Scholarship Program (FES program), a school voucher
program.

Florida also offers a second tax-credit scholarship, the Hope Scholarship Program (HSP), serving
students who have reported an incident of battery, harassment, hazing, bullying or other
encounter as defined in law.*

5 Step Up For Students, Helping public education fulfill the promise of equal opportunity, Presentation to the Committee on
Education, The Florida Senate (Jan. 12, 2021), available at
https://www.flsenate.gov/Committees/Show/ED/MeetingPacket/4961/8839 MeetingPacket 4961.pdf.

6 Section 1003.01(13), F.S.

7 A private school is defined as an individual, association, co-partnership, or corporation, or department, division, or section
of such organizations, that designates itself as an educational center that includes kindergarten or a higher grade and is below
college level. A private school may be a parochial, religious, denominational, for-profit, or nonprofit school. A home
education program is not considered a private school. Section 1002.01(2), F.S.

8 A home education program is defined as the sequentially progressive instruction of a student directed by his or her parent in
order to satisfy attendance requirements. Section 1002.01(1), F.S.

9 Section 1002.43, F.S.

10 Section 1002.39, F.S., and Rule 6A-6.0970, F.A.C.

11 Section 1002.385, F.S., and Rule 6A-6.0961, F.A.C.

12 Section 1002.395, F.S., and Rule 6A-6.0960, F.A.C.

13 Section 1002.395(8)(a), F.S.

14 Section 1002.40, F.S., and Rule 6A-60951, F.A.C.




BILL: SB 48 Page 4

Selected Scholarship Research

In a 2019 study, the Urban Institute found that students who participated in the FTC program for
four or more years were up to 46 percent more likely to attend college than their public-school
peers.t®

A 2020 study by the National Bureau of Economic Research found that as the FTC program
expanded, public schools most impacted by the competition had higher test scores, fewer
suspensions, and reduced absenteeism.

The Office of Program Policy Analysis and Government Accountability reported in 2010 that the
state saved $36.2 million, which was $1.44 for every $1 lost in tax credits in fiscal year 2008-
2009.Y

Additional studies have found that students participating in the FTC program are typically from
the lowest performing schools, yet students achieve the same test score gains in reading and math
as students of all income levels nationally.'®

Scholarships for Students with Disabilities

Present Situation
The John M. McKay Scholarship for Students with Disabilities Program

The McKay program was established in 1999 and provides public school students with a defined
disability® and an Individual Education Plan (IEP)?° or a 504 accommodation plan issued under

15 Urban Institute, The Effects of Statewide Private School Choice on College Enroliment and Graduation (2017), available
at https://www.urban.org/research/publication/effects-statewide-private-school-choice-college-enroliment-and-graduation.
Step Up For Students, Helping public education fulfill the promise of equal opportunity, Presentation to the Committee on
Education, The Florida Senate (January 12, 2021), available at
https://www.flsenate.gov/Committees/Show/ED/MeetingPacket/4961/8839 MeetingPacket 4961.pdf.

16 NBER Working Papers Series, Effects of Scaling Up Private School Choice Programs on Public School Students (2020),
available at https://www.nber.org/system/files/working_papers/w26758/w26758.pdf. Supra note 15 Step Up For Students.
1" While the Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program reduces the amount of tax revenues received by the state, it produces a
net fiscal benefit. This occurs because education spending for students receiving scholarships is reduced by more than the
amount of revenue lost. Office of Program Policy Analysis and Government Accountability, Florida Tax Credit Scholarship
Program Fiscal Year 2008-2009 Fiscal Impact (2010), available at https://32n7ya2099cc21471x4e0my6-wpengine.netdna-
ssl.com/wp-content/uploads/2015/09/2010-oppaga-research-memo.pdf. Supra note 15 Step Up For Students.

18 Cassandra M.D. Hart, University of California Davis, School of Education, Selection in Means-tested School Voucher
Program (2011), available at https://32n7ya20g9cc2147Ix4e0my6-wpengine.netdna-ssl.com/wp-
content/uploads/2015/09/selection-in-means-tested-school-voucher-programs-2012.pdf.

19 Students with disabilities include K-12 students who are documented as having an intellectual disability; a speech
impairment; a language impairment; a hearing impairment, including deafness; a visual impairment, including blindness; a
dual sensory impairment; an orthopedic impairment; another health impairment; an emotional or behavioral disability; a
specific learning disability, including, but not limited to, dyslexia, dyscalculia, or developmental aphasia; a traumatic brain
injury; a developmental delay; or autism spectrum disorder. Section 1002.39(1), F.S.

20 All students who are between the ages of three to 21 and have a disability have the right to a free, appropriate public
education. Section 1003.5716, F.S. The IEP is the primary vehicle for communicating the school district’s commitment to
addressing the unique educational needs of a student with a disability. Florida Department of Education, Developing Quality
Individual Education Plans (2015), available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/7690/urlt/0070122-qualityieps.pdf,
ato9.




BILL: SB 48 Page 5

s. 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 19732 the option to attend a different public school or private
school.??

A student is not eligible for an award under the McKay program if the student is:?3

e Enrolled in a Department of Juvenile Justice (DJJ) program or the Florida School for the
Deaf and Blind,;

e Participating in a home education or private tutoring program, or a virtual school that
receives state funding unless the participation is limited to no more than two courses per
year;

e Not having regular or direct contact with teachers;

e Issued a temporary 504 accommodation plan valid for 6 months or less; or

e Receiving any other educational scholarship pursuant to law.

The term of the scholarship continues until the student returns to public school, graduates from
high school, or reaches 22 years of age. Students who are between the ages of 17 and 22 may
participate in a transition-to-work program offered through their private school. The transition-
to-work program includes academic instruction, work skills training, and a volunteer or paid
work experience.?*

School districts are required to comply with multiple obligations, including:?®

e Notifying parents of eligible students of the scholarship.

e Maintaining scholarship information on the district website.

e Allowing the parent to enroll their child in a public school other than the one assigned and
provide transportation.

e Providing IEP evaluation and student assessment services.

Private schools participating in the scholarship program must comply with laws governing
private schools in general, and specific requirements in each scholarship program.?

The McKay program is funded through the Florida Education Finance Program (FEFP), and
requires the student to be enrolled and reported for funding by a Florida school district the year
prior to applying for a scholarship. During the 2019-2020 school year, $221.5 million in
scholarship payments were distributed to 1,547 private schools serving 30,185 students. The

2L U.S. Department of Labor, Section 504, Rehabilitation Act of 1973 available at
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/oasam/centers-offices/civil-rights-center/statutes/section-504-rehabilitation-act-0f-1973 (last
visited Jan. 28, 2021). The Section 504 plan identifies the services and accommodations necessary for a student to access
instruction and may include accommaodations in the classroom and for local and state assessments. Florida Department of
Education, Accommodations, Assisting Students with Disabilities (2018), available at
http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/7567/urlt/0070069-accomm-educator.pdf. at 3.

22 Section 1002.39(1), F.S.

23 Section 1002.39(3), F.S.

24 Section 1002.39(9), F.S.

%5 Section 1002.39(5), F.S.

26 Section 1002.421(1), F.S.




BILL: SB 48 Page 6

average scholarship for a student with an IEP was $8,473. The average scholarship for a student
with a 504 accommodation plan was $4,676.%’

The Gardiner Scholarship Program

The Gardiner program was established in 2014 to provide eligible students with a disability®® a

scholarship that can be used to meet the individual educational needs of the student. In order to

be eligible for receipt of a scholarship, a student with a defined disability must be a Florida

resident, at least three years of age before September 1 or eligible to enroll in kindergarten

through grade 12, and:

e Have an IEP written in accordance the rules of the State Board of Education (SBE)? or the
rules of another state; or

e Have the diagnosis of a specified disability from a physician or psychologist who holds an
active license.*

Students are not eligible while enrolled in a public school or DJJ program, or receiving any other
educational scholarship specified in law.3!

The scholarship is directly administered by state-approved nonprofit scholarship funding
organizations (SFOs).3? Moneys through scholarships can be used to meet the education needs of
students including, but not limited to:*®

e Instructional materials;

e Curriculum;

e Specialized services, programs, and courses;>*

e Tuition and fees;*®

27 Florida Department of Education, Office of Independent Education and Parental Choice, McKay Scholarship Program
(2020), available at https://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5606/urlt/McKay-Aug.pdf.

28 Disability means, for a 3- or 4-year-old child or for a student in kindergarten to grade 12, autism spectrum disorder, as
defined in the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders, Fifth Edition, published by the American Psychiatric
Association; cerebral palsy; Down syndrome; an intellectual disability; Phelan-McDermid syndrome; Prader-Willi syndrome;
spina bifida; being a high-risk child; muscular dystrophy; Williams syndrome; rare diseases which affect patient populations
of fewer than 200,000 individuals in the United States, as defined by the National Organization for Rare Disorders;
anaphylaxis; deaf; visually impaired; traumatic brain injured; hospital or homebound; or identification as dual sensory
impaired. The term “hospital or homebound” includes a student who has a medically diagnosed physical or psychiatric
condition or illness and who is confined to the home or hospital for more than 6 months. Section 1002.385(2), F.S.

2 Rule 6A-6.0961, F.A.C. See also Rules 6A-6.03028, 6A-6.030281, 6A-6.03029, and 6A-6.03311, F.A.C.

%0 Florida Department of Education, Office of Independent Education and Parental Choice, Gardiner Scholarship Program
(2020), available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5606/urlt/Gardiner.pdf. See s. 1002.385(3), F.S.

31 Section 1002.385(4), F.S.

32 See s. 1002.385(12), F.S.

33 Section 1002.385(5), F.S.

34 1d. Specialized services may include applied behavior analysis, services provided by speech-language pathologists,
occupational therapy services, services provided by physical therapists, and services provided by listening and spoken
language specialists. Specialized programs and courses include summer and after-school education programs and music and
art therapy.

3 Tuition or fees may include full-time or part-time enrollment in a home education program, an eligible private school, an
eligible postsecondary educational institution or a program offered by the postsecondary institution, a private tutoring
program, a virtual program, part-time tutoring, assessments, specialized programs including Voluntary Prekindergarten
Education programs. Section 1002.385(5), F.S.




BILL: SB 48 Page 7

e Transition services provided by job coaches;* and
e Contributions to a college prepaid account.

The term of the scholarship continues until one of the following occurs:®’

e The parent does not renew scholarship eligibility;

e The nonprofit SFO determines that the student is ineligible;

e The Commissioner of Education (commissioner) suspends or revokes scholarship
participation or use of funds;

e The student’s parent fails to comply with parent and student responsibilities for scholarship
participation;3®

e The student enrolls in a public school; or

e The student graduates from high school or attains 22 years of age.

Any remaining funds revert to the state after denial or revocation of scholarship eligibility by the
commissioner for fraud or abuse, or after three consecutive fiscal years in which an account has
been inactive or three consecutive years after high school completion or graduation during which
the student is not enrolled in an eligible postsecondary educational institution or a program
offered by the institution.

Parents must meet a number of requirements for Gardiner program participation, which include
annually submitting a notarized, sworn compliance statement affirming:*°

e The student is enrolled in a program meeting attendance requirements.

e Funds are used as authorized.

e The parent is responsible for the child’s education by meeting specified requirements.

e The student remains in good standing with the provider or school.

Funding is based on the student’s matrix level of services. The funding for a student without a
matrix of services is based on the matrix that assigns the student to support Level 111 of services.
If the parent chooses to request and receive a matrix of services* from the school district, when
the school district completes the matrix, the amount of the payment is adjusted. The amount of
the scholarship award is 90 percent of the calculated amount.*? The full amount of the award is
deposited in the student’s account once the scholarship has been verified and approved. The
nonprofit SFO may use up to three percent of the total amount of all Gardiner program
scholarships awarded for administrative expenses. The funds used for administrative expenses

3 “Transition services” means a coordinated set of activities for a student, designed within an outcome-oriented process, that
promote movement from school to post-school activities, including postsecondary education; vocational training; integrated
employment; supported employment; continuing and adult education; adult services; independent living, or community
participation. Section 413.20(26), F.S.

37 Section 1002.385(6), F.S.

38 Section 1002.385(11), F.S.

¥ 1d.

40 Section 1002.385(11), F.S.

41 The Commissioner of Education must specify a matrix of services and intensity levels to be used by districts in the
determination of the two weighted cost factors for exceptional students with the highest levels of need. Section 1011.62(1)(c).
See also Rule 6A-6.0961, F.A.C.

42 Section 1002.385(13), F.S.



BILL: SB 48 Page 8

must originate from eligible tax credit contributions authorized under the FTC program and
HSp.43

The Gardiner program has experienced significant growth over the seven years since it was
established. For the 2014-2015 school year, scholarships totaling $15 million were awarded to
1,559 students.** For the 2020-2021 school year, $184.1 million has been awarded to 17,508
students4ghrough scholarships.* The average scholarship amount is approximately $10,464 per
student.

Effect of Proposed Changes

The bill repeals s. 1002.385, F.S., relating to the Gardiner Scholarship Program and s. 1002.39,
F.S., relating to the John M. McKay Scholarships for Students with Disabilities Program, and
creates a new education savings account scholarship program: s. 1002.381, F.S., relating to the
McKay-Gardiner Scholarship Program (McKay-Gardiner).

McKay-Gardiner Scholarship Program

The bill merges the McKay and the Gardiner scholarship programs into a single scholarship
program, the McKay-Gardiner Scholarship Program, with a common set of eligibility
requirements and scholarship award-funding structure. In order to be eligible for receipt of a
scholarship, a student must be a resident of this state, three or four years of age or eligible to
enroll in kindergarten through grade 12, have a disability as specified in law; and have:

e An IEP# written in accordance the rules of the SBE*® or the rules of another state;

e A diagnosis of a defined disability from a physician or psychologist who holds an active

license; or
e A 504 accommodation plan issued under s. 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973.4°

Similar to the Gardiner program,* the bill specifies that a student is not eligible for an award
under the McKay-Gardiner program if he or she is enrolled in a public school or DJJ program,
issued a temporary 504 accommaodation plan, does not have regular or direct contact with
teachers unless enrolled in a transition-to-work program, or is receiving any other educational
scholarship pursuant to law.

The bill specifies that eligible students are awarded scholarships using the following priority
order:

e A student who received a McKay or Gardiner program scholarship in the prior year;
e A student retained on the previous school year’s wait list; and
e Other eligible students.

43 Section 1002.395(6)(j), F.S.

# Florida Department of Education, Office of Independent Education and Parental Choice, Gardiner Scholarship Program
(2020), available at https://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5606/urlt/Gardiner.pdf.

%5 1d. Data for 2020-2021 is current as of Nov. 16, 2020.

4 1d.

47 Supra note 20.

8 Rule 6A-6.0961, F.A.C. See also Rules 6A-6.03028, 6A-6.030281, 6A-6.03029, and 6A-6.03311, F.A.C.

49 Supra note 21.

50 See Section 1002.385(4), F.S.




BILL: SB 48 Page 9

The bill maintains that the scholarship is directly administered by state-approved nonprofit
SFOs. Similar to the Gardiner program®?, scholarship funds can be used to meet the education
needs of students, which include all authorized uses under the Gardiner program, but adds:
Instructional materials including digital devices and internet access.

Curriculum including teacher’s manuals.

Specialized services, programs, and courses, including classes related to art, music or theater.
Tuition and fees, including fees for summer and after-school programs.

Transition services provided by private schools or job coaches.

e Transportation not to exceed $750 per year.

The term of the scholarship under the bill remains similar to the conditions for termination under
the Gardiner program.>? Private schools participating the scholarship program must continue to
comply with current law,> and the bill allows for a private school to discount tuition if the
private school deems it necessary. School districts must also continue to notify parents of eligible
students about the scholarship and provide IEP evaluation and assessment services.

The bill requires the DOE to distribute scholarship funds on a quarterly basis, and adds
requirements from the FES program and the FTC program to maintain and publish a list of
nationally norm-referenced tests identified for purposes of satisfying assessment requirements,
verify nonprofit SFO eligibility, and maintain scholarship information on the DOE website.
Additionally, the bill maintains DOE obligations from the Gardiner program, including:

e Maintaining a list of approved providers.

Requiring nonprofit SFOs to verify eligible educational expenses.

Requiring quarterly reports of nonprofit SFOs.

Cross-checking student participation and avoid duplicate payments to nonprofit SFOs.
Investigating written complaints by a parent, student, private school, public school, school
district, SFO, provider, or other party.

The bill requires that parents must meet a number of requirements similar to the Gardiner
program,® including to annually submit a sworn compliance statement affirming:

e The student is enrolled in a program meeting attendance requirements.

e Funds are used as authorized.

e The parent is responsible for the child’s education by meeting specified requirements.
e The student remains in good standing with the provider or school.

Under the bill, nonprofit SFOs participating in the McKay-Gardiner program may use up to 2.5
percent of the student generated funding for administrative purposes and must comply with a
number of requirements to administer the program, including:
e Requirements from the FTC program, which include:

o Complying with federal antidiscrimination provisions.>®

51 See Section 1002.385(5), F.S.
52 See Section 1002.385(6), F.S.
%3 Section 1002.421, F.S.

54 See Section 1002.385(11), F.S.
%5 Section 1002.395(4), F.S.
%642 U.S.C. s. 2000d.



BILL: SB 48 Page 10

o Complying with background check requirements.
o Prohibiting an owner or operator from participating in the program or restricting
scholarships.
o Providing an annual financial audit conducted by an independent certified public
accountant to the Auditor General.
o Monitoring compliance of private schools.
o Notifying the DOE of any violations of law.
e Requirements from the Gardiner program,®” which include:
Maintaining separate accounts for students.
Receiving applications, determining eligibility, and awarding scholarships.
Verifying qualifying educational expenditures.
Returning program funds as required.
Notifying parents of IEP evaluations and reevaluations.
Submitting timely reports to the DOE and Auditor General.

O O O O O O

The bill also retains the nonprofit SFO application process from the FTC program.>®

The bill establishes the McKay-Gardiner program for up to 50,000 full-time equivalent (FTE)
students with a seven percent annual scholarship growth rate. The funding is generated through
the FEFP per student calculation based on the grade level, district school to which the student
would have been assigned, and the level of services generated by the students. The scholarship
award is 97.5 percent of the calculated amount. However, under the McKay-Gardiner program
the funds are disbursed quarterly to the parent, rather than under the Gardiner program where all
funds are distributed at the beginning of the school year or upon program enrollment.

Similar to the Gardiner program, any remaining funds revert to the state after denial or
revocation of scholarship eligibility by the commissioner for fraud or abuse, or after two
consecutive fiscal years in which an account has been inactive or three consecutive years after
high school completion or graduation during which the student is not enrolled in an eligible
postsecondary educational institution or a program offered by the institution.

Similar to public school districts, the bill requires the Auditor General is required to conduct an
operational audit on an approved nonprofit SFO at least once every three years,* rather than
annually under the Gardiner program.

57 Section 1002.385(12), F.S.

%8 See Section 1002.395(15), F.S.

%9 Since 2015, the Auditor General has conducted annual operational audits of the accounts and records of eligible nonprofit
scholarship-funding organizations. As recent audits have not disclosed significant control deficiencies or noncompliance, the
Legislature should consider amending ss. 11.45(2)(1), 1002.385(14)(a), and 1002.40(12)(a), F.S., to require the Auditor
General to conduct operational audits at least once every 3 years of the accounts and records of eligible nonprofit scholarship-
funding organizations. Auditor General, Auditor General Annual Report 2020 November 1, 2019, Through October 31, 2020
(2020) available at https://flauditor.gov/pages/pdf files/annual%20report%202020.pdf at 7.. Section 11.45(2)(f), F.S.




BILL: SB 48 Page 11

Scholarship Programs for Lower-Income Families

Present Situation
Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program

The FTC program was established in 2001°° to authorize private, voluntary contributions from
corporate donors to eligible SFOs that award scholarships to eligible children from low-income
families.® State law requires the nonprofit SFOs to use the contributions received to provide
scholarships to eligible students for the cost of private school tuition or transportation to a public
school that is different from the school to which the student was assigned.

To be eligible for an award under the FTC program, a student must meet at least one of the

following criteria:

e The student is on the direct certification list®? or the student’s household income level does
not exceed 260 percent of the federal poverty level; or

e The student is currently placed, or during the previous state fiscal year was placed, in foster
care or in out-of-home care as defined in law.

A student who initially receives a scholarship remains eligible to participate until the student
graduates from high school or attains the age of 21 years, whichever occurs first, regardless of
the student’s household income level. A sibling of a student who is participating in the
scholarship program is eligible for a scholarship if the student resides in the same household as
the sibling.®®

A student is not eligible for a scholarship while he or she is enrolled in a public school or DJJ
program; receiving another state educational scholarship pursuant to Florida law; enrolled in a
home education or private tutoring program, or enrolled in the Florida School for the Deaf and
the Blind. The student is also limited to participating in no more than two state-funded virtual
courses per year.%

Nonprofit SFOs must comply with requirements relating to administration of the program, which

include complying with federal antidiscrimination laws, background checks, and private school

choice. In addition, nonprofit SFOs must:®°

e Give first priority to eligible students who received an FTC program scholarship during the
previous school year; and must also prioritize new applicants whose household income levels

80 Section 5, ch. 2001-225, L.O.F.

51 The program allows a corporation to receive a dollar-for-dollar tax credit up to 100% of its state income tax liability. The
program also includes credits against the insurance premium tax for contributions to eligible nonprofit SFOs, credits against
severance taxes on oil and gas production, self-accrued sales tax liabilities of direct pay permit holders, and alcoholic
beverage taxes on beer, wine, and spirits. The maximum amount the state may award is $873 million in credits for the 2020-
21 fiscal year. Department of Education, Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program September 2020 Quarterly Report (2020),
available at: http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/7558/urlt/FTC-Sept-2020-Q-Report.pdf.

%2 Direct certification list means the certified list of children who qualify for the food assistance program, the Temporary
Assistance to Needy Families Program, or the Food Distribution Program on Indian Reservations provided to the Department
of Education by the Department of Children and Families. Section 1002.395(2)(c), F.S.

83 Section 1002.395(3), F.S.

64 Section 1002.395(4), F.S.

8 Section 1002.395(6), F.S.




BILL: SB 48 Page 12

do not exceed 185 percent of the federal poverty level or who are in foster care or out-of-
home care.

e Provide a scholarship to an eligible student on a first-come, first-served basis unless the
student qualifies for priority established in law.

e Apply all funds available under the FTC program and the HSP for renewal scholarship
awards before awarding any initial scholarships. The bill also requires each eligible nonprofit
SFO to refer any student eligible for an FTC program scholarship who did not receive a
renewal or initial scholarship based solely on the lack of available funds through the FTC
program or HSP to another eligible nonprofit SFO that may have funds available.

During the 2019-20 school year, FTC program scholarships in the amount of $670 million were
awarded to a total of 111,219 students enrolled in 1,870 participating Florida private schools.
The maximum scholarship amount per student in the 2019-2020 school year was $7,408.5¢ As of
January 2021, 100,008 scholarships were awarded to students for the 2020-2021 school year.%’

Family Empowerment Scholarship Program

The FES program was established in 2019% to provide educational options to eligible children of
families with limited financial resources. A student who receives a scholarship remains eligible
to participate until the student graduates from high school or attains the age of 21 years,
whichever occurs first, regardless of the student’s household income level.®° Similar to the
McKay program,’® the FES program is funded through the FEFP.

To be eligible for an award under the FES program, a student must meet the following criteria:’

e The student is:

o On the direct certification list pursuant to law or the student’s household income level
does not exceed 300 percent of the federal poverty level; or

o Currently placed, or during the previous fiscal year was placed, in foster care or in out-of-
home care as defined in law.

e The student is eligible to enroll in kindergarten or has spent the prior school year in
attendance at a Florida public school. However, a dependent child of a member of the United
States Armed Forces who transfers to a school in this state from out of state or from a foreign
country due to a parent’s permanent change of station orders or a foster child is exempt from
the prior public school attendance requirement.

e The parent has obtained acceptance for admission of the student to a private school that is
eligible for the program and the parent has requested a scholarship from DOE at least 60 days
before the date of the first scholarship payment.

% Florida Department of Education, Fact Sheet, Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program (2020), available at
https://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/5606/urlt/FTC-Sept-2020-line.pdf.

57 Florida Department of Education, K-12 Scholarships, Presentation to the Committee on Education, The Florida Senate
(January 12, 2021), available at

https://www.flsenate.gov/Committees/Show/ED/MeetingPacket/4961/8839 MeetingPacket 4961.pdf.

8 Section 6, ch. 2019-21, L.O.F.

89 Section 1002.394(1), F.S.

70 See Section 1002.39(10), F.S.

"L Section 1002.394(3), F.S.




BILL: SB 48 Page 13

A sibling of a student who is participating in the FES program is eligible for a scholarship if the
student resides in the same household as the sibling.’?

A student is not eligible for a scholarship while he or she is enrolled in a public school or DJJ
program; receiving another state educational scholarship pursuant to Florida law; enrolled in a
home education or private tutoring program, a virtual program that receives state funding
pursua7r;t to the student’s participation, or enrolled in the Florida School for the Deaf and the
Blind.

School districts must provide information on the district’s website and inform all households
within the district receiving free or reduced priced meals under the National School Lunch Act’
of their ability to apply for the scholarship. School districts must also notify the student and
parent about, and provide services for, statewide assessment participation.”™

The DOE is required to:"®

e Publish and update, as necessary, information on the DOE website about the FES program,
including, but not limited to, student eligibility criteria, parental responsibilities, and relevant
data.

e Cross-check the list of participating scholarship students with the public school enrollment
lists before each scholarship payment to avoid duplication.

e Maintain and publish a list of nationally norm-referenced tests identified for purposes of
satisfying the FES program testing requirement.

e Establish and notify nonprofit SFO’s of specified deadlines.

Among other requirements, to be eligible to participate in the FES program, a private school
must annually administer or make provision for participating students in grades three through ten
to take one of the nationally norm-referenced tests identified by the DOE or take the statewide
standardized assessments. A participating private school must report a student’s scores to his or
her parent and to a state university for the purpose of annual performance data reporting.”’

An eligible nonprofit SFO:"®

e Must verify the household income level of students and submit the verified list of students
and related documentation to the DOE.

e May use up to one percent of the total amount of all FES program scholarships awarded for
administrative expenses. The funds used for administrative expenses must originate from
eligible tax credit contributions authorized under the FTC program and HSP."”®

72 Section 1002.394(3), F.S.

73 Section 1002.394(5), F.S.

7442 U.S.Cs. 1751, et seq. The National School Lunch Program (NSLP) is a federally assisted meal program operating in
public and nonprofit private schools and residential child care institutions. It provides nutritionally balanced, low-cost or free
lunches to children each school day. The program was established under the National School Lunch Act, signed by President
Harry Truman in 1946. USDA Food and Nutrition Service, National School Lunch Program, https://www.fns.usda.gov/nslp
(last visited Jan. 29, 2021).

75 Section 1002.394(6), F.S.

76 Section 1002.394(7), F.S.

7 Section 1002.394(8), F.S.

78 Section 1002.394(10), F.S.

79 Section 1002.395(6)(j), F.S.




BILL: SB 48 Page 14

e Must, in a timely manner, submit any information requested by the DOE relating to the
scholarship.

e Must notify the DOE of any violation by a parent or private school of FES program
requirements.

Funding is based on the student’s grade level and school district in which the student was
assigned plus specified categorical programs.®® The amount of the scholarship award is 95
percent of the calculated amount. The amount of the award is deposited quarterly in the student’s
account once the scholarship has been verified and approved.®!

The FES program was initially established for up to 18,000 eligible students annually beginning
with the 2019-2020 school year, and served 17,823.82 Beginning in the 2020-2021 school year,
the number of students participating in the FES annually increases by one percent of the state’s
total public school student enrollment.®® As of January 2021, 36,384 scholarships were awarded
to students for the 2020-2021 school year.3

Hope Scholarship Program

The HSP was established in 2018% to provide the parent of a public school student an
opportunity to transfer the student to another public school or to request a scholarship for the
student to enroll in and attend an eligible private school if that student has been subjected to
battery; harassment; hazing; bullying; kidnapping; physical attack; robbery; sexual offenses;
threat or intimidation; or fighting at school.&

Once a parent or child submits a report of an incident, the school principal must provide a copy
of the report to the parent and investigate the incident. Once the investigation is complete, or
within 15 days after the incident was reported, whichever occurs first, the principal must notify
the parent about the HSP.8

8 In addition to the basic amount for current operations for the FEFP specified in law, the Legislature may appropriate
categorical funding for specified programs, activities, or purposes. Section 1011.62(6), F.S.

81 Section 1002.394(11), F.S.

8 Florida Department of Education, K-12 Scholarships, Presentation to the Committee on Education, The Florida Senate
(January 12, 2021), available at

https://www.flsenate.gov/Committees/Show/ED/MeetingPacket/4961/8839 MeetingPacket 4961.pdf.

8 Section 1002.394(11)(a), F.S.

8 Florida Department of Education, K-12 Scholarships, Presentation to the Committee on Education, The Florida Senate
(January 12, 2021), available at

https://www.flsenate.gov/Committees/Show/ED/MeetingPacket/4961/8839 MeetingPacket 4961.pdf.

8 Section 16, ch. 2018-6, L.O.F.

8 Section 1002.40(1) and (6), F.S.

87 Section 1002.40(6), F.S.




BILL: SB 48 Page 15

A tax credit®® is available for use by a person who makes an eligible contribution.® Eligible
contributions used to fund the HSP may be used to fund FTC scholarships, with conditions. A
nonprofit SFO may carry forward to the next state fiscal year no more than five percent of net
eligible contributions to the HSP.%

The HSP served 388 students in the 2019-2020 school year.®*As of January 2021, 476
scholarships were awarded to students for the 2020-2021 school year.

Effect of Proposed Changes

The bill modifies s. 1002.394, F.S., relating to the Family Empowerment Scholarship Program, s.
1002.395, F.S., relating to the Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program, s. 1002.40, F.S., relating
to the Hope Scholarship Program, and related statutes.

Family Empowerment Scholarship Program

The bill incorporates the FTC program and HSP into the FES program with a common set of
eligibility requirements and scholarship award funding structure. A student is eligible for an
award under the FES program if the student is eligible to enroll in kindergarten through grade 12
and is:

e On the direct certification list or the student’s household income does not exceed 300 percent
of poverty; which is a higher maximum income level than the FTC program, which is 260%
of the poverty level.

e Currently placed or placed during the previous fiscal year in foster or out-of-home care;

e Asibling of a participating student residing in the same household; or

e Enrolled in a public school and reported an incident of being subjected to battery;
harassment; hazing; bullying; kidnapping; physical attack; robbery; sexual offenses, threat or
intimidation; or fighting at school.

The bill removes the requirement that a student must spend the prior year in attendance at a
Florida public school. Therefore, under the bill students participating in a home education or
private tutoring program may be eligible to apply for a scholarship, which may likely increase
the number of families eligible for an award under the FES program.

The bill establishes scholarship award priorities in the following order:
e A student who received an FTC program or HSP award in the 2020-2021 school year and a
student who received an FES program award the previous school year.

8 The purchaser of a motor vehicle is granted a credit of 100 percent of an eligible contribution made to an eligible nonprofit
scholarship-funding organization for the Hope Scholarship Program against any tax imposed by the state and collected from
the purchaser by a dealer, designated agent, or private tag agent as a result of the purchase or acquisition of a motor vehicle,
except that a credit may not exceed the tax that would otherwise be collected from the purchaser by a dealer, designated
agent, or private tag agent. Section 212.1832(1), F.S.

8 Section 1002.40(13), F.S.

% Section 1002.40(11)(i), F.S.

% Florida Department of Education, K-12 Scholarships, Presentation to the Committee on Education, The Florida Senate
(January 12, 2021), available at

https://www.flsenate.gov/Committees/Show/ED/MeetingPacket/4961/8839 MeetingPacket 4961.pdf.

2 d.




BILL: SB 48 Page 16

e A student placed in foster care, a sibling of a participating student, or a student who reported
an incident of being subjected to battery; harassment; hazing; bullying; kidnapping; physical
attack; robbery; sexual offenses; threat or intimidation; or fighting at school.

e A student who’s household income does not exceed 185 percent of the federal poverty level.

e A student who’s household income does not exceed 300 percent of the federal poverty level.

The bill modifies the FES program from a voucher program to an education savings account

program and authorizes scholarship funds to be used to meet the education needs of students,

including:

e Instructional materials including digital devices and internet access.

e Curriculum including teacher’s manuals.

e Tuition and fees, including fees for summer and after-school programs, and annual
assessments and evaluations.

e Transportation not to exceed $750 per year.

The bill includes a number of provisions parents must meet to maintain eligibility, including to
annually submit a sworn compliance statement similar to the McKay-Gardiner program. The bill
modifies specific parent responsibilities relating to private schools by removing provisions
requiring that the student must attend a private school, and modifying assessment provisions to
apply to parents choosing to send their child to a private school.

The bill specifies that nonprofit SFOs must comply with a number of requirements similar to the
McKay-Gardiner program to administer the FES program, and allows for SFOs to use up to 2.5
percent, increasing from one percent, of the student generated funding for administrative
purposes. In addition, the bill maintains that nonprofit SFOs must:

e Verify household income.

e Allow specified eligible students to apply for a scholarship at any time.

e Have an annual financial audit conducted by an independent certified public accountant.

The bill also retains the nonprofit SFO application process from the FTC program.®

The bill maintains the current annual growth rate of one percent of the public school student
enrollment and adds to the program prior year FTC program and HSP scholarship recipients
outside of the enrollment cap. The funding is generated through the FEFP per student calculation
based on the grade level and the district school to which the student would have been assigned,
and increases the scholarship award from 95 percent to 97.5 percent of the calculated amount.
An eligible student may also choose a transportation award limited to $750 to attend a public
school that is different from the student’s assigned school. The bill authorizes nonprofit SFOs to
report students for funding at the time of each student membership survey in order to receive
quarterly scholarship disbursements from the DOE.

The bill adds to the FES program similar policies from the Gardiner program relating to
scholarship terms and commissioner responsibilities, The bill specifies that any remaining funds
revert to the state after denial or revocation of scholarship eligibility by the commissioner for

93 See Section 1002.395(15), F.S.



BILL: SB 48 Page 17

fraud or abuse, or after two consecutive fiscal years in which an account has been inactive or two
consecutive years after high school completion or graduation during which the student is not
enrolled in an eligible postsecondary educational institution or a program offered by the
institution.

In addition, the bill:

e Requires private schools participating the scholarship program to comply with current law,%
and allows a private school to discount tuition if the private school deems it necessary.

e Requires school districts to notify parents about the scholarship and removes the requirement
for school districts to report scholarship students for funding.

e Similar to public school districts, requires the Auditor General to conduct an operational
audit on an approved nonprofit SFO at least once every three years,® rather than annually.

Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program

The bill modifies the title of s. 1002.395, F.S. from the Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program
to the Florida K-12 Education Funding Tax Credit Program. The bill enables taxpayers to
designate portions of certain tax payments as contributions to K-12 education funding. The bill
also requires that contributions be deposited into a designated student fund and used for K-12
education funding.

The bill removes other substantive provisions and incorporates certain provisions into the FES
program, including:

e Obligations of eligible nonprofit SFO’s;

e Obligations of the DOE; and

e Nonprofit SFO application requirements.

Hope Scholarship Program

The bill modifies the title of s. 1002.40, F.S., from the Hope Scholarship Program to the Florida

K-12 Education Funding Tax Credit Program. The bill enables taxpayers to designate portions of

certain tax payments as contributions to K-12 education funding. The bill also requires that:

e Eligible contributions be deposited into a designated student fund and used for K-12
education funding.

e The Department of Revenue and DOE collaboratively develop a contribution election form
that includes a brief description of each scholarship program available and the type of student
served under each program.

The bill removes other substantive provisions and incorporates certain provisions into the FES

program, including:

o Eligibility requirements; and

e Requiring an annual evaluation of public schools with ten or more students transferring to
another public school or private school due to bullying or other qualifying incident.

% Section 1002.421, F.S.
% See supra note 54. Section 11.45(2)(f), F.S.



BILL: SB 48 Page 18

Other Bill Provisions

The bill also:

e Modifies other tax credit related statutes to conform to the bill.

e Modifies controlled open enrollment preferential treatment® to include McKay-Gardiner
program award recipients for students choosing to attend a public school other than the one
assigned.

e Allows for a private virtual school with a least one administrative office located in the state
to meet the physical location requirement for private school participating in the state school
scholarship program.

e Includes the teacher salary allocation in the per student scholarship amount calculation,
which is currently excluded under s. 1011.62(18), F.S.

V. Constitutional Issues:
A. Municipality/County Mandates Restrictions:
None.
B. Public Records/Open Meetings Issues:
None.
C. Trust Funds Restrictions:
None.
D. State Tax or Fee Increases:
None.
E. Other Constitutional Issues:
None.
V. Fiscal Impact Statement:
A. Tax/Fee Issues:
The revenue estimating conference has not yet reviewed the fiscal impact of this bill.
B. Private Sector Impact:

Eligible families may have the opportunity to save money for private school and
educational services to meet the educational needs of their child. There may also be
increased usage of private educational services as authorized in the bill. In addition,

% Section 1002.31(2)(c), F.S.



BILL: SB 48 Page 19

VI.

VII.

VIII.

certain tax payers may designate more funding for education through authorized tax
credits.

C. Government Sector Impact:

The impact on state funding is indeterminate. The state funding will depend on an official
estimate of student full-time equivalent (FTE) participation in the scholarship programs
for the 2021-2022 school year, the amount of revenue transferred into the Florida
Education Finance Program (FEFP), and the amount of state funds allocated to the FEFP
during the appropriation process.

Technical Deficiencies:
None.

Related Issues:

None.

Statutes Affected:

This bill substantially amends the following sections of the Florida Statutes:

11.45,211.0251, 212.099, 212.1831, 212.1832, 213.053, 220.1105, 220.13, 220.186, 220.1875,
561.1211, 624.51055, 1002.20, 1002.23, 1002.31, 1002.394, 1002.395, 1002.40, 1002.411,
1002.421, 1009.971, 1009.98, 1009.981, 1011.61, and 1011.62.

This bill creates section 1002.381 of the Florida Statutes.

This bill repeals the following sections of the Florida Statutes: 1002.385 and 1002.39.

Additional Information:

A. Committee Substitute — Statement of Changes:
(Summarizing differences between the Committee Substitute and the prior version of the bill.)
None.

B. Amendments:
None.

This Senate Bill Analysis does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill’s introducer or the Florida Senate.




R O W O J o O b W NN

=

Florida Senate - 2021 COMMITTEE AMENDMENT
Bill No. SB 48

| INNIRINARY =<

LEGISLATIVE ACTION

Senate . House

The Committee on Education (Berman) recommended the following:
Senate Amendment (with title amendment)

Delete line 275

and insert:
(1) Annually conduct operational
Delete line 1713

and insert:
(b) The Auditor General shall annually
Delete line 2719

and insert:

(a) The Auditor General shall annually

Page 1 of 2
2/2/2021 7:42:59 AM 581-01424-21




12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

Florida Senate - 2021

Bill No. SB 48

and

and

and

2/2/2021 7:42:59 AM

| INNIRINARY =<

the title i1s amended as follows:

Delete lines 3 - 5

insert:

amending s. 11.45, F.S.; conforming provisions to
changes

Delete line 121

insert:

certain audits annually; providing

Delete line 192

insert:

certain audits annually; providing

Page 2 of 2

COMMITTEE AMENDMENT

581-01424-21



COMMITTEE AMENDMENT

2021

Florida Senate

Bill No.

SB 48

[ +53050

~H
® H
{ ®
[op) © .
.. - . ¢ ¢
o W © ®
10) [ q = D
0 - DI I LS T (VI o
= = P 0 ¢ P
(@] (@] (VI OB O B OR —
e — B N (& ® .
— n B B ® & ¢ (0]
O P n 3
4 >N [on - o
oo D © W YW o
[0) © P ¥ D >
< D © D O
i) WO WO H O M
D Iy Ul ®
§o) W >N
0] P D P ®H ®© O
i©) < 0]
= [ N n D b B D
O [} @4 D @& &
e IS ¢ -H Hoop D 0O
= IS b T © & P P &
) O & D # O ¢ i
e O L S I L I
0] N v o — @
[ M 4 LV OFE OF
= fom b H HooW [OTEENO)
= . — B ¢ O ¢ ¢ P A
= N D 4P
P © & on H D O
i - e W ¢ D D ¢ G
0n A o b # -d P
i - [¢'s} 3] L @
0 o i A AN S OB (RO
Pt o ~N T & ¢ D &
| O D B - <~ N ©
- | H D T uwp & 4 0O
+ D £ B o H § e
[ ~ T H D@ P P
O + o] P NISEEN
3 = 9] ® b & wpw Qo © P
o (U] ~N P - . @
I .m b < % D O
0 —H < T & £
c o 0] T W +~ W b D
O (U] @ - D @ b Y
_m -— o L T . o ®©
0] 0] — fom & A~ [4p] @ Q,
2 0} & B oW o - O
] in (U] O e = N ¥ ¢ O P A
c s ) Do D ¢ ¢ =
0] - © O 4 ~ QO <4 q
) g =] — 0 © & O P O
g Q O n — b © oo 4+ &
O (2] [ 4 op D,
O - ~ (oA
K] ® . 9] kY
Q O BT $H D D @
< o D @® o @ D
[ o] b ONENe K
— M < 0 W~ W O

10
11

Page 1 of 2

ED.ED.01288

:13 PM

41

2/1/2021 5



COMMITTEE AMENDMENT

2021

Florida Senate

SB 48

Bill No.

453090

4 0
D 0]
o
H ©
o9} “
-H P 0]
— D >
D D 0] © ©
HOJEE R E R m g
o ¥ o) G
- 0 H o)
A N -H o0
- & W — 99 ~
4P ® O 0] (9]
H O W S Q
Q o)l D O O X
) D @] ~ (18]
K] I — Ay in]
O D & <<
Ky (o] O 0]
gl D “H e
) o)l O © in]
o9} @ D
¢ ¢ H com [9)
T M @] [9)] a
O o ) I
& -t [¢4p] [09] a QO
[09] -~ A &
N h -H > 0
R (VI S —H 3 N
N - A m g
T & 0
M0 P O W -
D M G O in]
¢ W iS] 3
D b + Q
- ¢ 9} a -
P q c Qo ~
(V1Y) © =] i}
) =4 o P a
- Y m | O
4 D D © O
-H o Y H N Q,
B S o 0]
oo™ o M —
Q W O -— Q
O - fon [09] 0] -
— ® - e o
HF W > P -
) ] [4p] - —
) O | [ [Ea|
H [09] z (@) z
-H D
A ¢ o] .
4 k< O o
bl . 0 O
A~ & ~ © A ~
) o ® Q) Q L O a
Y H ~| O s ~— O
HO)j D = -~
4 5 D
- T O H
on a 0] O
O E o ™ [oF
N MO TN O~ O O +H
— 4 A4 4 4 4 4 +d4 N N «

Page 2 of 2

ED.ED.01288

:13 PM

41

2/1/2021 5



O W W J o U b w N

[EY

Florida Senate - 2021 COMMITTEE AMENDMENT
Bill No. SB 48

| IHRNAR =200

LEGISLATIVE ACTION

Senate . House

The Committee on Education (Berman) recommended the following:
Senate Amendment (with title amendment)
Delete lines 4543 - 4560.

================= T I T LE A MENIDMENT =s===============
And the title is amended as follows:

Delete lines 263 - 266
and insert:

provisions to changes made by the act; providing an

effective

Page 1 of 1
2/2/2021 7:47:47 AM 581-01931-21




O J o O Ww NN

Florida Senate - 2021 COMMITTEE AMENDMENT
Bill No. SB 48

LI

LEGISLATIVE ACTION

Senate . House

The Committee on Education (Jones) recommended the following:
Senate Amendment
Delete lines 1182 - 1184

and insert:

matrix of services within 30 school days after receiving notice

of the parent’s request. The school district shall conduct a

meeting and develop an IEP and matrix of services within 30

school days after

Page 1 of 1
2/2/2021 9:34:14 AM 581-01953-21




=

R O W O J o O b W NN

Florida Senate - 2021 COMMITTEE AMENDMENT
Bill No. SB 48

TN 7=+

LEGISLATIVE ACTION

Senate . House

The Committee on Education (Jones) recommended the following:
Senate Amendment
Delete lines 1204 - 1219

and insert:

(b) Annually administer or make provision for students

participating in the program in grades 3 through 10 to take the

statewide assessments administered pursuant to s. 1008.22. This

paragraph does not apply to students with disabilities for whom

standardized testing is not appropriate. A participating private

school shall report a student’s scores to the parent and the

department for use in calculating school grades pursuant to s.

Page 1 of 2
2/2/2021 9:29:40 AM 581-01949-21




12

Florida Senate - 2021
Bill No. SB 48

1008.34.

2/2/2021 9:29:40 AM

TN 7=+

Page 2 of 2

COMMITTEE AMENDMENT

581-01949-21




~ o oo w N

Florida Senate
Bill No. SB 48

Senate

The Committee

- 2021 COMMITTEE AMENDMENT

TR o=

LEGISLATIVE ACTION

House

on Education (Jones) recommended the following:

Senate Amendment

Delete 1i
and insert:
erganizatien.
designate a sp

contribution.

2/2/2021 9:31:

nes 3958 - 3960

The person making the contribution may not

ecific student as the beneficiary of the

Page 1 of 1
14 AM 581-01951-21




~ o oo w N

Florida Senate - 2021 COMMITTEE AMENDMENT
Bill No. SB 48

| IVARI 2=

LEGISLATIVE ACTION

Senate . House

The Committee on Education (Jones) recommended the following:
Senate Amendment

Delete lines 339 - 341

and insert:

to—beusedpursuant—+teo—-s-—31002-395- The eligible business making

the contribution may not designate a specific student as the

beneficiary of the contribution.

Page 1 of 1
2/2/2021 9:28:11 AM 581-01948-21




0o J o U Ww N

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48
By Senator Diaz
36-00745D-21 202148

A bill to be entitled
An act relating to educational scholarship programs;
amending s. 11.45, F.S.; requiring the Auditor General
to conduct certain audits at least every 3 years
instead of annually; conforming provisions to changes
made by the act; amending s. 211.0251, F.S.;
conforming provisions to changes made by the act;
deleting a provision limiting a certain tax credit to
no more than 50 percent of the tax due on the return
the credit is taken; amending s. 212.099, F.S.;
revising the definition of the term “eligible
contribution”; deleting the definition of the term
“eligible nonprofit scholarship-funding organization”;
conforming provisions to changes made by the act;
requiring a dealer to identify on the dealer’s return
the amount of an eligible contribution; requiring the
Department of Revenue to ensure that certain receipts
are deposited in a specified fund; amending ss.
212.1831 and 212.1832, F.S.; conforming provisions to
changes made by the act; amending s. 213.053, F.S.;
deleting authorization for the Department of Revenue
to provide specified information to certain entities;
deleting definitions; amending ss. 220.1105, 220.13,
220.186, 220.1875, 561.1211, 624.51055, and 1002.20,
F.S.; conforming provisions to changes made by the
act; amending s. 1002.23, F.S.; correcting a reference
to the Florida Virtual School; conforming a provision
to changes made by the act; amending s. 1002.31, F.S.;

adding certain students to those whom district school

Page 1 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58

Florida Senate - 2021

36-00745D-21
boards must provide preferential treatment in the
controlled open enrollment process; creating s.
1002.381, F.S.; establishing the McKay-Gardiner
Scholarship Program; providing the purpose of the
program; requiring certain written materials to
describe a scholarship under the program as a “McKay-
Gardiner Scholarship”; defining terms; specifying
eligibility requirements; prohibiting a student from
participating in the program under certain
circumstances; providing criteria for authorized uses
of program funds; prohibiting providers of any
services receiving payments pursuant to the program
from sharing, refunding, or rebating any program funds
with parents of program students; prohibiting
specified persons from billing certain entities for
specified services; providing that program funding for
specified children constitutes their full funding
under part V of ch. 1002; providing the terms of a
program scholarship; requiring the Commissioner of
Education to close scholarship accounts and for
specified funds to revert to the state under specified
circumstances; requiring the commissioner to notify
parents and organizations when a program scholarship
account is closed and funds revert to the state;
providing school district obligations relating to
notifying parents, individualized education plans, and
matrices of service; specifying obligations for
eligible private schools; authorizing the commissioner

to determine that a private school is ineligible to

Page 2 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

SB 48

202148




59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

participate in the scholarship program if the private
school fails to meet certain requirements; providing
Department of Education obligations relating to the
program; providing commissioner authority and
obligations relating to suspending or revoking program
participation; providing parent and student
responsibilities for program participation; providing
that a participant who fails to comply with program
responsibilities forfeits a program scholarship;
requiring charitable organizations seeking to
participate in the program to submit an application
for initial approval or renewal to the Office of
Independent Education and Parental Choice by a
specified date; providing requirements for such
applications; requiring the office to review
applications in consultation with the Department of
Revenue and the Chief Financial Officer; requiring the
commissioner to recommend approval or disapproval of
applications to the State Board of Education within a
certain timeframe; requiring the state board to
consider applications and recommendations at its next
scheduled meeting; requiring the state board to
provide a written explanation to organizations whose
applications are disapproved; requiring the state
board to provide written notice to affected students
and parents if the state board disapproves an
organization’s renewal application; allowing students
affected by such disapproval to remain eligible for

the program for a specified timeframe; requiring such

Page 3 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

students to apply to and be accepted by a different
organization for upcoming school years; requiring
remaining funds held by a disapproved organization to
be transferred to other eligible organizations;
requiring the state board to adopt specified rules;
exempting specified entities from the initial or
renewal application process; providing nonprofit
scholarship-funding organization obligations relating
to establishing program scholarships; providing
eligibility for transition-to-work programs; providing
requirements for such programs and for private schools
and job coaches participating in such programs;
providing student obligations relating to
participating in such programs; providing business
obligations relating to participating in such
programs; specifying requirements for scholarship
funding and payment; specifying the initial maximum
number of eligible FTE; providing for the annual
increase of the maximum number of eligible FTE;
requiring nonprofit scholarship-funding organizations
to report specified information to the department at
the time of each Florida Education Finance Program
student membership survey; requiring the department to
transfer certain funds to organizations in a specified
manner; clarifying that accrued interest in student
accounts 1is in addition to, and not part of, awarded
funds; authorizing organizations to develop systems
for payment of benefits by funds transfer; prohibiting

organizations that develop such systems from reducing

Page 4 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48 Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48
36-00745D-21 202148 36-00745D-21 202148
117 scholarship awards through certain fees; clarifying 146 Scholarship payments to organizations; providing
118 that scholarship funds do not constitute taxable 147 circumstances under which a student’s account must be
119 income to the qualified student or to his or her 148 closed and remaining funds reverted to the state;
120 parent; requiring the Auditor General to conduct 149 requiring the commissioner to notify parents when an
121 certain audits at least once every 3 years; providing 150 account is closed and funds revert to the state;
122 criteria for such audits; requiring the Auditor 151 requiring funds to be used to meet individual
123 General to provide the commissioner with a copy of 152 educational needs of eligible students; specifying the
124 such audits within a specified timeframe; requiring 153 purposes for which such funds may be used; prohibiting
125 the Auditor General to notify the department of any 154 a provider receiving such funds from sharing,
126 organization that fails to comply with a request for 155 refunding, or rebating the funds with a participating
127 information; requiring certain departments and 156 parent or student; providing eligibility for a
128 agencies to work with organizations to provide access 157 scholarship to transport a student; requiring a
129 to specified lists; providing that the state is not 158 principal or his or her designee to provide copies of
130 liable for the award or use of program funds; 159 certain reports to a parent; requiring a principal or
131 clarifying that the act does not expand regulatory 160 his or her designee to investigate incidents in a
132 authority of the state over specified entities; 161 specified manner; providing and revising department
133 requiring the State Board of Education to adopt rules; 162 obligations relating to participating students;
134 repealing ss. 1002.385 and 1002.39, F.S., relating to 163 requiring the department to issue a project grant
135 the Gardiner Scholarship and the John M. McKay 164 award to a state university, to which certain private
136 Scholarships for Students with Disabilities Program, 165 schools must report student scores on certain tests;
137 respectively; amending s. 1002.394, F.S.; providing 166 requiring the department to verify eligible
138 and revising definitions; conforming provisions to 167 expenditures before distributing funds; providing and
139 changes made by the act; specifying and revising 168 revising obligations for eligible private schools;
140 eligibility requirements; deleting a provision 169 providing and revising parent and student obligations
141 requiring the department to notify the school district 170 for initial and continued participation in the
142 of the parent’s intent upon receipt of the parent’s 171 program; providing and revising nonprofit scholarship-
143 request; revising the priority order for awarding the 172 funding organization obligations relating to
144 scholarships to eligible students; providing and 173 participating in the program; expanding eligibility to
145 revising terms for state Family Empowerment 174 specified students who received certain scholarships
Page 5 of 158 Page 6 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions. CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48 Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48
36-00745D-21 202148 36-00745D-21 202148
175 in a specified school year; clarifying that such 204 disapproval of applications to the State Board of
176 scholarships do not count toward the maximum number of 205 Education within a certain timeframe; requiring the
177 eligible students; requiring nonprofit scholarship- 206 state board to consider applications and
178 funding organizations to report specified information 207 recommendations at its next scheduled meeting;
179 to the department at the time of each Florida 208 requiring the state board to provide a written
180 Education Finance Program student membership survey; 209 explanation to organizations whose applications are
181 providing the manner in which funds will be allocated 210 disapproved; requiring the state board to provide
182 by certain dates; requiring the department to release 211 written notice to affected students and parents if the
183 scholarship funds once an application has been 212 state board disapproves an organization’s renewal
184 approved for the program; clarifying that accrued 213 application; allowing students affected by such
185 interest is in addition to, and not part of, awarded 214 disapproval to remain eligible for the program for a
186 funds; authorizing organizations to develop a system 215 specified timeframe; requiring such students to apply
187 for payment of benefits by funds transfer; prohibiting 216 to and be accepted by a different organization for
188 scholarship awards from being reduced by certain fees; 217 upcoming school years; requiring remaining funds held
189 clarifying that scholarship funds do not constitute 218 by a disapproved organization to be transferred to the
190 taxable income to the qualified student or to his or 219 student’s account established at the eligible
191 her parent; requiring the Auditor General to conduct 220 organization accepting the student; providing that an
192 certain audits at least once every 3 years; providing 221 organization is a renewing organization if it
193 criteria for such audits; requiring the Auditor 222 maintains continuous approval and participation in the
194 General to provide the commissioner with a copy of 223 program; requiring the state board to adopt rules;
195 such audits within a specified timeframe; requiring 224 exempting specified entities from the initial or
196 the Auditor General to notify the department of any 225 renewal application process; deleting an obsolete
197 organization that fails to comply with a request for 226 implementation schedule; amending s. 1002.395, F.S.;
198 information; providing application requirements for 227 renaming the Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program
199 charitable organizations seeking to participate in the 228 the Florida K-12 Education Funding Tax Credit Program;
200 Family Empowerment Scholarship program; requiring the 229 revising the purpose of the program; revising and
201 office to review applications in consultation with the 230 deleting terms; deleting provisions made obsolete by
202 Department of Revenue and the Chief Financial Officer; 231 the act; authorizing a taxpayer to elect to make
203 requiring the commissioner to recommend approval or 232 eligible contributions to the Department of Revenue or
Page 7 of 158 Page 8 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions. CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48 Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48
36-00745D-21 202148 36-00745D-21 202148
233 Division of Alcoholic Beverages and Tobacco; 262 1009.98, 1009.981, and 1011.61, F.S.; conforming
234 specifying the manner in which a taxpayer may elect to 263 provisions to changes made by the act; amending s.
235 make eligible contributions; requiring all eligible 264 1011.62, F.S.; deleting a provision requiring that
236 contributions received by the department and the 265 certain funds not be included in the calculated amount
237 division to be deposited into a specified fund; 266 for certain scholarship awards; providing an effective
238 amending s. 1002.40, F.S.; renaming the Hope 267 date.
239 Scholarship Program the K-12 Education Funding Tax 268
240 Credit Program; deleting provisions made obsolete by 269| Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:
241 the act; revising and deleting terms; authorizing 270
242 eligible contributions to be used for K-12 education 271 Section 1. Paragraph (1) of subsection (2) and subsection
243 funding; requiring an eligible contribution to be 272 (8) of section 11.45, Florida Statutes, are amended to read:
244 accompanied by a contribution election form provided 273 11.45 Definitions; duties; authorities; reports; rules.—
245 by the Department of Revenue; requiring the Department 274 (2) DUTIES.—The Auditor General shall:
246 of Revenue to develop the form in collaboration with 275 (1) At least every 3 years, Ammgatdty conduct operational
247 the Department of Education; providing the information 276| audits of the accounts and records of eligible nonprofit
248 to be included in the form; requiring the Department 2717 scholarship-funding organizations = ting—etigibt
249 of Revenue to deposit all receipts of eligible 278| eentributiens under ss. 1002.381 and 1002.394 s—30062-395,
250 contributions into a specified fund; requiring the 279| including any contracts for services with related entities, to
251 Department of Revenue to adopt rules; amending s. 280| determine compliance with the provisions of that section. Such
252 1002.411, F.S.; conforming a provision to changes made 281 audits must shaddt include, but not be limited to, a
253 by the act; amending s. 1002.421, F.S.; providing that 282| determination of the eligible nonprofit scholarship-funding
254 private virtual schools meet the requirement to 283| organization’s compliance with ss. 1002.381(13) (f) and
255 maintain a physical location in this state if such 284 1002.394 (11) (k) s+—3b62-39546)+5)>. The Auditor General shall
256 virtual schools maintain at least one administrative 285| provide its report on the results of the audits to the Governor,
257 office in a specified manner; requiring certain 286| the President of the Senate, the Speaker of the House of
258 private schools to provide reports from a specified 287| Representatives, the Chief Financial Officer, and the
259 public accountant; providing requirements for such 288| Legislative Auditing Committee, within 30 days of completion of
260 reports; amending s. 1009.971, F.S.; conforming 289| the audit.
261 provisions to changes made by the act; amending ss. 290
Page 9 of 158 Page 10 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions. CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319

Florida Senate - 2021

36-00745D-21

SB 48

202148

The Auditor General shall perform his or her duties

independently but under the general

policies established by the

Legislative Auditing Committee. This subsection does not limit

the Auditor General’s discretionary

authority to conduct other

audits or engagements of governmental entities as authorized in

subsection (3).

(8) RULES OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL.—The Auditor General, in

consultation with the Board of Accountancy, shall adopt rules

for the form and conduct of all financial audits performed by

independent certified public accountants pursuant to ss.

215.981, 218.39, 1001.453, 1002.381,

1002.394 3662395, 1004.28,

and 1004.70. The rules for audits of local governmental

entities, charter schools, charter technical career centers, and

district school boards must include,

but are not limited to,

requirements for the reporting of information necessary to carry

out the purposes of the Local Governmental Entity, Charter

School, Charter Technical Career Center, and District School

Board Financial Emergencies Act as stated in s. 218.501.

Section 2. Section 211.0251, Florida Statutes, is amended

to read:

211.0251 Credit for contributions to K-12 education funding

1ieibl £ 4 hel i

.—There is

TGO roORPEOTT

£ a4
O ESATP— T RaI R

. L
roaRTZatIon

allowed a credit of 100 percent of an eligible contribution

directed made to K-12 education funding an—eligible nonpreofit

1 i £ =

h
RO FrSATpP— T BReIhRe

rgantzatieon under s. 1002.395 for against

any tax due under s. 211.02 or s. 211.025. Hew r—a—eredit

11 = = £hi 4 +
Trrowea—dRae¥r <t S—S oMoy —HRot

4 50 £ of the +
€ percent—of—the—+ta

a £h £ £h PR £
o=, F—trt * Srh—crt reet E= S

A~ For purposes of the

distributions of tax revenue under s. 211.06, the department

Page 11 of
CODING: Words strieken are deletions;

158

words underlined are additions.

320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348

Florida Senate - 2021

36-00745D-21
shall disregard any tax credits allo
ensure that any reduction in tax rev
attributable to the tax credits resu
distributions to the General Revenue
1002.395 apply to the credit authori
Section 3. Section 212.099, Flo
read:

212.099 Credit for contribution

1ieibl £i4+ el ANE} £ a4

SB 48

202148
wed under this section to
enue received which is
lts only in a reduction in

Fund. The provisions of s.
zed by this section.

rida Statutes, is amended to

s to K-12 education funding

+

Pt b s edr— ekt
1) As used in this section, th
(a) “Eligible business” means a
occupying, using, or entitled to the
which the rental or license fee is s
212.031.
(b) “Eligible contribution” or

amount of tax, or portion thereof, p

Rg—organiEa

e term:
tenant or person actually
use of any property from

ubject to taxation under s.

“contribution” means the

aid by a—menetary

rEributien—from an eligible busine

and designated for K-12 education fu

ss to a collecting dealer

nding by the eligible

business aa—eligible nonpreofit heolarship—fundingorganization
+ B = =+ 1002 Q5 Th 13 1 51 B 1 T3

be—used—pursuan T - Th Hegiblebusin Fraking
b £ieod £+ TN :
berefietaryof—th rEribution

w "
w . e
(2) An eligible business shall be granted a credit against

+h + 2 = =1 212 Q21 = 17 +tod £ +h 13 151
th ax—imposed—under—s+—212-031—=and 11 d—£from—th Hegibl
busin by—a—deater—Th redit—shatlbe—dn—an—ameunt equal to

100 percent of an eligible contribut

Page 12 of
CODING: Words strieken are deletions;

ion made—to—aneorganization.
158

words underlined are additions.




349
350
351
352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367
368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

(3) A dealer shall take a credit against—thetax—impeosed
gader—s+—232-03% in an amount equal to the credit taken by the

eligible business under subsection (2).

(4)+4a)> An eligible business must apply to the department
for an allocation of tax credits under this section. The
eligible business must specify in the application the state

fiscal year during which the contribution will be made, +he

£ that
Fon—that

Wi 3 £h rEributiensy the planned

roaniza
amount of the contribution, the address of the property from
which the rental or license fee is subject to taxation under s.
212.031, and the federal employer identification number of the
dealer who collects the tax imposed under s. 212.031 from the

eligible business and—wh i1 —reds tection—of+t= £rom

r et te—fusie pursuant—teo—tht t+eorr. The department
shall approve allocations of tax credits on a first-come, first-
served basis and shall provide to the eligible business a
separate approval or denial letter for each dealer for which the

eligible business applied for an allocation of tax credits.

Witk 10 4 £4 : 4 s 1 + N
e R o—ao aEEer—apPpE TRg—or—aeRyIRgahappTIea £

EacEsys

Y
a hall + d £ 4+ 1 4 I B
= Ao+ PF¥ Tae—a Py 3 SPPE S F—aehiaT—= ¥

+ +
PoEEmeH

; . . Cfied ) ; Ligibl . . :
apptieations An approval letter must include the name and
federal employer identification number of the dealer from whom a
credit under this section can be taken and the amount of tax

credits approved for use with that dealer.

VAN Lotk o f 1ieibl it +h
) poh—F P fan—edigibt rEribution,—th
e o AN + -y + £ e o £
rErbutiron—with = Para reifies £ rEribution—for
h deal £ N EWS be—talk a =
ach—dealer—from—whomacredit—ecan betakenras—appr d—under

Page 13 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385
386
387
388
389
390
391
392
393
394
395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403
404
405
406

Florida Senate - 2021

36-00745D-21

SB 48

202148

PR N ’ A s £ R I £ad

aEributer aame—and—+f availtable—federal—empt ¥
s 3 PR ] N + 1 + + B ad N Aot £
teentification number;—the amount reributed—thedat £
eontribution;—the name—of the organization,—and—the name—and
£ 1 1 = 1 £4 + o =N £ + 1 =i 1
federal——empt r—identifi ton—rpumber—of thedeater

(5) Each dealer that receives

from an eligible business a

copy of the department’s approval letter amd— reifieat £
+ 1+ b3 both £ 35N h 1 4 £ + ] =i 1 +h = il
rEribution;—bothof which identify the deater—= he—dealer
h 17 + + + 1 =i =i ul 031 £ +h 13 1+ 51
vhr 11 B SR—RE d—under 12031+ —from—th Tiegibt
b 1 a T 11 = 11 + 1 £ + £ +h
busin aRe—wh i1l —redy Ileectionof taxesfromth
igible busin pursuant—to—thi tienyr shall identify on

the dealer’s return the amount of t

he eligible contribution by

redi the—ta leeted—from the eligible business, which
amount wedes—s——Hr 0ot by the +tetet amonnt—of e AT
tacieated—dr—th rEifieat £ b e e e b e Ty

not exceed the amount of credit all
department and may not exceed the a
otherwise be collected from the eli

when a payment is made under the re

ocation approved by the
mount of tax that would
gible business by a dealer

ntal or license fee

H + 12N il 1 B 1 +
arrangement. Hew F—pare by—arn—etigiblebusin =
=] il £ 4 g bef ol 1 2019
deatermay—+ be—reducedbefor tober—1 18-

(a) If the total amount of cre
take cannot be fully used within an
due under the rental or license fee
insufficient amount of tax that the
the eligible business during that p
be carried forward for a period not

(b) A tax credit may not be cl

through a refund.

dits an eligible business may

y period that a payment is
arrangement because of an
dealer would collect from

eriod, the unused amount may
to exceed 10 years.

aimed on an amended return or

Page 14 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions;

words underlined are additions.




Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48 Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148 36-00745D-21 202148
407 (c) A dealer that claims a tax credit must file returns and 436 oreceding——ea
408| pay taxes by electronic means under s. 213.755. 437 Sueh—report—shall ineludethe amount—of atributiens—r ived
409 (d) An eligible business may not convey, assign, or 438| duringthotreporting period and the federal empl ¥
410| transfer an approved tax credit or a carryforward tax credit to 439| identification numberof ecach dealer associated—with—the
411 another entity unless all of the assets of the eligible business 440| eortributieon—
412 are conveyed, assigned, or transferred in the same transaction 441 +#+=)> Eligible contributions may be used to fund the
413| and the successor business continues the same lease with the 442| program established under s. 1002.395.
414| dealer. 443 o —Fh B e s A A B e
415 (e) Within any state fiscal year, an eligible business may 444 heolarshipfunded pursuant—+to—thi tien-
416 rescind all or part of a tax credit approved under this section. 445 e —T5 rgartraton—ray; stubjeet—to—the imitatiens—eof s
417 The amount rescinded shall become available for that state 446 2385+ = et rEribuytieons—r tred—during—th
418| fiscal year to another eligible business as approved by the 447 tate—fiseal ar—in—whieh——such rEributions—ar Ileeted—Ffor
419 department if the business receives notice from the department 448 semiRtstrats BeRSesST
420 that the rescindment has been accepted by the department. Any 449 (7)48» The sum of tax credits that may be approved by the
421| amount rescinded under this subsection shall become available to 450| department in any state fiscal year is $57.5 million.
422 an eligible business on a first-come, first-served basis based 451 (8)+45%)» The department shall ensure that receipts designated
423 on tax credit applications received after the date the 452 by a remitting dealer as eligible contributions under this
424 rescindment is accepted by the department. 453| section are deposited into a designated student fund. For
425 E—Within 10 days—after the reseindmentof a+=o redit 454 purposes of the distributions of tax revenue under s. 212.20,
426 snderparagraph—{er—3s—= prted—lbyv—the department—th 455 the department shall disregard any tax credits allowed under
427 | department——shalt rnotify the eligible nonprofit—scholarship— 456| this section to ensure that any reduction in tax revenue
428 fundingorganization speeified by —th Tigiblebusin T 457 received that is attributable to the tax credits results only in
429| department——shaltl—atseo—inelude—th igible nonprofit 458| a reduction in distributions to the General Revenue Fund.
430| sehotarship—funding organization speeified by theeligible 459 (9)+4368)> The department may adopt rules to administer this
431 busin AattJtetter ¥ rresponden faekrowledgment—for 460| section.
432 tax—eredits—under this seetion- 461 Section 4. Section 212.1831, Florida Statutes, is amended
433 (6) An—erganization shall report—tothe department;—on—or 462| to read:
434 B e =2 e TR A= Lo S 463 212.1831 Credit for contributions to K-12 education funding
435| eontributions—received pursuant—teo—subseetion{4)—in—the 464 | eligible nonprofit—scholarship—funding eorganizatiens.—There is

Page 15 of 158 Page 16 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions. CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




465
466
467
468
469
470
471
472
473
474
475
476
477
478
479
480
481
482
483
484
485
486
487
488
489
490
491
492
493

Florida Senate - 2021

36-00745D-21

allowed a credit of 1

£ 1ieibl
€

SB 48

202148

00 percent of an eligible contribution made

ot EEaCE=SEa RORPE

s. 1002.395 againrst—=a

£it scholarship-funding erganization under
+ 1 a +h o+ a 4 A
Ay—tax imposed by the state and due under

this—ehapter from a d
direct pay permit hel
the dealer’s credit g
filing timely tax ret
taxes under s. 212.12

the credit shall incl

irect pay permit holder as a result of the
d pursuant to s. 212.183. For purposes of
ranted for keeping prescribed records,
urns, and properly accounting and remitting
, the amount of tax due used to calculate
ude any eligible contribution made—teo—an

eltigiblenenpreofitsecholarship—fundingorganization from a

direct pay permit hol
tax revenue under s.
tax credits allowed u
reduction in tax reve
tax credits results o
General Revenue Fund.
credit authorized by

Section 5. Secti
to read:

212.1832 Credit

der. For purposes of the distributions of
212.20, the department shall disregard any

nder this section to ensure that any

nue received that is attributable to the

nly in a reduction in distributions to the
The provisions of s. 1002.395 apply to the

this section.

on 212.1832, Florida Statutes, is amended

for contributions to K-12 education funding

Ligiba s holarshiofund : . __

(1) The purchase
credit of 100 percent

r of a motor vehicle shall be granted a
of an eligible contribution made—teo—an

3 £ £
r—prIvat tag—agent

of a motor vehicle, e

that would otherwise

CODING: Words striecken

as a result of the purchase or acquisition

xcept that a credit may not exceed the tax

be collected from the purchaser by a

Page 17 of 158

are deletions; words underlined are additions.

494
495
496
497
498
499
500
501
502
503
504
505
506
507
508
509
510
511
512
513
514
515
516
517
518
519
520
521
522

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148
dealer, designated agent, or private tag agent. For purposes of
this subsection, the term “purchase” does not include the lease
or rental of a motor vehicle.

(2) A dealer shall take a credit against any tax imposed by
the state under this chapter on the purchase of a motor vehicle
in an amount equal to the credit granted to the purchaser under
subsection (1).

(3) For purposes of the distributions of tax revenue under
s. 212.20, the department shall disregard any tax credits
allowed under this section to ensure that any reduction in tax
revenue received that is attributable to the tax credits results
only in a reduction in distributions to the General Revenue
Fund. The provisions of s. 1002.40 apply to the credit
authorized by this section.

Section 6. Paragraph (s) of subsection (8) and subsections
(21) and (22) of section 213.053, Florida Statutes, are amended
to read:

213.053 Confidentiality and information sharing.—

(8) Notwithstanding any other provision of this section,

the department may provide:

Disclosure of information under this subsection shall be
pursuant to a written agreement between the executive director
and the agency. Such agencies, governmental or nongovernmental,

shall be bound by the same requirements of confidentiality as

Page 18 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




523
524
525
526
527
528
529
530
531
532
533
534
535
536
537
538
539
540
541
542
543
544
545
546
547
548
549
550
551

Florida Senate - 2021

36-00745D-21

the Department of Revenue. Breach of confidentiality is

misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as provided

775.082 or s. 775.083.

SB 48

202148
a

by s.

{21y (o) B £ +hi B +4 +he + .
ZH—+{a—Forpurposes—of—tht o EroR—th T
1 wp | £+ k| : funds : + 4 7
+— Eigibte—rnonprot: Ao FShATp— e g orgoRIZation
1 ] hel funds ' 3
meohRS—ah—eTrgIoTrehRonp¥ret: AT FSATp—fuRarngorgoRiZation—<
3 g 100 Q5 (2} +hat o +h s 3 3
aetrnea i —= {Z—that—wm thr rrEeria—ih =
100 305 (cy + + 3 + £ o1 51 i bt s £
t =554 pereen £ e+ rErIoutrens—+Fo¥
dmipist +
e R StEratE Pef -
wm /2N +h 3 i 220 0 1
Taxpayer—ha thr afe—mean g —asS—h = = T HRes
i h| £+ ’ a4 add 1d Lo lat
erser =ra F—ERre—toxpayer rome—aRe—aaar FOH eV oI S
£ inf 3 1 £ bet + = +
Fi—oTr o Th oot roR——SAarrng agreemenRt o r—Ene—GCpartmen
£ +he Tad 1 c +
aRe—aR—ageRey f—Ehe—Fegerat—= ERMEH
() 7 = + + + 11 t e 4
{o—Fhe—Gacpartment;—gpoh—Fregy 7 Aar+—PF¥ rae—to—<ah
1 AN £+ ol funds ' 4 that
THFHOTreRORP¥FOTT AOTa¥FSATp— oG organrZatIon—tha
B h 100 206 13 a4 £ o+ fa¥al
PE Ter oo rsShAtTps—uhRaeE — = o —Eh

Page 19 of 158
CODING: Words striekern are deletions; words underlined are

additions.

552
553
554
555
556
557
558
559
560
561
562
563
564
565
566
567
568
569
570
571
572
573
574
575
576
5717
578
579
580

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

1 | 1 3 : 3 = +h
Hrgibte—hRoRproE: Aora¥rshtp—fuRaingorganization—wnacr—tht
N + £ beo furth a 1 g bt 3 4
=< ToR—May—H Le—furERer—arser S Ss r rooRtrZaETon
ded—3 +hi h
pEt—as—p¥ raea—R—this—paragraph-
(o) 14 151 £+ el 3 fuands 3 o]
t A—etHgiotre—hRonRp¥rott Ao+aFSATp—fuRaRg—orgontZationy
e ££4 & 1 N PR N ' +
* HEFeers;—ane—ChmpT+ == TS r SHe—FeguTrement
£fident 144 + + g i+ 1 B N £
rEraentiatt = hre—acepartment—ana—3E POV —Breaen—o+f
£ 4 + tsd £ & £3 £ o 51
AEraeRtErar Tty 5o MISGemeanor F—ERe—F3¥ SeGgE T PuRTEShaeT
ded—b 75 08 775 08
a5—P¥ raee—Poy—S = ¥—S—=
(D2DY (o\ M = + de & 1igibl +
{ Ho—Thre—eacpartment Moy —Pp¥ Eas. Sh—e T gIo+re—hoRP¥rotTE
ol 1 : + 4 3 = 100 40
oo SHrp—TuRe I Rg organTZat o oSSt rRea I — &
& .l 4 dd £faod 1 | = £31 £ + 3 1
aea+er Aome—aaer T reaeratr—emp+t r—raentitrcation Rumbery
a inf 4 loted to-diff bet dita ol B
STha—Thtormatron—Freratea S Ere¥reH et —ereat tarkeRr—o
£ = 1 + 12 19 (23 + ittad +
hFe—ageaterpursuan = T2+ {2 —ana—amotd Femt €r
£h 13 eibd £i4 hel i fundd : £ =
£ Trgotre—hRonprotTt Ao SHtp— eI ngorgantZatIon—uRaer 5
100 40(13V {By3 T 1igibl £+ hel AN} funds
4 + {o)=—F+ THFHOTeRORP¥OTT Ao ESATP—FuRaEhg
3 4 +h i f 4 £ £ '
o Zzatronmay & the—Ghformation—torpPurp £ FIHE
1igibl ot bt 3 & 3 tod £ ot : £ thoat
e+ rEributrons—aestgnatea—ftor—tha rgahrTrzatron—tha
per Ilected by the dealer butrn r—remitted—+to—th

£ 1 + £ dent + +
th afe—¥regquiremen £ rEidentialst arad—th ame—penatt:
£ 1ot £ +h 1 + tha d + +
for—a—viotation—of the regquirements—as—the departments

Section 7. Paragraph (a) of subsection (4) of section
220.1105, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

220.1105 Tax imposed; automatic refunds and downward

Page 20 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




581
582
583
584
585
586
587
588
589
590
591
592
593
594
595
596
597
598
599
600
601
602
603
604
605
606
607
608
609

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

adjustments to tax rates.—

(4) For fiscal years 2018-2019 through 2020-2021, any
amount by which net collections for a fiscal year exceed
adjusted forecasted collections for that fiscal year shall only
be used to provide refunds to corporate income tax payers as
follows:

(a) For purposes of this subsection, the term:

1. “Eligible taxpayer” means:

a. For fiscal year 2018-2019, a taxpayer whose taxable year
begins between April 1, 2017, and March 31, 2018, and whose
final tax liability for such taxable year is greater than zero;

b. For fiscal year 2019-2020, a taxpayer whose taxable year
begins between April 1, 2018, and March 31, 2019, and whose
final tax liability for such taxable year is greater than zero;
or

c. For fiscal year 2020-2021, a taxpayer whose taxable year
begins between April 1, 2019, and March 31, 2020, and whose
final tax liability for such taxable year is greater than zero.

2. “Excess collections” for a fiscal year means the amount
by which net collections for a fiscal year exceeds adjusted
forecasted collections for that fiscal year.

3. “Final tax liability” means the taxpayer’s amount of tax
due under this chapter for a taxable year, reported on a return
filed with the department—plus—the-amount—of anyecredit—taken

h + | 201875

23 ven—F Trh—aRaeT

4. “Total eligible tax liability” for a fiscal year means
the sum of final tax liabilities of all eligible taxpayers for a
fiscal year as such liabilities are shown on the latest return

filed with the department as of February 1 immediately following

Page 21 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

610
611
612
613
614
615
616
617
618
619
620
621
622
623
624
625
626
627
628
629
630
631
632
633
634
635
636
637
638

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148
that fiscal year.

5. “Taxpayer refund share” for a fiscal year means an
eligible taxpayer’s final tax liability as a percentage of the
total eligible tax liability for that fiscal year.

6. “Taxpayer refund” for a fiscal year means the taxpayer
refund share for a fiscal year multiplied by the excess
collections for a fiscal year.

Section 8. Paragraph (a) of subsection (1) of section
220.13, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

220.13 “Adjusted federal income” defined.—

(1) The term “adjusted federal income” means an amount
equal to the taxpayer’s taxable income as defined in subsection
(2), or such taxable income of more than one taxpayer as
provided in s. 220.131, for the taxable year, adjusted as
follows:

(a) Additions.—There shall be added to such taxable income:

l.a= The amount of any tax upon or measured by income,
excluding taxes based on gross receipts or revenues, paid or
accrued as a liability to the District of Columbia or any state

of the United States which is deductible from gross income in

the computation of taxable income for the taxable year.
B Ne+ 1t h ot a3 iSN B 1 1 £ di+ + 1
b——Neotwithstandingsub—subparagraph a7 +f a—eredit—taken

Page 22 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




639
640
641
642
643
644
645
646
647
648
649
650
651
652
653
654
655
656
657
658
659
660
661
662
663
664
665
666
667

CODING: Words strieken are deletions;

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

additieon—in—a subseguent—year—

2. The amount of interest which is excluded from taxable
income under s. 103 (a) of the Internal Revenue Code or any other
federal law, less the associated expenses disallowed in the
computation of taxable income under s. 265 of the Internal
Revenue Code or any other law, excluding 60 percent of any
amounts included in alternative minimum taxable income, as
defined in s. 55(b) (2) of the Internal Revenue Code, if the
taxpayer pays tax under s. 220.11(3).

3. In the case of a regulated investment company or real
estate investment trust, an amount equal to the excess of the
net long-term capital gain for the taxable year over the amount
of the capital gain dividends attributable to the taxable year.

4. That portion of the wages or salaries paid or incurred
for the taxable year which is equal to the amount of the credit
allowable for the taxable year under s. 220.181. This
subparagraph shall expire on the date specified in s. 290.016
for the expiration of the Florida Enterprise Zone Act.

5. That portion of the ad valorem school taxes paid or
incurred for the taxable year which is equal to the amount of
the credit allowable for the taxable year under s. 220.182. This
subparagraph shall expire on the date specified in s. 290.016
for the expiration of the Florida Enterprise Zone Act.

6. The amount taken as a credit under s. 220.195 which is
deductible from gross income in the computation of taxable
income for the taxable year.

7. That portion of assessments to fund a guaranty
association incurred for the taxable year which is equal to the

amount of the credit allowable for the taxable year.

Page 23 of 158

words underlined are additions.

668
669
670
671
672
673
674
675
676
677
678
679
680
681
682
683
684
685
686
687
688
689
690
691
692
693
694
695
696

CODING: Words strieken are deletions;

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

8. In the case of a nonprofit corporation which holds a
pari-mutuel permit and which is exempt from federal income tax
as a farmers’ cooperative, an amount equal to the excess of the
gross income attributable to the pari-mutuel operations over the
attributable expenses for the taxable year.

9. The amount taken as a credit for the taxable year under
s. 220.1895.

10. Up to nine percent of the eligible basis of any
designated project which is equal to the credit allowable for

the taxable year under s. 220.185.

11. Th PR dat £ the + 5 =
. Tre—omount—takeRr oS o ereart—for—thRe—toxapre—year uhaer
20 1975  mp adits } +hi B AN intended—+£
—+ — e —aaaTrtron—IR—tat goparagrapht TS THEChRaea
that +h PR + 17 a £ tha +
FrStE Ehat—th Se—amouRt—Ishotaltowea—ftor—thre—topurp
£ +hi ot both dedueti £ ; = PSES
—Eha+ tote—as—Ppotr o acauctEron—Trom Thcome o o €¥eat
3 P + Thi ddiss 3 £ dpdtondod 4 1e 3
et Hr SR T S—aaaTrtroR—ISfr THEehaea * gt
A £h back + : £h
aeeT gt CHf e BaeH TRECOME—MOE ERaR—of

12—+ The amount taken as a credit for the taxable year under
s. 220.193.

12.43~ Any portion of a qualified investment, as defined in
s. 288.9913, which is claimed as a deduction by the taxpayer and
taken as a credit against income tax pursuant to s. 288.9916.

13.34~ The costs to acquire a tax credit pursuant to s.
288.1254 (5) that are deducted from or otherwise reduce federal
taxable income for the taxable year.

14.35+ The amount taken as a credit for the taxable year
pursuant to s. 220.194.

15.36+ The amount taken as a credit for the taxable year
under s. 220.196. The addition in this subparagraph is intended

to ensure that the same amount is not allowed for the tax

Page 24 of 158

words underlined are additions.




697
698
699
700
701
702
703
704
705
706
707
708
709
710
711
712
713
714
715
716
717
718
719
720
721
722
723
724
725

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

purposes of this state as both a deduction from income and a
credit against the tax. The addition is not intended to result
in adding the same expense back to income more than once.

Section 9. Subsection (2) of section 220.186, Florida
Statutes, is amended to read:

220.186 Credit for Florida alternative minimum tax.—

(2) The credit pursuant to this section shall be the amount
of the excess, if any, of the tax paid based upon taxable income
determined pursuant to s. 220.13(2) (k) over the amount of tax
which would have been due based upon taxable income without
application of s. 220.13(2) (k), before application of this

credit withouwt appliecation of any eredit under 2261875,

Section 10. Section 220.1875, Florida Statutes, is amended
to read:

220.1875 Credit for contributions to K-12 education funding

1ieibl £ 4 hel i £ = 3 + 3
TGO HoRPFroTT oI ESATP— T aRaT Ry rgaRTZatTIon

(1) There is allowed a credit of 100 percent of an eligible
contribution made te—an—eligible nonprofit—scholarship—funding
erganizatien under s. 1002.395 sgainstany taxdue for a taxapt

£

PN haot £+ +h 14 3 +h
i hapter—after—the apptication ¥

4
yea¥r—ohRaeE

attowable—ereditsbythe+taxpayer. An eligible contribution must
be made when the taxpayer makes an estimated payment +e—an

S

s5+—220-222. The credit granted by this section shall be reduced
by the difference between the amount of federal corporate income
tax taking into account the credit granted by this section and
the amount of federal corporate income tax without application

of the credit granted by this section.

Page 25 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

726
727
728
729
730
731
732
733
734
735
736
737
738
739
740
741
742
743
744
745
746
747
748
749
750
751
752
753
754

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148
(2) A taxpayer who files a Florida consolidated return as a
member of an affiliated group pursuant to s. 220.131 (1) may be
allowed the credit on a consolidated return basis; however, the
total credit taken by the affiliated group is subject to the
limitation established under subsection (1).
(3) The provisions of s. 1002.395 apply to the credit
authorized by this section.
{4\ T £ + 13 =i 1 A £ a3+
—Ffa—taxpayer—appti ard—is—appr d—for—a—eredit
A 100 205 £ + o | 43 + . + £1
greder—s—1+ - SEEer—tEmetyreon o Rm=IT Aoterr e
= 220 2 (D) o
prder - 2=
L \ Th da+ A + A + + £+ =i £
e e fr redy re—amous £—tax—due—for
£+ 4 + ! det s + 3 + het £
puEp £ —thedepartwent o srtaatter—= Hether—+th
+ 3 14 S N 4 + e
tetpeyer—wears P with—the—regutrement B Fratt
+ A 2200 299 g 220 2
= urder - - et -
FAZNY Th + I 13 3 4 + 3 +  +
Eop—e et st b o B e Y
+ o + hall 14+ = 1 4+ o A
B ekt Eer katt—resutt—dn—the atteor—and
4+ N A4+
= Srehrer £y —sweh—eredd
‘er—Fhe—taxpayer—shall beassessed—for—any taxesr
RIS g + A £ 1 + ’ 14
penatties,—eor interest due fromth axpayer roRCompian
itk + 3 + + ot £
o b e o bkt =

Section 11. Section 561.1211, Florida Statutes, is amended
to read:

561.1211 Credit for contributions to K-12 education funding
etigiblenonprofitsecholtarship—fundingorganizatiens.—There is
allowed a credit of 100 percent of an eligible contribution made

to—an—etigible nonprofit scholarship—funding organizatien under
s. 1002.395 against any tax due under s. 563.05, s. 564.06, or

s. 565.12, except excise taxes imposed on wine produced by

manufacturers in this state from products grown in this state.

Page 26 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




755
756
757
758
759
760
761
762
763
764
765
766
767
768
769
770
771
772
773
774
775
776
7717
778
779
780
781
782
783

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48
36-00745D-21 202148
B PERS 11 = g £hi 1 + 4 0900
Heow r—a—ereditattowedunder—this tion—may—Rot &
pereent—of the tax—du a—the—retura—th redit—ds—+takens For

purposes of the distributions of ta
and 564.06(10), the division shall
allowed under this section to ensur
revenue received that is attributab
only in a reduction in distribution
Fund. The provisions of s. 1002.395
authorized by this section.

Section 12. Section 624.51055,
to read:

624.51055 Credit for contribut

x revenue under ss. 561.121
disregard any tax credits

e that any reduction in tax
le to the tax credits results
s to the General Revenue

apply to the credit

Florida Statutes, is amended

ions to K-12 education

g

£ A4

funding eligible nonpreofit Botar

(1) There is allowed a credit

. e
oI ZacTof

P THReThg

of 100 percent of an eligible

contribution made fe—an—eligible nonprofit rotarship—funding
erganizatien under s. 1002.395 sgainastany taxduefor a taxabt
£ +

624-500(1) £+ ded

4
year—uReaer ==3 r—aeat

| 4

L
THE—EFOm B =2

3 1
¥ = S—Ppare—anRacE S

haot 220 g +

1 d g
=2 Pore—aRaer

ape—624-5092. An insurer claiming a
liability under this section shall

additional retaliatory tax levied p
result of claiming such credit. Sec

such credit in any manner.

credit against premium tax
not be required to pay any
ursuant to s. 624.5091 as a

tion 624.5091 does not limit

Page 27 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions;

words underlined are additions.

784
785
786
787
788
789
790
791
792
793
794
795
796
797
798
799
800
801
802
803
804
805
806
807
808
809
810
811
812

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21

(2) The provisions of s.

202148
1002.395 apply to the credit
authorized by this section.

Section 13. Paragraph (a) of subsection (6) of section
1002.20, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

1002.20 K-12 student and parent rights.—Parents of public
school students must receive accurate and timely information
regarding their child’s academic progress and must be informed
of ways they can help their child to succeed in school. K-12
students and their parents are afforded numerous statutory
rights including, but not limited to, the following:

(6) EDUCATIONAL CHOICE.—

(a) Public educational school choices.—Parents of public
school students may seek any public educational school choice
options that are applicable and available to students throughout
the state. These options may include controlled open enrollment,
single-gender programs, lab schools, virtual instruction
programs, charter schools, charter technical career centers,
magnet schools, alternative schools, special programs, auditory-
oral education programs, advanced placement, dual enrollment,
International Baccalaureate, International General Certificate
of Secondary Education (pre-AICE), CAPE digital tools, CAPE
industry certifications, collegiate high school programs,
Advanced International Certificate of Education, early
admissions, credit by examination or demonstration of
competency, the New World School of the Arts, the Florida School
for the Deaf and the Blind, and the Florida Virtual School.
These options may also include the public educational choice
options of the Opportunity Scholarship Program and the Family
Empowerment Scholarship Mekay—Scholtarships—for—Students—with

Page 28 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




813
814
815
816
817
818
819
820
821
822
823
824
825
826
827
828
829
830
831
832
833
834
835
836
837
838
839
840
841

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

bisabitities Program.

Section 14. Subsection (2) of section 1002.23, Florida
Statutes, is amended to read:

1002.23 Family and School Partnership for Student
Achievement Act.—

(2) To facilitate meaningful parent and family involvement,
the Department of Education shall develop guidelines for a
parent guide to successful student achievement which describes
what parents need to know about their child’s educational
progress and how they can help their child to succeed in school.
The guidelines shall include, but need not be limited to:

(a) Parental information regarding:

1. Requirements for their child to be promoted to the next
grade, as provided for in s. 1008.25;

2. Progress of their child toward achieving state and
district expectations for academic proficiency;

3. Assessment results, including report cards and progress
reports;

4. Qualifications of their child’s teachers; and

5. School entry requirements, including required
immunizations and the recommended immunization schedule;

(b) Services available for parents and their children, such
as family literacy services; mentoring, tutorial, and other
academic reinforcement programs; college planning, academic
advisement, and student counseling services; and after-school
programs;

(c) Opportunities for parental participation, such as
parenting classes, adult education, school advisory councils,

and school volunteer programs;

Page 29 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

842
843
844
845
846
847
848
849
850
851
852
853
854
855
856
857
858
859
860
861
862
863
864
865
866
867
868
869
870

CODING: Words strieken are deletions;

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148
(d) Opportunities for parents to learn about rigorous
academic programs that may be available for their child, such as
honors programs, dual enrollment, advanced placement,
International Baccalaureate, International General Certificate
of Secondary Education (pre-AICE), Advanced International
Certificate of Education, Florida Virtual Higk School courses,
and accelerated access to postsecondary education;
(e) Educational choices, as provided for in s. 1002.20(6)+

4 + EERS hol ANE} L ded £
S

lorida tax eredi helarships,—as provi for in

(f) Classroom and test accommodations available for
students with disabilities;

(g) School board rules, policies, and procedures for
student promotion and retention, academic standards, student
assessment, courses of study, instructional materials, and
contact information for school and district offices; and

(h) Resources for information on student health and other
available resources for parents.

Section 15. Paragraph (c) of subsection (2) of section
1002.31, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

1002.31 Controlled open enrollment; Public school parental
choice.—

(2)

(c) Each district school board must provide preferential
treatment in its controlled open enrollment process to all of
the following:

1. Dependent children of active duty military personnel
whose move resulted from military orders;~

2. Children who have been relocated due to a foster care

Page 30 of 158

words underlined are additions.




871
872
873
874
875
876
877
878
879
880
881
882
883
884
885
886
887
888
889
890
891
892
893
894
895
896
897
898
899

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

placement in a different school zone;+

3. Children who move due to a court-ordered change in
custody due to separation or divorce, or the serious illness or
death of a custodial parent;—

4. Students with an individual education plan or a 504

accommodation plan under s. 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of

1973 who are eligible for a McKay-Gardiner Scholarship pursuant
to s. 1002.381; and

5. Students residing in the school district.

Section 16. Section 1002.381, Florida Statutes, is created
to read:

1002.381 The McKay-Gardiner Scholarship.—

(1) ESTABLISHMENT OF PROGRAM.—Beginning with the 2021-2022

school year, the McKay-Gardiner Scholarship Program is

established to provide the option for a parent to better meet

the individual educational needs of his or her eligible child.

All written explanatory materials, including state websites,

scholarship organization materials, letters to parents,

scholarship agreements, and any other written information

describing the program to the public, must refer to a

scholarship granted under this program as a “McKay-Gardiner

Scholarship.”
(2) DEFINITIONS.—As used in this section, the term:

(a) “Approved provider” means a provider approved by the

Agency for Persons with Disabilities, a health care practitioner

as defined in s. 456.001(4), or a provider approved by the

department pursuant to s. 1002.66.

(b) “Curriculum” has the same meaning as provided in s.
1002.394(2) (b) .

Page 31 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

900
901
902
903
904
905
906
907
908
909
910
911
912
913
914
915
916
917
918
919
920
921
922
923
924
925
926
927
928

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

(c) “Department” means the Department of Education.

(d) “Disability” means:

1. For a 3-year-old or 4-year-old child or for a student in

kindergarten through grade 12, that the child has been diagnosed

with any of the following: autism spectrum disorder; cerebral

palsy; Down syndrome; an intellectual disability; Phelan-

McDermid syndrome; Prader-Willi syndrome; spina bifida; being a
high-risk child, as defined in s. 393.063(23) (a); muscular

dystrophy; Williams syndrome; rare diseases which affect patient

populations of fewer than 200,000 individuals in the United

States, as defined by the National Organization for Rare

Disorders; anaphylaxis; deaf; visually impaired; traumatic

brain-injured; hospital or homebound; or dual sensory impaired,

as defined by rules of the State Board of Education and

evidenced by reports from local school districts. As used in

this subparagraph, the term “hospital or homebound” includes a

student who has a medically diagnosed physical or psychiatric

condition or illness, as defined by state board rule, and who is

confined to the home or hospital for more than 6 months.

2. For a student in kindergarten through grade 12, that the

child has been diagnosed with any of the following: a speech

impairment; a language impairment; a hearing impairment; an

orthopedic impairment; an emotional or behavioral disability; a

specific learning disability, including, but not limited to,

dyslexia, dyscalculia, or developmental aphasia; or a

developmental delay.

(e) “Eligible nonprofit scholarship-funding organization”

or “organization” means a state university; or an independent

college or university that is eligible to participate in the

Page 32 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48 Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148 36-00745D-21 202148
929| William L. Boyd, IV, Effective Access to Student Education Grant 958| disability may request and receive from the state a McKay-
930| Program located and chartered in this state which is not for 959| Gardiner Scholarship for the purposes specified in subsection
931 profit and is accredited by the Commission on Colleges of the 960 (5) if:
932 Southern Association of Colleges and Schools; or is a charitable 961 (a) The student:
933 organization that: 962 1. Is a resident of this state;
934 1. Is exempt from federal income tax pursuant to s. 963 2. Is 3 or 4 years of age on or before Septempber 1 of the
935| 501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code; 964| year in which the student applies for program participation, or
936 2. Is a Florida entity formed under chapter 605, chapter 965| 1is eligible to enroll in kindergarten through grade 12 in a
937 607, or chapter 617 and whose principal office is located in 966| public school in this state; and
938 this state; and 967 3. Meets at least one of the following criteria:
939 3. Complies with subsections (12) and (13). 968 a. Has a diagnosis of a disability from a physician who is
940 (f) “Eligible postsecondary educational institution” has 969| licensed under chapter 458 or chapter 459, a psychologist who is
941 the same meaning as s. 1002.394(2) (f). 970 licensed under chapter 490, or a physician who holds an active
942 (g) “Eligible private school” has the same meaning as s. 971 license issued by another state or territory of the United
943 1002.394 (2) (g9) . 972 States, the District of Columbia, or the Commonwealth of Puerto
944 (h) “TEP” means an individual education plan, regardless of 973| Rico;
945| whether the plan has been reviewed or revised within the last 12 974 b. Has an individual education plan that has been written
946 months. 975| 1in accordance with the rules of the State Board of Education; or
947 (i) “Inactive” means that no eligible expenditures have 976 c. Has a 504 accommodation plan issued under s. 504 of the
948| been made from a student scholarship account funded pursuant to 977| Rehabilitation Act of 1973.
949| this section. 978
950 (j) “Job coach” means an individual employed to help people 979| A student with a disability who meets the requirements of
951| with disabilities learn, accommodate, and perform their work 980| subparagraph 1. and sub-subparagraph 3.a., but who turns 3 years
952| duties. 981| of age after September 1, may be determined to be eligible on or
953 (k) “Parent” means a resident of this state who is a 982| after his or her third birthday and may be awarded a scholarship
954 parent, as defined in s. 1000.21(5). 983 if program funds are available.
955 (1) “Program” means the McKay-Gardiner Scholarship Program 984 (b) The parent has applied to an eligible nonprofit
956| established in this section. 985| scholarship-funding organization to participate in the program
957 (3) PROGRAM ELIGIBILITY.—A parent of a student with a 986| by a date as set by the organization for any vacant slots. The

Page 33 of 158 Page 34 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions. CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




987
988
989
990
991
992
993
994
995
996
997
998
999
1000
1001
1002
1003
1004
1005
1006
1007
1008
1009
1010
1011
1012
1013
1014
1015

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

request must be communicated directly to the organization in a

manner that creates a written or electronic record of the

request and the date of receipt of the request.

(4) PROGRAM PROHIBITIONS.—A student is not eligible for the

program if he or she is:

(a) Enrolled in a public school, including, but not limited

to, the Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind, the College-

Preparatory Boarding Academy, a developmental research school

authorized under s. 1002.32, or a charter school authorized

under this chapter. For purposes of this paragraph, a 3- or 4-

year-old child who receives services funded through the Florida

Education Finance Program is considered to be a student enrolled

in a public school.

(b) Enrolled in a school operating for the purpose of

providing educational services to youth in Department of

Juvenile Justice commitment programs.

(c) Issued a temporary 504 accommodation plan under s. 504

of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 which is valid for 6 months or

less.

(d) Receiving any other educational scholarship pursuant to

this chapter.

(e) Not having regular and direct contact with his or her

private school teachers pursuant to s. 1002.421(1) (i), unless he

or she is enrolled in the private school’s transition-to-work

program pursuant to subsection (14) or a home education program

pursuant to s. 1002.41.

(f) Participating in a virtual school, correspondence

school, or distance learning program that receives state funding

pursuant to the student’s participation.

Page 35 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

1016
1017
1018
1019
1020
1021
1022
1023
1024
1025
1026
1027
1028
1029
1030
1031
1032
1033
1034
1035
1036
1037
1038
1039
1040
1041
1042
1043
1044

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148
(5) AUTHORIZED USES OF PROGRAM FUNDS.—Program funds must be

used to meet the individual educational needs of an eligible

student and may be spent only for the following purposes:

(a) Instructional materials, including digital devices,

digital periphery devices, and assistive technology devices that

allow a student to access instruction or instructional content;

training on the use of these devices and related maintenance

agreements; and Internet access to digital instructional

materials.

(b) Curriculum as defined in paragraph (2) (b).

(c) Specialized services by approved providers or by a

hospital in this state which are selected by the parent. These

specialized services may include, but are not limited to:

1. Applied behavior analysis services as provided in ss.
627.6686 and 641.31098.

2. Services provided by a speech-language pathologist as
defined in s. 468.1125(8).

3. Occupational therapy services as specified in s.
468.203.

4. Services provided by a physical therapist as defined in
s. 486.021(5).

5. Services provided by listening and spoken language

specialists and an appropriate acoustical environment for a

child who is deaf or hard of hearing and who has received an

implant or assistive hearing device.

(d) Tuition or fees associated with full-time or part-time

enrollment in any of the following: a home education program, an

eligible private school, or an eligible postsecondary

educational institution; a program offered by the postsecondary

Page 36 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




1045
1046
1047
1048
1049
1050
1051
1052
1053
1054
1055
1056
1057
1058
1059
1060
1061
1062
1063
1064
1065
1066
1067
1068
1069
1070
1071
1072
1073

Florida Senate - 2021

36-00745D-21

SB 48

202148

institution, a private tutoring program authorized under s.

1002.43, a virtual program offered by a department-approved

private online provider that meets the provider qualifications

specified in s. 1002.45(2) (a), or a program offered by the

Florida Virtual School to a private paying student; or an

approved online course offered pursuant to s. 1003.499 or s.

1004.0961.

(e) Fees for nationally standardized, norm-referenced

achievement tests, Advanced Placement examinations, industry

certification examinations, assessments related to postsecondary

education, or other such assessments.

(f) Contributions to the Stanley G. Tate Florida Prepaid

College Program pursuant to s. 1009.98 or the Florida College

Savings Program pursuant to s. 1009.981, for the benefit of the

eligible student.

(g) Contracted services provided by a public school or a

school district, including classes.

A student who receives

services under this paragraph is not considered enrolled in a

public school for the purpose of eligibility as provided in

subsection (4).

(h) Tuition and fees for part-time tutoring services

provided by a person who holds a valid Florida educator’s

certificate issued pursuant to s. 1012.56; a person who holds an

adjunct teaching certificate issued pursuant to s. 1012.57; a

person who has a bachelor’s degree or a graduate degree in the

subject area in which instruction is given; or a person who has

demonstrated a mastery of subject area knowledge as provided in

s. 1012.56(5). Any part-time tutoring undertaken pursuant to

this paragraph does not qualify as regular school attendance as

Page 37 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions;

words underlined are additions.

1074
1075
1076
1077
1078
1079
1080
1081
1082
1083
1084
1085
1086
1087
1088
1089
1090
1091
1092
1093
1094
1095
1096
1097
1098
1099
1100
1101
1102

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148
defined in s. 1003.01(13) (e).

(i) Fees for summer education programs.

(j) Fees for after-school education programs.

(k) Transition services, including a coordinated set of

activities focused on improving the academic and functional

achievement of the student to facilitate his or her movement

from school to post-school activities and based on the

individual student’s needs. Transition services may be provided

by job coaches or pursuant to subsection (14).

(1) Fees for an annual evaluation of educational progress

by a state-certified teacher under s. 1002.41(1) (f), if this

option is chosen for a home education student.

(m) Tuition and fees associated with programs offered by

Voluntary Prekindergarten Education Program providers approved

pursuant to s. 1002.55 and school readiness providers approved

pursuant to s. 1002.88.

(n) Fees for services provided at a center that is a member

of the Professional Association of Therapeutic Horsemanship

International.

(0) Fees for services provided by a therapist who is

certified by the Certification Board for Music Therapists or

credentialed by the Art Therapy Credentials Board, Inc.

(p) Tuition and fees associated with enrollment in a

nationally or internationally recognized research-based training

program, for a child with a neurological disorder or brain

damage.

(q) Tuition and fees associated with a student’s

participation in classes or lessons relating to art, music, or

theater. The instructor of the classes or lessons must:

Page 38 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




1103
1104
1105
1106
1107
1108
1109
1110
1111
1112
1113
1114
1115
1116
1117
1118
1119
1120
1121
1122
1123
1124
1125
1126
1127
1128
1129
1130
1131

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

1. Hold a valid or expired Florida educator’s certificate

issued under s. 1012.56 in art, music, or drama;

2. Have 3 years of employment experience in art, music, or

theater, as demonstrated by employment records;

3. Hold a baccalaureate degree or higher from a

postsecondary educational institution with a major in music,

art, theater, or drama or related field; or

4. Hold a certification or national accreditation in music,

art, theater, or drama.

(r) Transportation expenses, which may not exceed $750

annually, in connection with meeting the student’s educational

needs under this section.

A service provider who receives payments pursuant to this

subsection may not share or refund any moneys from the McKay-

Gardiner Scholarship with the parent or participating student

and may not issue rebates to such persons. A parent, student, or

service provider may not bill an insurance company, Medicaid, or

any other agency for the same services that are paid for with

McKay-Gardiner Scholarship funds. Funding provided pursuant to

this subsection for a child eligible for enrollment in the

Voluntary Prekindergarten Education Program constitutes funding

for the child under part V of this chapter, and no additional

funding may be provided for the child under part V.

(6) TERMS OF THE PROGRAM.—For purposes of continuity of

educational choice and program integrity:

(a)l. Program payments made by the state to an organization

for a McKay-Gardiner Scholarship under this section must

continue until:

Page 39 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

1132
1133
1134
1135
1136
1137
1138
1139
1140
1141
1142
1143
1144
1145
1146
1147
1148
1149
1150
1151
1152
1153
1154
1155
1156
1157
1158
1159
1160

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21

a. A program student’s parent does not renew program

202148

eligibility;

b. The organization determines that a program student is

not eligible for program renewal;

c. The Commissioner of Education suspends or revokes

program participation or use of funds pursuant to subparagraph
(o) (1);

d. A program student’s parent has forfeited participation

in the program for failure to comply with subsection (11);

e. A program student enrolls in a public school; or

f. A program student graduates from high school or attains

22 years of age, whichever occurs first.

2. Reimbursements for program expenditures may continue

until the account balance is expended or the account is closed

pursuant to paragraph (b).

(b)1. The commissioner must close a student’s scholarship

account, and any remaining funds, including, but not limited to,

contributions made to the Stanley G. Tate Florida Prepaid

College Program or earnings from or contributions made to the

Florida College Savings Program using program funds pursuant to

paragraph (5) (f), revert to the state after:

a. Denial or revocation of program eligibility by the

commissioner for fraud or abuse, including, but not limited to,

the student or student’s parent accepting any payment, refund,

or rebate from a provider of services received pursuant to

subsection (5); however, a private school may discount tuition

if the private school deems it necessary;

b. Any period of 3 consecutive years after high school

completion or graduation during which the student has not been

Page 40 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




1161
1162
1163
1164
1165
1166
1167
1168
1169
1170
1171
1172
1173
1174
1175
1176
1177
1178
1179
1180
1181
1182
1183
1184
1185
1186
1187
1188
1189

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

enrolled in an eligible postsecondary educational institution or

a program offered by such an institution; or

c. Two consecutive fiscal years in which an account has

been inactive.

2. The commissioner must notify the parent and the

organization when a McKay-Gardiner Scholarship account is closed

and program funds revert to the state.

(7) SCHOOL DISTRICT OBLIGATIONS; PARENTAL OPTIONS.—

(a) By each April 1 and within 10 days after an individual

education plan meeting or a 504 accommodation plan is issued

under s. 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, a school

district shall notify the parent of the student of all options

available pursuant to this section, and shall inform the parent

of the availability of the department’s website for additional

information on McKay-Gardiner Scholarships.

(b)1. The parent of a student with a disability who does

not have an IEP or who seeks a reevaluation of an existing IEP

may request an IEP meeting and evaluation from the school

district in order to obtain or revise a matrix of services. The

school district shall notify a parent who has made a request for

an IEP that the district is required to complete the IEP and

matrix of services within 30 days after receiving notice of the

parent’s request. The school district shall conduct a meeting

and develop an IEP and matrix of services within 30 days after

receipt of the parent’s request in accordance with State Board

of Education rule.

2.a. The school district must provide the student’s parent

and the department with the student’s matrix level within 10

calendar days after its completion.

Page 41 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

1190
1191
1192
1193
1194
1195
1196
1197
1198
1199
1200
1201
1202
1203
1204
1205
1206
1207
1208
1209
1210
1211
1212
1213
1214
1215
1216
1217
1218

CODING: Words strieken are deletions;

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

b. A school district may change a matrix of services only

if the change is a result of an IEP reevaluation or to correct a

technical, typographical, or calculation error.

(c) For each student participating in the program who

chooses to participate in statewide, standardized assessments

under s. 1008.22 or the Florida Alternate Assessment, the school

district in which the student resides must notify the student

and his or her parent about the locations and times of all

statewide, standardized assessments.

(8) PRIVATE SCHOOL ELIGIBILITY AND OBLIGATIONS.—An eligible

private school may be sectarian or nonsectarian and shall:

(a) Comply with all requirements for private schools

participating in state school choice scholarship programs

pursuant to s. 1002.421.

(b)1. Annually administer or make provision for students

participating in the program in grades 3 through 10 to take one

of the nationally norm-referenced tests identified by the

Department of Education or the statewide assessments

administered pursuant to s. 1008.22. This subparagraph does not

apply to students with disabilities for whom standardized

testing is not appropriate. A participating private school shall

report a student’s scores to the parent.

2. Administer the statewide assessments pursuant to s.

1008.22 if a private school chooses to offer the statewide

assessments. A participating private school may choose to offer

and administer the statewide assessments to all students who

attend the private school in grades 3 through 10 and must submit

a request in writing to the Department of Education by March 1

of each year in order to administer the statewide assessments in

Page 42 of 158

words underlined are additions.




Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48 Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48
36-00745D-21 202148 36-00745D-21 202148
1219| the subsequent school year. 1248| total expenditures for the purposes specified in subsection (5);
1220 1249 the types of providers of services to students; and any other
1221 If a private school fails to meet the requirements of this 1250 information deemed necessary by the department.
1222 subsection or s. 1002.421, the commissioner may determine that 1251 (f) Compare the list of students participating in the
1223| the private school is ineligible to participate in the 1252| program with the public school student enrollment lists,
1224 scholarship program. 1253| Voluntary Prekindergarten Education Program enrollment lists,
1225 (9) DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION OBLIGATIONS.—The department 1254| and the list of students participating in school choice
1226 shall: 1255 scholarship programs established pursuant to this chapter before
1227 (a) Comply with s. 1002.394(8) (a)-(g9). 1256| each scholarship award is provided to the organization, and
1228 (b) Maintain on its website a list of approved providers as 1257 subsequently throughout the school year, to avoid duplicate
1229 required by s. 1002.66, eligible postsecondary educational 1258| payments and confirm program eligibility.
1230| institutions, eligible private schools, and eligible 1259 (10) COMMISSIONER OF EDUCATION AUTHORITY AND OBLIGATIONS.—
1231 organizations and may identify or provide links to lists of 1260 (a) The Commissioner of Education:
1232 other approved providers. 1261 1. May suspend or revoke program participation or use of
1233 (c) Require each organization to verify eligible 1262| program funds by the student or participation or eligibility of
1234 expenditures before the distribution of funds for any 1263 an organization, eligible postsecondary educational institution,
1235| expenditures made pursuant to paragraphs (5) (a) and (b). Review 1264| approved provider, or other party for a violation of this
1236| of expenditures made for services specified in paragraphs 1265| section.
1237 (5) (c)-(r) may be completed after the purchase is made. 1266 2. May determine the length of, and conditions for lifting,
1238 (d) Investigate any written complaint of a violation of 1267| a suspension or revocation specified in this subsection.
1239| this section by a parent, a student, a private school, a public 1268 3. May recover unexpended program funds or withhold payment
1240 school, a school district, an organization, a provider, or 1269 of an equal amount of program funds to recover program funds
1241| another appropriate party in accordance with the process 1270| that were not authorized for use.
1242| established under s. 1002.421. 1271 4. Shall deny or terminate program participation upon a
1243 (e) Require quarterly reports by an organization, which 1272| parent’s forfeiture of a McKay-Gardiner Scholarship pursuant to
1244 must include, at a minimum, the number of students participating 1273 subsection (11).
1245| in the program; the demographics of program participants; the 1274 (b) In determining whether to suspend or revoke
1246| disability category of program participants; the matrix level of 1275| participation or 1ift a suspension or revocation in accordance
1247 services, if known; the program award amount per student; the 1276| with this subsection, the commissioner may consider factors that
Page 43 of 158 Page 44 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions. CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48 Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148 36-00745D-21 202148
1277 include, but are not limited to, acts or omissions that led to a 1306 described in subsection (5).
1278| previous suspension or revocation of participation in a state or 1307 3. Affirm that the parent is responsible for the education
1279| federal program or an education scholarship program; failure to 1308| of his or her student by, as applicable:
1280| reimburse the organization for funds improperly received or 1309 a. Requiring the student to take an assessment in
1281 retained; failure to reimburse government funds improperly 1310 accordance with paragraph (8) (b);
1282 received or retained; imposition of a prior criminal sanction 1311 b. Providing an annual evaluation in accordance with s.
1283| related to the person or entity or its officers or employees; 1312 1002.41(1) (f); or
1284 imposition of a civil fine or administrative fine, license 1313 c. Requiring the child to take any preassessments and
1285 revocation or suspension, or program eligibility suspension, 1314 postassessments selected by the provider if the child is 4 years
1286 termination, or revocation related to a person’s or entity’s 1315 of age and is enrolled in a program provided by an eligible
1287| management or operation; or other types of criminal proceedings 1316| Voluntary Prekindergarten Education Program provider. This sub-
1288| 1in which the person or entity or its officers or employees were 1317 subparagraph does not apply to a student with disabilities for
1289 found guilty of, regardless of adjudication, or entered a plea 1318| whom a preassessment and postassessment are not appropriate. A
1290 of nolo contendere or guilty to, any offense involving fraud, 1319| participating provider shall report a student’s scores to the
1291| deceit, dishonesty, or moral turpitude. 1320| parent.
1292 (11) PARENT AND STUDENT RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PROGRAM 1321 4. Affirm that the student remains in good standing with
1293| PARTICIPATION.—A parent who applies for program participation 1322| the provider or school if one of those options is selected by
1294| wunder this section is exercising his or her parental option to 1323| the parent.
1295| determine the appropriate placement or services that best meet 1324 (b) The parent must file an application for initial program
1296| the needs of his or her child. 1325| participation with an organization by a date established by the
1297 (a) To satisfy or maintain program eligibility, including 1326| organization.
1298 eligibility to receive and spend program payments, the parent 1327 (c) The parent must enroll his or her child in a program
1299| must sign an agreement with the organization and annually submit 1328| from a Voluntary Prekindergarten Education Program provider
1300| a sworn compliance statement to the organization to: 1329| authorized under s. 1002.55, a school readiness provider
1301 1. Affirm that the student is enrolled in a program that 1330 authorized under s. 1002.88, or an eligible private school if
1302| meets regular school attendance requirements as provided in s. 1331| either option is selected by the parent.
1303 1003.01(13) (b), (c), or (d). 1332 (d) The parent must renew participation in the program by a
1304 2. Affirm that the program funds are used only for 1333| date set by the nonprofit scholarship-funding organization in
1305| authorized purposes serving the student’s educational needs, as 1334| order for a student to be eligible to receive funding. A student

Page 45 of 158 Page 46 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions. CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




1335
1336
1337
1338
1339
1340
1341
1342
1343
1344
1345
1346
1347
1348
1349
1350
1351
1352
1353
1354
1355
1356
1357
1358
1359
1360
1361
1362
1363

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

whose participation in the program is not renewed may continue

to spend scholarship funds that are in his or her account from

prior years unless the account is closed pursuant to paragraph

(6) (b) . Notwithstanding any changes to the student’s IEP, a

student who was previously eligible for participation in the

program remains eligible to apply for renewal. However, for a

high-risk child to continue to participate in the program in the

school year after he or she reaches 6 years of age, the child’s

application for renewal of program participation must contain

documentation that the child has a disability as defined in

paragraph (2) (d), other than high-risk status.

(e) The parent is responsible for procuring the services

necessary to educate the student. If a parent does not procure

the necessary educational services for the student and the

student’s account has been inactive for 2 consecutive fiscal

years, the student’s account must be closed pursuant to

paragraph (6) (b). When the student receives a McKay-Gardiner

Scholarship, the district school board is not obligated to

provide the student with a free, appropriate public education.

For purposes of s. 1003.57 and the Individuals with Disabilities

in Education Act, a participating student has only those rights

that apply to all other unilaterally, parentally placed

students, except that, when requested by the parent, school

district personnel must develop an individual education plan or

matrix level of services.

(f) The parent is responsible for all eligible expenses in

excess of the amount of the McKay-Gardiner Scholarship.

(g) The parent may not transfer any prepaid college plan or

college savings plan funds contributed pursuant to paragraph

Page 47 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

1364
1365
1366
1367
1368
1369
1370
1371
1372
1373
1374
1375
1376
1377
1378
1379
1380
1381
1382
1383
1384
1385
1386
1387
1388
1389
1390
1391
1392

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

(5) (f) to another beneficiary while the plan contains funds

contributed pursuant to this section.

(h) The parent may not receive a payment, refund, or rebate

from an approved provider of any services under this program.

A participant who fails to comply with this subsection forfeits

the McKay-Gardiner Scholarship.
(12) NONPROFIT SCHOLARSHIP-FUNDING ORGANIZATIONS;

APPLICATION.—In order to participate in the scholarship program

created under this section, a charitable organization that seeks

to be a nonprofit scholarship-funding organization must submit

an application for initial approval or renewal to the Office of

Independent Education and Parental Choice no later than

September 1 of each year before the school year for which the

organization intends to offer scholarships.

(a) An application for initial approval must include:

1. A copy of the organization’s incorporation documents and

registration with the Division of Corporations of the Department

of State.

2. A copy of the organization’s Internal Revenue Service

determination letter as a s. 501 (c) (3) not-for-profit

organization.

3. A description of the organization’s financial plan which

demonstrates sufficient funds to operate throughout the school

year.

4. A description of the geographic region that the

organization intends to serve and an analysis of the demand and

unmet need for eligible students in that area.

5. The organization’s organizational chart.

Page 48 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




1393
1394
1395
1396
1397
1398
1399
1400
1401
1402
1403
1404
1405
1406
1407
1408
1409
1410
1411
1412
1413
1414
1415
1416
1417
1418
1419
1420
1421

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

6. A description of the criteria and methodology that the

organization will use to evaluate scholarship eligibility.

7. A description of the application process, including

deadlines and any associated fees.

8. A description of the deadlines for attendance

verification and scholarship payments.

9. A copy of the organization’s policies on conflict of

interest and whistleblowers.

10. A copy of a surety bond or letter of credit to secure

the faithful performance of the obligations of the eligible

nonprofit scholarship-funding organization in accordance with

this section in an amount equal to 25 percent of the scholarship

funds anticipated for each school year or $100,000, whichever is

greater. The surety bond or letter of credit must specify that

any claim against the bond or letter of credit may be made only

by an eligible nonprofit scholarship-funding organization to

provide scholarships to and on behalf of students who would have

had scholarships funded if it were not for the diversion of

funds giving rise to the claim against the bond or letter of

credit.

(b) In addition to the information required under paragraph

(a), an application for renewal must include:

1. A surety bond or letter of credit to secure the faithful

performance of the obligations of the eligible nonprofit

scholarship-funding organization in accordance with this section

equal to the amount of undisbursed funds held by the

organization based on the annual report submitted pursuant to

paragraph (13) (1) . The amount of the surety bond or letter of
credit must be at least $100,000, but not more than $25 million.

Page 49 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

1422
1423
1424
1425
1426
1427
1428
1429
1430
1431
1432
1433
1434
1435
1436
1437
1438
1439
1440
1441
1442
1443
1444
1445
1446
1447
1448
1449
1450

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

The surety bond or letter of credit must specify that any claim

against the bond or letter of credit may be made only by an

eligible nonprofit scholarship-funding organization to provide

scholarships to and on behalf of students who would have had

scholarships funded if it were not for the diversion of funds

giving rise to the claim against the bond or letter of credit.

2. The organization’s completed Internal Revenue Service

Form 990 submitted no later than November 30 of the year before

the school year for which the organization intends to offer the

scholarships, notwithstanding the September 1 application

deadline.

3. A copy of any statutorily required audit which the

organization must provide to the Department of Education and

Auditor General.

4. An annual report that includes:

a. The number of students who completed applications, by

county and by grade.

b. The number of students who were approved for

scholarships, by county and by grade.

c. The number of students who received funding for

scholarships within each funding category, by county and by

grade.

d. The amount of funds received, the amount of funds

distributed in scholarships, and an accounting of remaining

funds and the obligation of those funds.

e. A detailed accounting of how the organization spent the

administrative funds allowable under paragraph (13) (f).

(c) In consultation with the Department of Revenue and the

Chief Financial Officer, the Office of Independent Education and

Page 50 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




1451
1452
1453
1454
1455
1456
1457
1458
1459
1460
1461
1462
1463
1464
1465
1466
1467
1468
1469
1470
1471
1472
1473
1474
1475
1476
1477
1478
1479

CODING: Words strieken are deletions;

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

Parental Choice shall review the application. The Department of

Education shall notify the organization in writing of any

deficiencies within 30 days after receipt of the application and

allow the organization 30 days to correct any deficiencies.

(d) Within 30 days after receipt of the finalized

application by the Office of Independent Education and Parental

Choice, the Commissioner of Education shall recommend approval

or disapproval of the application to the State Board of

Education. The State Board of Education shall consider the

application and recommendation at the next scheduled meeting,

adhering to appropriate meeting notice requirements. If the

State Board of Education disapproves the organization’s

application, it must provide the organization with a written

explanation of that determination. The State Board of

Education’s action is not subject to chapter 120.

(e) If the State Board of Education disapproves the renewal

of a nonprofit scholarship-funding organization, the

organization must notify the affected eligible students and

parents of the decision within 15 days after disapproval. An

eligible student affected by the disapproval of an

organization’s participation remains eligible under this section

until the end of the school year in which the organization was

disapproved. The student must apply and be accepted by another

eligible nonprofit scholarship-funding organization for the

upcoming school year. The student must be given priority under

paragraph (13) (e).

(f) All remaining student accounts with funds held by a

nonprofit scholarship-funding organization that is disapproved

for participation must be transferred to the student’s account

Page 51 of 158

words underlined are additions.

1480
1481
1482
1483
1484
1485
1486
1487
1488
1489
1490
1491
1492
1493
1494
1495
1496
1497
1498
1499
1500
1501
1502
1503
1504
1505
1506
1507
1508

Florida Senate - 2021

36-00745D-21

SB 48

202148

established with the eligible nonprofit scholarship-funding

organization that accepts the student. All transferred funds

must be deposited by the eligible nonprofit scholarship-funding

organization receiving such funds into the student’s scholarship

account. All other remaining funds must be transferred to the

department. All transferred amounts received by any eligible

nonprofit scholarship-funding organization must be separately

disclosed in the annual financial audit required under

subsection (13).

(g) A nonprofit scholarship-funding organization is a

renewing organization if it maintains continuous approval and

participation in the program. An organization that chooses not

to participate for 1 year or more or is disapproved to

participate for 1 year or more must submit an application for

initial approval in order to participate in the program again.

(h) The State Board of Education shall adopt rules

providing guidelines for receiving, reviewing, and approving

applications for new and renewing nonprofit scholarship-funding

organizations. The rules must include a process for compiling

input and recommendations from the Chief Financial Officer, the

Department of Revenue,

and the Department of Education. The

rules also must require that the nonprofit scholarship-funding

organization make a brief presentation to assist the State Board

of Education in its decision.

(i) A state university; or an independent nonprofit college

chartered in this state or independent nonprofit university

chartered in this state that are eligible to participate in the

William L. Boyd, IV, Effective Access to Student Education Grant

Program and are accredited by the Commission on Colleges of the

Page 52 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




1509
1510
1511
1512
1513
1514
1515
1516
1517
1518
1519
1520
1521
1522
1523
1524
1525
1526
1527
1528
1529
1530
1531
1532
1533
1534
1535
1536
1537

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

Southern Association of Colleges and Schools is exempt from the

initial or renewal application process, but must file a

registration notice with the Department of Education to be an

eligible nonprofit scholarship-funding organization. The State

Board of Education shall adopt rules that identify the procedure

for filing the registration notice with the department. The

rules must identify appropriate reporting requirements for

fiscal, programmatic, and performance accountability purposes

consistent with this section, but may not exceed the

requirements for eligible nonprofit scholarship-funding

organizations for charitable organizations.
(13) OBLIGATIONS OF ELIGIBLE SCHOLARSHIP-FUNDING
ORGANIZATIONS.—An organization may establish McKay-Gardiner

Scholarships for eligible students by:

(a) Complying with the requirements of s. 1002.394(11) (a)-

(h) .

(b) Receiving applications and determining student

eligibility in accordance with the requirements of this section.

When an application is approved, the organization must provide

the department with information on the student to enable the

department to determine student funding in accordance with

subsection (15).

(c) Providing scholarships on a first-come, first-served

basis, based upon the funds provided, and notifying parents of

their respective student’s receipt of a scholarship.

(d) Establishing a date by which a parent must confirm

initial or continuing participation in the program.

(e) Reviewing applications and awarding scholarship funds

to approved applicants using the following order of priority:

Page 53 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

1538
1539
1540
1541
1542
1543
1544
1545
1546
1547
1548
1549
1550
1551
1552
1553
1554
1555
1556
1557
1558
1559
1560
1561
1562
1563
1564
1565
1566

CODING: Words strieken are deletions;

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148
l.a. For the 2021-2022 school year, a student who received

a John M. McKay Scholarship for Students with Disabilities or a

Gardiner Scholarship in the 2020-2021 school year and meets the

eligibility requirements in subsection (3) is eligible for a

McKay-Gardiner Scholarship in the 2021-2022 school year.

b. For the 2022-2023 school year and thereafter, renewing

students from the previous school year under this section.

2. Students retained on the previous school year’s waiting

list.

3. An eligible student who meets the criteria for an

initial award pursuant to subsection (3).

An approved student who does not receive a scholarship must be

placed on the waiting list in the order in which his or her

application is approved. An eligible student who does not

receive a scholarship within the fiscal year shall be retained

on the waiting list for the subsequent year.

(f) Using an amount not to exceed 2.5 percent of the total

calculated amount of all scholarships awarded under this section

for administrative expenses associated with performing functions

authorized under this section.

(g) Verifying qualifying educational expenditures pursuant

to paragraph (9) (¢) and requesting the return of any funds used

for unauthorized purposes.

(h) Returning any remaining program funds to the department

pursuant to paragraph (6) (b).

(i) Notifying the parent about the availability of, and the

requirements associated with requesting, an initial IEP or IEP

reevaluation every 3 years for each student participating in the

Page 54 of 158

words underlined are additions.




1567
1568
1569
1570
1571
1572
1573
1574
1575
1576
1577
1578
1579
1580
1581
1582
1583
1584
1585
1586
1587
1588
1589
1590
1591
1592
1593
1594
1595

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

program.

(j) Documenting each scholarship student’s eligibility for

a fiscal year before granting a scholarship for that fiscal year

pursuant to paragraph (3) (b). A student is ineligible for a

scholarship if the student’s account has been inactive for 2

consecutive fiscal years and the student’s account has been

closed pursuant to paragraph (6) (b).

(k) Submitting in a timely fashion any information

requested by the department relating to the program.

(1) Preparing and submitting quarterly reports to the

department pursuant to paragraph (9) (e).

(m) Notifying the department of any violation of this

section.

(14) TRANSITION-TO-WORK PROGRAM.—A student participating in

the McKay-Gardiner Scholarship Program who is at least 17 years

of age, but not older than 22 years of age, and who has not

received a high school diploma or certificate of completion is

eligible for enrollment in a transition-to-work program provided

by a private school or job coach. A transition-to-work program

must consist of academic instruction, work skills training, and

a volunteer or paid work experience.

(a) To offer a transition-to-work program, a participating

private school or job coach must:

1. Develop a transition-to-work program plan, which must

include a written description of the academic instruction and

work skills training students will receive and the goals for

students in the program.

2. Submit the transition-to-work program plan to the Office

of Independent Education and Parental Choice.

Page 55 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

1596
1597
1598
1599
1600
1601
1602
1603
1604
1605
1606
1607
1608
1609
1610
1611
1612
1613
1614
1615
1616
1617
1618
1619
1620
1621
1622
1623
1624

Florida Senate - 2021

36-00745D-21

SB 48

202148

3. Develop a personalized transition-to-work program plan

for each student enrolled in the program. The student’s parent,

the student, and the school principal or job coach must sign the

personalized plan. The personalized plan must be submitted to

the Office of Independent Education and Parental Choice upon

request by the office.

4. Provide a release of liability form that must be signed

by the student’s parent, the student, and a representative of

the business offering the volunteer or paid work experience.

5. Assign a case manager or job coach to visit the

student’s job site on a weekly basis to observe the student and,

if necessary, provide support and guidance to the student.

6. Provide to the parent and student a quarterly report

that documents and explains the student’s progress and

performance in the program.

7. Maintain accurate attendance and performance records for

the student.

(b) A student enrolled in a transition-to-work program

must, at a minimum:

1. Receive 15 instructional hours that must include

academic instruction and work skills training.

2. Participate in 10 hours of work at the student’s

volunteer or paid work experience.

(c) To participate in a transition-to-work program, a

business must:

1. Maintain an accurate record of the student’s performance

and hours worked and provide the information to the private

school.

2. Comply with all state and federal child labor laws.

Page 56 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions;

words underlined are additions.




Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48 Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148 36-00745D-21 202148
1625 (15) FUNDING AND PAYMENT.— 1654 3. For a student with a 504 plan, the calculated
1626 (a) The scholarship is established for up to 50,000 student 1655 scholarship amount must be based upon the grade level and
1627| FTE annually beginning with the 2021-2022 school year. For the 1656| district school to which the student would have been assigned as
1628 2022-2023 school year and each year thereafter, the maximum 1657 97.5 percent of the funds per unweighted full-time equivalent in
1629| number of student FTE in the scholarship program under this 1658| the Florida Education Finance Program for a student in the basic
1630 section must increase by 7 percent of the total student FTE for 1659 education program established pursuant to s. 1011.62(1) (c)1l.,
1631| the prior year. 1660 plus a per-full-time equivalent share of funds for all
1632 1. For a student who has a Level I to Level III matrix of 1661 categorical programs, as funded in the General Appropriations
1633| services or a doctor’s diagnosis, the calculated scholarship 1662| Act.
1634 amount for a student participating in the program must be based 1663 (b) At the time of each Florida Education Finance Program
1635| wupon the grade level and district school to which the student 1664 student membership survey, the scholarship funding organization
1636| would have been assigned as 97.5 percent of the funds per 1665| shall report to the Department of Education student enrollment,
1637 unweighted full-time equivalent in the Florida Education Finance 1666 FTE, and total award amounts by county, delineated by FEFP
1638 Program for a student in the basic exceptional student education 1667 program, and grade and matrix level for all students who are
1639| program pursuant to s. 1011.62(1) (c)1l. and (e)l.c., plus a per- 1668| participating in the McKay-Gardiner Scholarship Program.
1640 full-time equivalent share of funds for all categorical 1669 Students with a 504 plan must be separately identified. For the
1641 programs, as funded in the General Appropriations Act, except 1670| purpose of this paragraph, an FTE shall be equal to four
1642| that for the exceptional student education guaranteed allocation 1671| gquarterly scholarship payments.
1643 as provided in s. 1011.62(1) (e)l.c. and 2., the funds must be 1672 (c) Following notification on July 1, September 1, December
1644| allocated based on the school district’s average funds per 1673| 1, and February 1 of the number of program participants, the
1645| Exceptional Student Education student. 1674| department shall transfer the amount calculated pursuant to
1646 2. For a student with a Level IV or Level V matrix of 1675| paragraph (a) to organizations for quarterly disbursement to
1647 services, the calculated scholarship amount must be based upon 1676| accounts maintained by organizations pursuant to paragraph
1648 the district school to which the student would have been 1677 (13) (a) for parents of participating students. When a student
1649 assigned as 97.5 percent of the funds per full-time equivalent 1678 enters the scholarship program, the department must receive from
1650| for the Level IV or Level V Exceptional Student Education 1679| an organization all documentation required for the student’s
1651| program pursuant to s. 1011.62(1) (c)2.a. or b., plus a per-full- 1680| participation at least 30 days before the first quarterly
1652 time equivalent share of funds for all categorical programs, as 1681 scholarship payment is made for the student.
1653| funded in the General Appropriations Act. 1682 (d) Upon notification from the organization that an

Page 57 of 158 Page 58 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions. CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48 Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148 36-00745D-21 202148
1683| application has been approved for the program, the department 1712| Legislative Auditing Committee.
1684 shall release the student’s scholarship funds to the 1713 (b) At least once every 3 years, the Auditor General shall
1685| organization, to be deposited into the student’s account in four 1714 conduct an operational audit of accounts and records of each
1686| equal amounts no later than September 1, November 1, February 1, 1715| organization that participates in the program. As part of this
1687 and April 1 of each school year in which the scholarship is in 1716 audit, the Auditor General, at a minimum, shall verify the total
1688| force. 1717| number of students served and the eligibility of reimbursements
1689 (e) Accrued interest in the student’s account is in 1718| made by the organization and transmit that information to the
1690 addition to, and not part of, the awarded funds. Program funds 1719 department. The Auditor General shall provide the commissioner
1691 include both the awarded funds and accrued interest. 1720| with a copy of each annual operational audit performed pursuant
1692 (f) The organization may develop a system for payment of 1721 to this subsection within 10 days after the audit is finalized.
1693| benefits by funds transfer, including, but not limited to, debit 1722 (c) The Auditor General shall notify the department of any
1694| cards, electronic payment cards, or any other means of payment 1723| organization that fails to comply with a request for
1695| which the department deems to be commercially viable or cost- 1724 information.
1696 effective. A student’s scholarship award may not be reduced for 1725 (17) OBLIGATIONS RELATED TO APPROVED PROVIDERS.—The
1697| debit card or electronic payment fees. Commodities or services 1726| Department of Health, the Agency for Persons with Disabilities,
1698 related to the development of such a system must be procured by 1727 and the Department of Education shall coordinate with an
1699| competitive solicitation unless they are purchased from a state 1728| organization to provide easy or automated access to lists of
1700| term contract pursuant to s. 287.056. 1729| 1licensed providers of services specified in paragraph (5) (¢c) to
1701 (g) Moneys received pursuant to this section do not 1730| ensure efficient administration of the program.
1702 constitute taxable income to the qualified student or the parent 1731 (18) LIABILITY.—The state is not liable for the awarding of
1703| of the qualified student. 1732 funds or for any use of funds awarded under this section.
1704 (16) OBLIGATIONS OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL.— 1733 (19) SCOPE OF AUTHORITY.—This section does not expand the
1705 (a) The Auditor General shall review all audit reports 1734 authority of the state, its officers, or any school district to
1706| submitted pursuant to subsection (13). The Auditor General shall 1735| impose additional regulation on participating private schools,
1707 request any significant items that were omitted in violation of 1736 independent postsecondary educational institutions, and private
1708 a rule adopted by the Auditor General. The organization shall 1737 providers beyond that reasonably necessary to enforce
1709| provide such items within 45 days after the date of the request. 1738| requirements expressly set forth in this section.
1710| If the scholarship-funding organization does not comply with the 1739 (20) RULES.—The State Board of Education shall adopt rules
1711| Auditor General’s request, the Auditor General must notify the 1740| pursuant to ss. 120.536(1) and 120.54 to administer this

Page 59 of 158 Page 60 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions. CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




1741
1742
1743
1744
1745
1746
1747
1748
1749
1750
1751
1752
1753
1754
1755
1756
1757
1758
1759
1760
1761
1762
1763
1764
1765
1766
1767
1768
1769

Florida Senate - 2021

36-00745D-21
section.

Section 17. Section 1002.385, F

SB 48

202148

lorida Statutes, is

repealed.
Section 18. Section 1002.39, F1

orida Statutes, is repealed.

Section 19. Section 1002.394, F
to read:

1002.394 The Family Empowerment

(1) PURPOSE.—The Family Empower:
established to provide children of £
have limited financial resources wit
achieve success in their education.

(2) DEFINITIONS.—As used in thi

(a) “Approved provider” means a

lorida Statutes, is amended

Scholarship Program.—
ment Scholarship Program is
amilies in this state which

h educational options to

s section, the term:

provider approved by the

+ £ of Td +

department “Department’ means—the Db

(b) “Curriculum” means a comple

jSa=s=msiicray e eatTon.

te course of study for a

particular content area or grade level, including any required

supplemental materials, teachers’ ma

nuals, and associated online

instruction.

(c) “Department” means the Depa

rtment of Education.

(d) “Direct certification list”

means the certified list of

children who qualify for the food as

sistance program, the

Temporary Assistance for Needy Famil

ies Program, or the Food

Distribution Program on Indian Reser

vations provided to the

Department of Education by the Depar

tment of Children and

Families.

(e) “Eligible nonprofit scholar

ship-funding organization”

or “organization” means a state university, an independent

college or university that is eligib

le to participate in the

William L. Boyd, IV, Effective Acces

s to Student Education Grant

Page 61 of
CODING: Words strieken are deletions;

158

words underlined are additions.

1770
1771
1772
1773
1774
1775
1776
1777
1778
1779
1780
1781
1782
1783
1784
1785
1786
1787
1788
1789
1790
1791
1792
1793
1794
1795
1796
1797
1798

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

Program located and chartered in this state which is not for

profit and is accredited by the Commission on Colleges of the

Southern Association of Colleges and Schools, or is a charitable

organization that: hes—th ame—meaning—as—provided—in
100239525~
1. Is exempt from federal income tax pursuant to s.

501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code;

2. Is a Florida entity formed under chapter 605, chapter

607, or chapter 617 and whose principal office is located in

this state; and

3. Complies with subsections (11) and (14).

(f) “Eligible postsecondary educational institution” means

a Florida College System institution; a state university; a

school district technical center; a school district adult

general education center; an independent college or university

that is eligible to participate in the William L. Boyd, IV,

Effective Access to Student Education Grant Program under s.

1009.89; or an accredited independent postsecondary educational

institution, as defined in s. 1005.02, which is licensed to

operate in this state under part III of chapter 1005.

(g)+4e)> “Eligible private school” means a private school as

defined in s. 1002.01 located in this state which offers an

education to students in any grade from Kindergarten through

grade 12 and:
1. Meets the requirements of ss. 1002.42 and 1002.421; and

2. Meets the applicable requirements imposed under this

chapter, if the private school participates in a scholarship

program under this chapter kas—h ame—meaningas—providedin

Page 62 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48 Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148 36-00745D-21 202148
1799 (h) “Household income” has the same meaning as the term 1828 school bus stop.
1800 “income” as defined in the Income Eligibility Guidelines for 1829 (3) INITIAL SCHOLARSHIP ELIGIBILITY.—A student is eligible
1801 free and reduced price meals under the National School Lunch 1830| for a Family Empowerment Scholarship under this section if the
1802 Program in 7 C.F.R. part 210 as published in the Federal 1831 student meets the following criteria:
1803| Register by the United States Department of Agriculture. 1832 (a)1l. The student is on the direct certification list as
1804 (i) “Inactive” means that no eligible expenditures have 1833 defined in paragraph (2) (d) purswvant—t —+002-395+(2}+e) or the
1805| been made from a student scholarship account funded pursuant to 1834 student’s household income level does not exceed 300 485 percent
1806| this section. 1835| of the federal poverty level or an adjusted maximum percent of
1807 (j) “Incident” means battery; harassment; hazing; bullying; 1836 the federal poverty level established pursuant to paragraph (e);
1808 kidnapping; physical attack; robbery; sexual offenses, 1837| or
1809 harassment, assault, or battery; threat or intimidation; or 1838 2. The student is:
1810| fighting at school, as defined by the department in accordance 1839 a. Currently placed, or during the previous state fiscal
1811 with s. 1006.147(4). 1840 year was placed, in foster care or in out-of-home care as
1812 (k) “Owner or operator” includes: 1841| defined in s. 39.01;
1813 1. An owner, president, officer, or director of an eligible 1842 b. A sibling of a student who is participating in the
1814 nonprofit scholarship-funding organization or a person with 1843 scholarship program under this subsection, if the student
1815 equivalent decisionmaking authority over an eligible nonprofit 1844 resides in the same household as the sibling; or
1816| scholarship-funding organization. 1845 c. Enrolled in a Florida public school in kindergarten
1817 2. An owner, operator, superintendent, or principal of an 1846 through grade 12 and reported an incident in accordance with
1818| eligible private school or a person with equivalent 1847| paragraph (7) (b)
1819| decisionmaking authority over an eligible private school. 1848 3—TFhe——student!shouschotdincome—= ¢ Aot 4360
1820 (1)+4e) “Parent” means a resident of this state who is a 1849| percent—ofthe federal o eyl 1—or—an—adiusted mascimum
1821| parent, as defined in s. 1000.21. 1850| perecent—ofthe federal poverty tevel asestabliished pursuant—te
1822 (m)+4e} “Program” means the Family Empowerment Scholarship 1851| paragraph—e)r.
1823| Program. 1852
1824 (n) “School” means any educational program or activity 1853| A student who initially receives a scholarship based on
1825| conducted by a public K-12 educational institution, any school- 1854| eligibility under this subsection subparagraph—2+ remains
1826| related or school-sponsored program or activity, and riding on a 1855| eligible to participate until the student graduates from high
1827 school bus as defined in s. 1006.25(1), including waiting at a 1856 school or attains the age of 21 years, whichever occurs first,

Page 63 of 158 Page 64 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions. CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48 Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148 36-00745D-21 202148
1857 regardless of the student’s household income level. A—siblingeof 1886 om—a—fored
1858| a—student—whods partieipating—in—th kotarshipprogramunder 1887 tatieon—order r—a—foster—echild—+ mpt—from—the priorpubtt
1859| £ht Sre tien—+ Hegible—for—a rotarship—3+f—+th tadert 1888 ool —attendan reguirement—under—this paragraph,—butma
1860| <resides—in—thesame—housechold—as—thesibling~ 1889| meet—th ther—eligibility reguirements specifiedunder—+this
1861 (b)3= The student is eligible to enroll in kindergarten 1890 tion—teoparticipate inthe program.
1862| through grade 12 in a public school in this state+ 1891 (c) The parent has applied to an eligible nonprofit
1863 —The—student—has—spent—the prieor sechool—year—in 1892 scholarship-funding organization to participate in the program
1864| attendan st—a—Florida—publs hool;—or 1893| by a date set by the organization ebtaired—= ptan for
1865 3—Beginning—with—the 2020-2021 rool—year;—th tudent 1894| admissieon—of—th tudent—to—a—privat rool—that—+ Tigibt
1866 ¥ ivred—a Fotarshippursuant—= — 002355 during—th 1895 fer—the program under subseetion {8}, and the parent—has
1867| preview Frool ar—but—did—raet—r 5= a—renewat rotarship 1896| <reeguested—a rotarshipfromthe Department—of Fduecation by =
1868| based el r—Eh Tigiblenonpreofit rotership—funding 1897| dat tablishedbythe departmentpursuant—toparagraph—{H e}~
1869 rganizationlsJdackof available funds—after—th rganization 1898| but—melaterthaenatteast60da before—the—dat £ the—first
1870 futd hausts—3E ffeorts—teo—+u funds—avattable—for award 1899 heolarship—payment. The application reeguwest must be
1871 under —1002-395—and31002-H40- I —FEligible nonprefit 1900| communicated directly to the organization department in a manner
1872 rotarship—furding organizationswith students—who meet—th 1901 that creates a written or electronic record of the application
1873 igibility eriterionof +thi vbparagraphmustannvally netif 1902| =xeeguest and the date of receipt of the application reguest. The
1874| <+the<department—in o formatand by adate—established by —the 1903| <department—mustrnotify—th hoot—distriet—of the parent!
1875| departmentr 1904| intent—upon—r tpt—eofthe parent!sreguests
1876 1905 (d) The student is awarded a scholarship in accordance with
1877 : 7 “prd : 1906| the following priority order:
1878 1907 1. An eligible student who received a Family Empowerment
1879 1908| Scholarship during the previous school year seheel—year, oOr a
1880 1909| Florida Tax Credit Scholarship or Hope Scholarship during the
1881 in—kindergarten—through grade 12—which dnelud £im pent—in—a 1910 2020-2021 school year, and requested a renewal scholarship
1882 bepartment—of Juvenilte Just: srtmertprogram+f funded 1911| award.
1883 under—theFloridaFEduecation Finan Program—H r—a 1912 2. An eligible student who meets the criteria for an
1884 dependent—ehildof o member of the HUnited Stat rmed—For 1913 initial award under both paragraphs paragrapk (a) and (b) and
1885 vho—transfers—teo—a schooldn—thi tate—fromout—ofstat £2 1914| was retained on the previous school year’s wait list

Page 65 of 158 Page 66 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions. CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




1915
1916
1917
1918
1919
1920
1921
1922
1923
1924
1925
1926
1927
1928
1929
1930
1931
1932
1933
1934
1935
1936
1937
1938
1939
1940
1941
1942
1943

CODING: Words strieken are deletions;

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21
subparagraph—b)13.

3. An eligible student who meets the criteria for an
and paragraph (b) 2=
and—either subparagraph—+{art—or subparagraph—a)r2.

4. An eligible student who meets the criteria for an

initial award under subparagraph (a)2.

initial award under subparagraph (a)l. -53++= and paragraph (b),

(
and the student’s household income level does not exceed 185

percent of the federal poverty level either

N N |
goparagrapa—a)r ==

b ht{a)
* woparagrapn—tay

5. An eligible student who meets the criteria for an
+a)3—= andy paragraph (b)

()2
O=Z=

initial award under subparagraph (a)l.

RN

4
raety TeRer

b B b h
goparagrapt ¥ voparagraph

. . .
T P¥rTo¥rItEy

Bt

An approved student who does not receive a scholarship must be

placed on the wait list in the order in which his or her

application is approved. An eligible student who does not

receive a scholarship within the fiscal year must be retained on

the wait list for the subsequent year.

(e) The student’s household income level does not exceed an
adjusted maximum percent of the federal poverty level that is
increased by 25 percent in the fiscal year following any fiscal
year in which more than 5 percent of the available scholarships
authorized under subsection (12)+4++> have not been awarded.

(4) TERM OF SCHOLARSHIP.—For purposes of continuity of

educational choice and program integrity:

(a)l. Program payments made by the state to an organization

for a Family Empowerment Scholarship under this section must

continue until:

Page 67 of 158

202148

words underlined are additions.

1944
1945
1946
1947
1948
1949
1950
1951
1952
1953
1954
1955
1956
1957
1958
1959
1960
1961
1962
1963
1964
1965
1966
1967
1968
1969
1970
1971
1972

Florida Senate - 2021

36-00745D-21

SB 48

202148

a. The parent does not renew program eligibility;

b. The organization determines that the student is not

eligible for program renewal;

c. The Commissioner of Education suspends or revokes

program participation or use of funds pursuant to subparagraph

o) ()7

d. The student’s parent has forfeited participation in the

program for failure to comply with subsection (10);

e. The student enrolls in a public school; or

f. The student graduates from high school or attains 21

years of age, whichever occurs first. However, if a student

enters a Department of Juvenile Justice detention center for a

period of no more than 21 days,

the student is not considered to

have returned to a public school for that purpose.

2. Reimbursements for program expenditures may continue

until the account balance is expended or the account is closed

pursuant to paragraph

£

(b) For—purp

44 1
FETRBTEY

= o 1 hod

Famil £ Ceoh

SaeatTofaT: oI 7

remarh—Ih—TOo¥ GRtE

il h| AN
ot =iy FHeRt HOTTESHTP

£h faadand + + Bl

Pt

h 1 £h £ 21

PR

+
PaEEmenRt £

+h
i chRaF

(b)1. The commissioner shall close a student’s scholarship

account, and any remaining funds, including, but not

limited to,

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined

Page 68 of 158

are additions.




1973
1974
1975
1976
1977
1978
1979
1980
1981
1982
1983
1984
1985
1986
1987
1988
1989
1990
1991
1992
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

contributions made to the Stanley G. Tate Florida Prepaid

College Program or earnings from or contributions made to the

Florida College Savings Program using program funds pursuant to

paragraph (6) (e), revert to the state after:

a. Denial or revocation of program eligibility by the

commissioner for fraud or abuse, including, but not limited to,

the student or the student’s parent accepting any payment,

refund, or rebate in any manner from a provider of any services

received pursuant to subsection (6); however, a private school

may discount tuition if the private school deems it necessary;

b. Any period of 2 consecutive years after high school

completion or graduation during which the student has not been

enrolled in an eligible postsecondary educational institution or

a program offered by the institution; or

c. The account has been inactive for 2 consecutive fiscal

years prior to high school completion or graduation Hpen

51 I to—the—d + + a—+h hool—distriet &
S Fr Fr €t

reasSonao—T 33 E= SCpartmer S22ac 222 e

B4 n 1

ahRa—Pro +r (=aSaS2as TH—a—PpuoTT 23 Ao oot W

2. The commissioner must notify the parent and the

organization when a Family Empowerment Scholarship account is

closed and program funds revert to the state.
+er—Ypon—reasonable noticetothe department the studentls
+ + a0 £ £ PR P ORI Lot

parent—may—wm th tudent—fromoneparticipating prive

(5) SCHOLARSHIP PROHIBITIONS.—A student is not eligible for
a Family Empowerment Scholarship while he or she is:

(a) Enrolled in a public school, including, but not limited

Page 69 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148
to, the Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind, the College-
Preparatory Boarding Academy, a developmental research school
authorized under s. 1002.32, or a charter school authorized

under this chapter;

(b) Enrolled in a school operating for the purpose of
providing educational services to youth in a Department of
Juvenile Justice commitment program;

(c) Receiving any other educational scholarship pursuant to

this chapter; or

£ e i £
TEor g program purSuatt €

{er—Participating—in—apriva
5+—3002-43+——-or

+£)> Participating in a virtual school, correspondence
school, or distance learning program that receives state funding
pursuant to the student’s participation.

(6) AUTHORIZED USES OF PROGRAM FUNDS.—Program funds must be

used to meet the individual educational needs of an eligible

student and may be spent for the following purposes:

(a) Instructional materials, including digital devices and

Internet access to access digital instructional materials.

(b) Curriculum as defined in paragraph (2) (b).

(c) Tuition or fees associated with full-time or part-time

enrollment in a home education program, an eligible private

school, an eligible postsecondary educational institution or a

program offered by the postsecondary institution, a private

tutoring program authorized under s. 1002.43, a virtual program

offered by a department-approved private online provider that

meets the provider qualifications specified in s. 1002.45(2) (a),

Page 70 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48 Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148 36-00745D-21 202148
2031 the Florida Virtual School as a private paying student, or an 2060 by a state-certified teacher under s. 1002.41(1) (f), if this
2032| approved online course offered pursuant to s. 1003.499 or s. 2061| option is chosen for a home education student.
2033 1004.0961. 2062 (k) Transportation expenses that may not exceed $750
2034 (d) Fees for nationally standardized, norm-referenced 2063 annually to meet the student’s educational needs under this
2035 achievement tests, Advanced Placement examinations, industry 2064 subsection.
2036 certification examinations, assessments related to postsecondary 2065
2037| education, or other assessments. 2066| A provider of any services receiving payments pursuant to this
2038 (e) Contributions to the Stanley G. Tate Florida Prepaid 2067 subsection may not share, refund, or rebate any moneys from the
2039| College Program pursuant to s. 1009.98 or the Florida College 2068| Family Empowerment Scholarship with the parent or participating
2040 Savings Program pursuant to s. 1009.981, for the benefit of the 2069 student in any manner.
2041| eligible student. 2070 (7)+6)» SCHOOL DISTRICT OBLIGATIONS.—
2042 (f) Contracted services provided by a public school or 2071 (a) By July 15, 2019, and by April 1 of each year
2043 school district, including classes. A student who receives 2072 thereafter, a school district shall inform all households within
2044 services under a contract under this paragraph is not considered 2073| the district receiving free or reduced-priced meals under the
2045| enrolled in a public school for eligibility purposes as 2074| National School Lunch Act of their eligibility to apply te—the
2046 specified in subsection (5). 2075| department for a Family Empowerment Scholarship. A parent who
2047 (g) Tuition and fees for part-time tutoring services 2076| chooses to enroll his or her eligible student in a public school
2048| provided by a person who holds a valid Florida educator’s 2077| that is different from the school in which the student was
2049| certificate pursuant to s. 1012.56; a person who holds an 2078| assigned pursuant to s. 1002.31 or enrolls his or her eligible
2050| adjunct teaching certificate pursuant to s. 1012.57; a person 2079| student in a lab school as defined in s. 1002.32 is eligible for
2051| who has a bachelor’s degree or a graduate degree in the subject 2080| a scholarship to transport the student as provided in paragraph
2052| area in which instruction is given; or a person who has 2081 (12) (c) . The form of such notice shall be provided by the
2053| demonstrated a mastery of subject area knowledge pursuant to s. 2082| department, and the school district shall include the provided
2054 1012.56(5) . As used in this paragraph, the term “part-time 2083| form in any normal correspondence with eligible households. Such
2055 tutoring services” does not qualify as regular school attendance 2084 notice is limited to once a year.
2056 as defined in s. 1003.01(13) (e). 2085 (b) Upon receipt of a report of an incident, the school
2057 (h) Fees for summer education programs. 2086| principal, or his or her designee, shall provide a copy of the
2058 (i) Fees for after-school education programs. 2087 report to the parent and investigate the incident to determine
2059 (j) Fees for an annual evaluation of educational progress 2088| if the incident must be reported as required by s. 1006.147(4).

Page 71 of 158 Page 72 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions. CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48 Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148 36-00745D-21 202148
2089| Within 24 hours after receipt of the report, the principal or 2118| submit information to the district for test administration and
2090| his or her designee shall provide a copy of the report to the 2119| enrollment purposes; and
2091 parent of the alleged offender and to the superintendent. Upon 2120 5. Provision of any required assistance, monitoring, or
2092 conclusion of the investigation or within 15 days after the 2121 investigation at a private school.
2093 incident was reported, whichever occurs first, the school 2122 (d)+4e» Each school district must publish information about
2094| district shall notify the parent of the program and offer the 2123| the Family Empowerment Scholarship Program on the district’s
2095| parent an opportunity to request and receive a Family 2124| website homepage, which,+ at a minimum, the—published
2096| Empowerment Scholarship. 2125| 4mfermatiern must include a website link to the Family
2097 (c) The school district in which a participating student 2126| Empowerment Scholarship Program published on the Department of
2098 resides must notify the student and his or her parent about the 2127 Education website as—well-as—atelephone number and e-mail—that
2099| locations and times to take all statewide assessments under s. 2128 tudents—and parentsmay—u £ ntact—relevant persennel—in
2100| 1008.22 if the student chooses to participate in such 2129| £k ool —distriet—=¢ beain—information—abeout—th Fotarship.
2101 assessments. Upon the request of the department, a school 2130 (8)+4#)» DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION OBLIGATIONS.—The department
2102 district shall coordinate with the department to provide to a 2131 shall:
2103| participating private school the statewide assessments 2132 (a) Annually verify the eligibility of nonprofit
2104 administered under s. 1008.22 and any related materials for 2133 scholarship-funding organizations that meet the requirements of
2105 administering the assessments. For a student who participates in 2134 paragraph (2) (e).
2106| the Family Empowerment Scholarship Program whose parent requests 2135 (b)+4&)» Publish and update, as necessary, information on the
2107| that the student take the statewide assessments under s. 2136| department website about the scholarship programs under this
2108| 1008.22, the district in which the student attends a private 2137 chapter Family Emp rment—Schotarship—Pregram, including, but
2109| school shall provide locations and times to take all statewide 2138| not limited to, student eligibility criteria, parental
2110 assessments. A school district is responsible for implementing 2139 responsibilities, and relevant data.
2111| test administrations at a participating private school, 2140 (c)+4B) Cross-check prior to each distribution of funds the
2112 including the: 2141 list of participating scholarship students with the public
2113 1. Provision of training for private school staff on test 2142 school enrollment lists before each scholarship payment to avoid
2114 security and assessment administration procedures; 2143| duplication.
2115 2. Distribution of testing materials to a private school; 2144 (d)+4e} Maintain and publish a list of nationally norm-
2116 3. Retrieval of testing materials from a private school; 2145 referenced tests identified for purposes of satisfying the
2117 4. Provision of the required format for a private school to 2146| testing requirement in subparagraph (9) (c)l. +8)+e}i= The tests

Page 73 of 158 Page 74 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions. CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




2147
2148
2149
2150
2151
2152
2153
2154
2155
2156
2157
2158
2159
2160
2161
2162
2163
2164
2165
2166
2167
2168
2169
2170
2171
2172
2173
2174
2175

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

must meet industry standards of quality in accordance with state
board rule.

(e)+e)r Notify eligible nonprofit scholarship-funding
organizations of the deadlines for submitting the verified list
of students determined to be eligible for an initial or renewal
scholarship.

(f)+4e)> Distribute each student’s scholarship funds on a

quarterly basis to the eligible nonprofit scholarship-funding

organization, to be deposited into the student’s account

. . : i : :

£ £k 3 e g
the—priors: raer

+ a +

1 L £ 2 £ 3 ; 1
reRrewa—+r TEFeatToh E=22 roae¥ HRpremeh

£ h g £ &

rolarship awards pursuan

B 3) ()
Poaragrapa—t €.

(g) Notify an eligible nonprofit scholarship-funding

organization of any of the organization’s or other eligible

nonprofit scholarship-funding organization’s identified students

who are receiving educational scholarships pursuant to chapter
1002.

(h) Issue a project grant award to a state university, to

which participating private schools must report the scores of

participating students on the nationally norm-referenced tests

or the statewide assessments administered by the private school

in grades 3 through 10. The project term is 2 years, and the

amount of the project is up to $250,000 per year. The project

grant award must be reissued in 2-year intervals in accordance

with this paragraph.

1. The state university must annually report to the

Department of Education on the student performance of

participating students:

a. On a statewide basis. The report shall also include, to

Page 75 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

2176
2177
2178
2179
2180
2181
2182
2183
2184
2185
2186
2187
2188
2189
2190
2191
2192
2193
2194
2195
2196
2197
2198
2199
2200
2201
2202
2203
2204

CODING: Words strieken are deletions;

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

the extent possible, a comparison of scholarship students’

performance to the statewide student performance of public

school students with socioeconomic backgrounds similar to those

of students participating in the scholarship program. To

minimize costs and reduce time required for the state

university’s analysis and evaluation, the Department of

Education shall coordinate with the state university to provide

data in order to conduct analyses of matched students from

public school assessment data and calculate control group

student performance using an agreed-upon methodology; and

b. On an individual school basis. For the 2020-2021 school

year, the annual report must include student performance for

each participating private school in which at least 51 percent

of the total enrolled students in the private school

participated in the Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program or

the Family Empowerment Scholarship Program. Beginning with the

2021-2022 school year, the annual report must include student

performance for each participating private school in which at

least 51 percent of the total enrolled students in the private

school participated in the Family Empowerment Scholarship

Program. The report shall be according to each participating

private school, and for participating students, in which there

are at least 30 participating students who have scores for tests

administered. If the state university determines that the 30-

participating-student cell size may be reduced without

disclosing personally identifiable information, as described in

34 C.F.R. s. 99.12, of a participating student, the state

university may reduce the participating-student cell size, but

the cell size may not be reduced to less than 10 participating

Page 76 of 158

words underlined are additions.




2205
2206
2207
2208
2209
2210
2211
2212
2213
2214
2215
2216
2217
2218
2219
2220
2221
2222
2223
2224
2225
2226
2227
2228
2229
2230
2231
2232
2233

CODING: Words strieken are deletions;

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

students. The department shall provide each private school’s

prior school year student enrollment information to the state

university no later than June 15 of each year, or as requested

by the state university.

2. The sharing and reporting of student performance data

under this paragraph must be in accordance with the requirements
of ss. 1002.22 and 1002.221 and 20 U.S.C. s. 1232g, the Family

Educational Rights and Privacy Act, and the applicable rules and

regulations issued pursuant thereto, and must be for the sole

purpose of creating the annual report required by subparagraph

1. All parties must preserve the confidentiality of such

information as required by law. The annual report may not

disaggregate data to a level that will identify individual

participating schools, except as required under sub-subparagraph

1.b., or disclose the academic level of individual students.

3. The annual report required by subparagraph 1. must be

published by the Department of Education on its website.

(i) Maintain on its website a list of approved providers,

including eligible postsecondary educational institutions,

eligible private schools, and organizations. The department may

identify or provide links to lists of other approved providers.

(j) Require each organization to verify eligible

expenditures before the distribution of funds for any

expenditures made pursuant to paragraphs (6) (a) and (b). Review

of expenditures made for services specified in paragraphs

(6) (c)-(k) may be completed after the purchase is made.

(k) Require quarterly reports by an eligible nonprofit

scholarship-funding organization regarding the overall number of

students participating in the scholarship program, the number of

Page 77 of 158

words underlined are additions.

2234
2235
2236
2237
2238
2239
2240
2241
2242
2243
2244
2245
2246
2247
2248
2249
2250
2251
2252
2253
2254
2255
2256
2257
2258
2259
2260
2261
2262

Florida Senate - 2021

36-00745D-21

SB 48

202148

home education students participating in the scholarship

program, the number of students attending a private school

participating in the scholarship program, the private schools at

which the students are enrolled, and other information the

department deems necessary.

(1) Provide a process to match the direct certification

list with the scholarship application data submitted by any

nonprofit scholarship-funding organization eligible to receive

the 2.5 percent administrative allowance under paragraph

(11) (k) .

(m) Contract with an independent entity to provide an

annual evaluation of the program by:

1. Reviewing the school bullying prevention education

program, school climate,

and code of student conduct of each

public school from which 10 or more students transferred to

another public school or private school using the Hope

Scholarship or Family Empowerment Scholarship to determine areas

in the school or school district procedures involving reporting,

investigating, and communicating a parent’s and student’s rights

which are in need of improvement. At a minimum, the review must

include:

a. An assessment of the investigation time and quality of

the response of the school and the school district.

b. An assessment of the effectiveness of communication

procedures with the students involved in an incident, the

students’ parents, and the school and school district personnel.

c. An analysis of school incident and discipline data.

d. The challenges and obstacles relating to implementing

recommendations from the review.

Page 78 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48 Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148 36-00745D-21 202148
2263 2. Reviewing the school bullying prevention education 2292 (c)1l. Annually administer or make provision for students
2264 program, school climate, and code of student conduct of each 2293| participating in the program in grades 3 through 10 to take one
2265| public school to which a student transferred if the student was 2294 of the nationally norm-referenced tests that are identified by
2266| from a school identified in subparagraph 1. in order to identify 2295| the department pursuant to paragraph (8) (d) +#+e)> or to take
2267 best practices and make recommendations to the public school at 2296 the statewide assessments pursuant to s. 1008.22. Students with
2268| which the incidents occurred. 2297 disabilities for whom standardized testing is not appropriate
2269 3. Surveying the parents of participating students to 2298| are exempt from this requirement. A participating private school
2270 determine academic, safety, and school climate satisfaction and 2299 shall report a student’s scores to his or her parent. By August
2271 to identify any challenges to or obstacles in addressing an 2300 15 of each year, a participating private school must report the
2272 incident or relating to the use of the scholarship. 2301 scores of all participating students to a state university as
2273 (n) Investigate any written complaint of a violation of 2302| described in paragraph (8) (h) s+—308062-39540) (5.
2274| this section by a parent, a student, a private school, a public 2303 2. Administer the statewide assessments pursuant to s.
2275 school, a school district, an organization, a provider, or 2304 1008.22 if the private school chooses to offer the statewide
2276| another appropriate party in accordance with the process 2305| assessments. A participating private school may choose to offer
2277| established under s. 1002.421. 2306| and administer the statewide assessments to all students who
2278 (9)+48)» PRIVATE SCHOOL ELIGIBILITY AND OBLIGATIONS.—To be 2307 attend the private school in grades 3 through 10 and must submit
2279| eligible to participate in the Family Empowerment Scholarship 2308| a request in writing to the department by March 1 of each year
2280| Program, a private school may be sectarian or nonsectarian and 2309| in order to administer the statewide assessments in the
2281| must: 2310 subsequent school year.
2282 (a) Comply with all requirements for private schools 2311
2283| participating in state school choice scholarship programs 2312 If a private school fails to meet the requirements of this
2284 pursuant to s. 1002.421. 2313 subsection or s. 1002.421, the commissioner may determine that
2285 (b) Provide to the organization department all 2314| the private school is ineligible to participate in the
2286| documentation required for a student’s participation, including 2315| scholarship program.
2287 the private school’s and student’s fee schedules, at least 30 2316 (10)+4%» PARENT AND STUDENT RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PROGRAM
2288 days before any quarterly scholarship payment is made for the 2317 PARTICIPATION.—A parent who applies for a Family Empowerment
2289| student pursuant to paragraph (12) (f) 3P+ —Astudent—isrnet 2318| Scholarship is exercising his or her parental option to
2290 tgiblte—+to—r 3= s—eaartert heotarshippayment—3f—+th 2319 determine the appropriate placement or the services that best
2291| private—sechool—failstomeet—thisdeadtine. 2320| meets the needs of his or her child pi= hi r—her—echitdin—a

Page 79 of 158 Page 80 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions. CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




2321
2322
2323
2324
2325
2326
2327
2328
2329
2330
2331
2332
2333
2334
2335
2336
2337
2338
2339
2340
2341
2342
2343
2344
2345
2346
2347
2348
2349

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

private—schoot.

(a) To satisfy or maintain program eligibility, including

eligibility to receive and spend program payments, the parent

must sign an agreement with the organization and annually submit

a sworn compliance statement to the organization to:

1. Affirm that the student is enrolled in a program that

meets regular school attendance requirements as provided in s.
1003.01(13) (b)-(e).
2. Affirm that the program funds are used only for

authorized purposes serving the student’s educational needs, as

described in subsection (6).

3. Affirm that the parent is responsible for the education

of his or her student by, as applicable:

a. Requiring the student to take an assessment in

accordance with paragraph (9) (c); or

b. Providing an annual evaluation in accordance with s.
1002.41 (1) (f) .

4. Affirm that the student remains in good standing with

the provider or school if those options are selected by the

Th + + 1 £ +h 1 + W hl A h] £
parent The—parent—mu 1 he—priva hool—and—appty—Foxr

lie Ei(ii 3:‘ SS}:‘ SF (>£ ]ii‘ S5—OF ]ief St: i(ie]i .

(b) The parent must requ b holarship at lea

+h he PR PR
£ €t

N .
re—parent—withdraws—ht r—hex wdert—from—a—publi
S—eheeHe—a—t—Eeﬁd—&ﬁ—eﬁg—l—b%e—pﬂVﬁ%e—seh@e%‘ it it 0

+e) Any student participating in the program must remain in
attendance throughout the school year unless excused by—the
sehoot for illness or other good cause.

Page 81 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

2350
2351
2352
2353
2354
2355
2356
2357
2358
2359
2360
2361
2362
2363
2364
2365
2366
2367
2368
2369
2370
2371
2372
2373
2374
2375
2376
2377
2378

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148
(c)+4e} If Befere enrolling in a private school, a student

and his or her parent or guardian must meet with the private

school’s principal or the principal’s designee to review the

school’s academic programs and policies, customized educational

programs, code of student conduct, and attendance policies.
(d)+4£» The parent shall ensure that a #he student

participating in the scholarship program and enrolled in a

private school takes the norm-referenced assessment offered by
the private school. The parent may also choose to have the
student participate in the statewide assessments pursuant to
paragraph (9) (c) +6r+te).

(e)+tegr If the parent requests that the student
participating in the program take all statewide assessments
required pursuant to s. 1008.22, the parent is responsible for
transporting the student to the assessment site designated by

the school district.

(f)+5)> The parent must annually renew participation in the
program by the date established by the organization department
pursuvant—to—paragraph—{#++te)r. A student whose participation in

the program is not renewed may continue to spend scholarship

funds that are in his or her account from prior years unless the

Page 82 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48 Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48
36-00745D-21 202148 36-00745D-21 202148
2379| account must be closed pursuant to paragraph (4) (b). 2408| be electronically submitted to the Department of Law Enforcement
2380 (g) The parent is responsible for procuring the services 2409| and can be taken by an authorized law enforcement agency or by
2381| necessary to educate the student. If a parent does not procure 2410| an employee of the eligible nonprofit scholarship-funding
2382| the necessary educational services for the student and the 2411| organization or a private company who is trained to take
2383| student’s account has been inactive for 2 consecutive fiscal 2412 fingerprints. However, the complete set of fingerprints of an
2384| years, the student is ineligible and the student’s account must 2413| owner or operator may not be taken by the owner or operator. The
2385| be closed pursuant to paragraph (4) (b). 2414 results of the state and national criminal history check must be
2386 (h) The parent is responsible for all eligible expenses in 2415| provided to the Department of Education for screening under
2387| excess of the Family Empowerment Scholarship. 2416| chapter 435. The cost of the background screening may be borne
2388 (1) The parent may not transfer any prepaid college plan or 2417 by the eligible nonprofit scholarship-funding organization or
2389 college savings plan funds contributed pursuant to paragraph 2418 the owner or operator.
2390 (6) (e) to another beneficiary while the plan contains funds 2419 2. Every 5 years following employment or engagement to
2391 contributed pursuant to this section. 2420| provide services or association with an eligible nonprofit
2392 (j) The parent may not receive a payment, refund, or rebate 2421 scholarship-funding organization, each owner or operator must
2393| from an approved provider of any services under this program. 2422| meet level 2 screening standards as described in s. 435.04, at
2394 2423| which time the nonprofit scholarship-funding organization shall
2395| A participant who fails to comply with this subsection forfeits 2424 request the Department of Law Enforcement to forward the
2396| the Family Empowerment Scholarship. 2425| fingerprints to the Federal Bureau of Investigation for level 2
2397 (11)+43#65 OBLIGATIONS OF ELIGIBLE SCHOLARSHIP-FUNDING 2426 screening. If the fingerprints of an owner or operator are not
2398| ORGANIZATIONS.—An eligible nonprofit scholarship-funding 2427 retained by the Department of Law Enforcement under subparagraph
2399| organization: 2428| 3., the owner or operator must electronically file a complete
2400 (a) Must comply with the antidiscrimination provisions of 2429 set of fingerprints with the Department of Law Enforcement. Upon
2401 42 U.S.C. s. 2000d. 2430| submission of fingerprints for this purpose, the eligible
2402 (b) Must comply with the following background check 2431| nonprofit scholarship-funding organization shall request that
2403 requirements: 2432 the Department of Law Enforcement forward the fingerprints to
2404 1. All owners and operators as defined in subparagraph 2433| the Federal Bureau of Investigation for level 2 screening, and
2405 (2) (k)1., before employment or engagement to provide services, 2434| the fingerprints must be retained by the Department of Law
2406 are subject to a level 2 background screening as provided under 2435| Enforcement under subparagraph 3.
2407 chapter 435. The fingerprints for the background screening must 2436 3. Fingerprints submitted to the Department of Law
Page 83 of 158 Page 84 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions. CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




2437
2438
2439
2440
2441
2442
2443
2444
2445
2446
2447
2448
2449
2450
2451
2452
2453
2454
2455
2456
2457
2458
2459
2460
2461
2462
2463
2464
2465

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

Enforcement as required by this paragraph must be retained by

the Department of Law Enforcement in a manner approved by rule

and entered in the statewide automated biometric identification

system authorized by s. 943.05(2) (b). The fingerprints must

continue to be available for all purposes and uses authorized

for arrest fingerprints entered in the statewide automated

biometric identification system pursuant to s. 943.051.

4. The Department of Law Enforcement shall search all

arrest fingerprints received under s. 943.051 against the

fingerprints retained in the statewide automated biometric

identification system under subparagraph 3. Any arrest record

that is identified with an owner’s or operator’s fingerprints

must be reported to the Department of Education. The Department

of Education shall participate in this search process by paying

an annual fee to the Department of Law Enforcement and by

informing the Department of Law Enforcement of any change in the

employment, engagement, or association status of the owners or

operators whose fingerprints are retained under subparagraph 3.

The Department of Law Enforcement shall adopt a rule setting the

amount of the annual fee to be imposed upon the Department of

Education for performing these services and establishing the

procedures for the retention of owner or operator fingerprints

and the dissemination of search results. The fee may be borne by

the owner or operator of the nonprofit scholarship-funding

organization.

5. A nonprofit scholarship-funding organization whose owner

or operator fails the level 2 background screening is not

eligible to provide scholarships under this section.

6. A nonprofit scholarship-funding organization whose owner

Page 85 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

2466
2467
2468
2469
2470
2471
2472
2473
2474
2475
2476
2477
2478
2479
2480
2481
2482
2483
2484
2485
2486
2487
2488
2489
2490
2491
2492
2493
2494

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

or operator in the last 7 years has filed for personal

bankruptcy or corporate bankruptcy in a corporation of which he

or she owned more than 20 percent is not eligible to provide

scholarships under this section.

7. In addition to the offenses listed in s. 435.04, a

person required to undergo background screening pursuant to this

part or authorizing statutes may not have an arrest awaiting

final disposition for, must not have been found guilty of, or

entered a plea of nolo contendere to, regardless of

adjudication, and must not have been adjudicated delingquent, and

the record must not have been sealed or expunged for, any of the

following offenses or any similar offense of another

jurisdiction:

a. Any authorizing statutes, if the offense was a felony.

This chapter, if the offense was a felony.

Section 409.920, relating to Medicaid provider fraud.

Section 409.9201, relating to Medicaid fraud.

Section 741.28, relating to domestic violence.

H |0 |Q |a |O

Section 817.034, relating to fraudulent acts through

mail, wire, radio, electromagnetic, photoelectronic, or

photooptical systems.

g. Section 817.234, relating to false and fraudulent

insurance claims.

h. Section 817.505, relating to patient brokering.

i. Section 817.568, relating to criminal use of personal

identification information.

j. Section 817.60, relating to obtaining a credit card

through fraudulent means.

k. Section 817.61, relating to fraudulent use of credit

Page 86 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




2495
2496
2497
2498
2499
2500
2501
2502
2503
2504
2505
2506
2507
2508
2509
2510
2511
2512
2513
2514
2515
2516
2517
2518
2519
2520
2521
2522
2523

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

cards, if the offense was a felony.

1. Section 831.01, relating to forgery.

m. Section 831.02, relating to uttering forged instruments.

n. Section 831.07, relating to forging bank bills, checks,

drafts, or promissory notes.

o. Section 831.09, relating to uttering forged bank bills,

checks, drafts, or promissory notes.

p. Section 831.30, relating to fraud in obtaining medicinal

drugs.

g. Section 831.31, relating to the sale, manufacture,

delivery, or possession with the intent to sell, manufacture, or

deliver any counterfeit controlled substance, if the offense was

a felony.

(c) May not have an owner or operator who owns or operates

an eligible private school that is participating in the

scholarship program.

(d) Shall establish and maintain separate accounts for each

eligible student. For each account, the organization must

maintain a record of accrued interest that is retained in the

student’s account and available only for authorized program

expenditures.

(e) May not restrict or reserve scholarships for use at a

particular private school or provide scholarships to a child of

an owner or operator.

(f) Must provide to the Auditor General and the Department

of Education a report on the results of an annual financial

audit of its accounts and records conducted by an independent

certified public accountant in accordance with auditing

standards generally accepted in the United States, government

Page 87 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

2524
2525
2526
2527
2528
2529
2530
2531
2532
2533
2534
2535
2536
2537
2538
2539
2540
2541
2542
2543
2544
2545
2546
2547
2548
2549
2550
2551
2552

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148
auditing standards, and rules promulgated by the Auditor

General. The audit report must include a report on financial

statements presented in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles. Audit reports must be provided to the

Auditor General and the Department of Education within 180 days

after completion of the eligible nonprofit scholarship-funding

organization’s fiscal year. The Auditor General shall review all

audit reports submitted pursuant to this paragraph. The Auditor

General shall request any significant items that were omitted in

violation of a rule adopted by the Auditor General. The items

must be provided within 45 days after the date of the request.

If the scholarship-funding organization does not comply with the

Auditor General’s request, the Auditor General shall notify the

Legislative Auditing Committee.

(g)l.a. Must use agreed-upon procedures that uniformly

apply to all private schools and determine, at a minimum,

whether the private school has been verified as eligible by the

Department of Education under s. 1002.421; has an adequate

accounting system, system of financial controls, and process for

deposit and classification of scholarship funds; and has

properly expended scholarship funds for education-related

expenses.

b. Must participate in a joint review of the agreed-upon

procedures and guidelines under sub-subparagraph a., by February

of each biennium, if the scholarship-funding organization

provided more than $250,000 in scholarship funds to an eligible

private school under this chapter during the state fiscal year

preceding the biennial review. If the procedures and guidelines

are revised, the revisions must be provided to private schools

Page 88 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




2553
2554
2555
2556
2557
2558
2559
2560
2561
2562
2563
2564
2565
2566
2567
2568
2569
2570
2571
2572
2573
2574
2575
2576
2577
2578
2579
2580
2581

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

and the Commissioner of Education by March 15 of the year in

which the revisions were completed. The revised agreed-upon

procedures take effect the subsequent school year.

c. Must monitor the compliance of a private school with s.

1002.421 (1) (g) if the scholarship-funding organization provided

the majority of the scholarship funding to the school. For each

private school subject to s. 1002.421(1) (q), the appropriate

scholarship-funding organization shall annually notify the

Commissioner of Education by October 30 of:

(I) A private school’s failure to submit a report required
under s. 1002.421(1) (q); or

(IT) Any material exceptions set forth in the report
required under s. 1002.421 (1) (q) .

2. Must seek input from the accrediting associations that

are members of the Florida Association of Academic Nonpublic

Schools and the Department of Education when conducting a joint

review of the procedures and guidelines under sub-subparagraph
1.b.
(h) Must establish a date by which the parent of a

participating student must confirm continuing participation in

the program.

(i)+4&)r Shall verify the household income level of students
pursuant to subparagraph (3) (a)l. and submit the verified list
of students and related documentation to the department.

(j) 4> Shall award initial and renewal scholarships to

eligible students in—prierity—erder pursuant to subsection (3)

and notify parents of their receipt of a scholarship paragraph

+3)>+e)>. The eligible nonprofit scholarship-funding organization
shall implement the deadlines established by the department

Page 89 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

2582
2583
2584
2585
2586
2587
2588
2589
2590
2591
2592
2593
2594
2595
2596
2597
2598
2599
2600
2601
2602
2603
2604
2605
2606
2607
2608
2609
2610

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148
pursuvant—teoparagraphs—{H{d—and—te).
(k) 4> May+—frem—eligibt et e e R aaa

+ —+662-395+(6)+3F)r+ use an amount not to exceed 2.5 *
percent of the total amount of all scholarships awarded under
this section for administrative expenses associated with
performing functions under this section. Suveh—administrats:

peRrse—amount—t Asidered—within—th pereent—timit—on—+th
B s LSS ES SR e
grder—thi Fapter-

(1) Must verify qualifying educational expenditures

pursuant to the requirement of paragraph (8) (j) and must request

the return of any funds used for unauthorized purposes.

(m) Must return any remaining program funds to the

department pursuant to paragraph (4) (b).

(n) Must document each scholarship student’s eligibility

pursuant to subsection (3) for a fiscal year before granting a

scholarship for that fiscal year. A student is ineligible for a

scholarship if the student’s account has been inactive for 2

fiscal years and the student’s account has been closed pursuant

to paragraph (4) (b).

(o) Must allow a student who meets the requirements of

subparagraph (3) (a)2. or a dependent child of a parent who is a

member of the United States Armed Forces to apply for a

scholarship at any time.

(p) 4 Must, in a timely manner, submit any information
requested by the department relating to the scholarship under
this section.

(gq) Must establish a date by which the parent of a

participating student must confirm continuing participation in

Page 90 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




2611
2612
2613
2614
2615
2616
2617
2618
2619
2620
2621
2622
2623
2624
2625
2626
2627
2628
2629
2630
2631
2632
2633
2634
2635
2636
2637
2638
2639

CODING: Words strieken are deletions;

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

the program.

(r) Must prepare and submit quarterly reports to the

department pursuant to paragraph (8) (k).

(s)+4e} Must notify the department about any violation of
this section by a parent or a private school.

ﬂ-{%)— SCHOLARSHIP FUNDING AND PAYMENT.—

(a) The scholarship is established for up to 18,000
students annually beginning in the 2019-2020 school year.
Beginning in the 2020-2021 school year, the maximum number of
student FTE students participating in the scholarship program
under this section shall annually increase by 1.0 percent of the
state’s total public school student FTE student enrollment. A

student who received a Florida Tax Credit Scholarship or a Hope

Scholarship in the 2020-2021 school year and who meets the

eligibility requirements in subsection (3) in the 2021-2022

school year is eligible for a Family Empowerment Scholarship in

the 2021-2022 school year. The scholarship may not be included

in the maximum number of student FTE authorized to participate

in the program under this paragraph.

(b) Tk hod Frip—ameunt ided—t tudent—F£

T ROTTE P e

red ool hall e £ s L. c Ligiba

=] 1 1 imit hich h N
S e s s N iizd 7 AFHER—ST

11
Yo

i} +
iSe=aacas 23 57—

determined—in accordance—with this paragraph+ The calculated

scholarship amount for a student participating in the program

must te—attend—an—eligibleprivat heoolt—shallt be based upon
the grade level and school district in which the student was
assigned as 97.5 95 percent of the funds per unweighted full-
time equivalent in the Florida Education Finance Program for a

student in the basic program established pursuant to s.

Page 91 of 158

words underlined are additions.

2640
2641
2642
2643
2644
2645
2646
2647
2648
2649
2650
2651
2652
2653
2654
2655
2656
2657
2658
2659
2660
2661
2662
2663
2664
2665
2666
2667
2668

Florida Senate - 2021

36-00745D-21

SB 48

202148

1011.62(1) (c)1., plus a per-full-time equivalent share of funds

for all categorical programs, as provided in the General

Appropriations Act ca=

£ tha = 3 1 Student Rd e
£ Lageation

GuaranteedAllocation.

(c) A student who is

r—eRae—i PEronaT (SaSaS22s

eligible for a Family Empowerment

Scholarship is eligible for a transportation award limited to

$750, if the student is enrolled in a Florida public school that

is different from the school to which the student was assigned

pursuant to s. 1002.31 or

is enrolled in a lab school as defined

£ +h inl 11 inl + hel i

in s. 1002.32 The—amount

N leynlatad

11 +
YT =222 aretratet—amoth

T—Cft ot bERpowerment—oCRoTa¥rSht

+ N t of +h 3
r—Ehe—amouh f—the—priva

kieh

N

i
£

£h

3 4
regqurrea

a—£ + +otal

s L . 1
re—partrerpatIngPpPrIva 1 o

+ of £h hol

Pare— T rom—trt ST

P
=222 T HOTIESHATP .

(d) At the time of each Florida Education Finance Program

student membership survey,

the scholarship-funding organization

shall report to the Department of Education student enrollment,

FTE, and total award amounts by county, delineated by FEFP

n

1

program, and grade for Tk

distriet shall report all

students who are participating in attendingaprivat heot

gader this program. The——students—attending private schools—on

B

2T =

hinl 11 hint +
oMy Empowermeh

1
oI ESHTR

11 1 | ol
Eas e e reportcee Parater

from—other students—reported For the purposes of this paragraph,

an FTE shall be equal to four quarterly scholarship payments +he

i rd £

ink| inE]
trorrao—eucatron—Ihah

D

Prog¥ratt.

(e) Following notification on July 1, September 1, December

1, and e¥ February 1 of the number of program participants, the

department shall transfer,

from general revenue funds only, the

amount calculated pursuant to paragraph (b) to a separate

Page 92 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




2669
2670
2671
2672
2673
2674
2675
2676
2677
2678
2679
2680
2681
2682
2683
2684
2685
2686
2687
2688
2689
2690
2691
2692
2693
2694
2695
2696
2697

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

account for the scholarship program for quarterly disbursement

to parents of participating students. Fer—a—student teing—a

T h

D + £ of 11 i it + N
Pepartment—ofJuvenit SISacES mi-ERe Rt —program—wh Fr

qr

hint PRl 1
HRpowermeh HOTaE

1 ip—ealeulated pursuant to paragraph

£ ba £ a£ N hool—district 3 T
B ransferred—from—th hoot—a+s5trs: AW

h th

fiiaes T—E1t

Department—of Juvenile Justieer When a student enters the
scholarship program, the department must receive all
documentation required for the student’s participation,
including the private school’s and the student’s fee schedules,
at least 30 days before the first quarterly scholarship payment
is made for the student.

(f) Upon notification from the organization that an

application has been approved for the program, the department

shall release the student’s scholarship funds to the

organization, to be deposited into the student’s account by—the

& + + +l o+ IR . 3 a +h =l S : =l &
department—that +t has = tved—the deocumentation reguiredunder
h L Y + 1 §SNE £ oo 1 ] ££4 hall i)
paragraph etk Eiref Firanetal Officer shallwmal
hotarshippayments in four equal amounts no later than

September 1, November 1, February 1, and April 1 of each school

year in which the scholarship is in force. Thednitial payment

Page 93 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

2698
2699
2700
2701
2702
2703
2704
2705
2706
2707
2708
2709
2710
2711
2712
2713
2714
2715
2716
2717
2718
2719
2720
2721
2722
2723
2724
2725
2726

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148
a I SR +h + £ +h } + B ul
depostt—int he—a unt—of—theprivate—school-

(g) Accrued interest in the student’s account is in

addition to, and not part of, the awarded funds. Program funds
include both the awarded funds and accrued interest Subseeguent

£ h hol i PR AR | + £ ool £ £
£ S3S223 hotarshippayments he—department—shatt—regquest—from
the D + £ of R ial-S i 1 £ a a
hre—bepartmen FFinanciat EES S—Sap+ f—endeorsed
o & g £ 14 +h | +
VO EEOH to—revi are ArETrm mpHian Hh—endorsemen

(h) The organization may develop a system for payment of

benefits by funds transfer, including, but not limited to, debit

cards, electronic payment cards, or any other means of payment

that the department deems to be commercially viable or cost-

effective. A student’s scholarship award may not be reduced for

debit card or electronic payment fees. Commodities or services

related to the development of such a system must be procured by

competitive solicitation unless they are purchased from a state

term contract pursuant to s. 287.056.

(i) Moneys received pursuant to this section do not

constitute taxable income to the qualified student or parent of

the qualified student.
(13) OBLIGATIONS OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL.—

(a) At least once every 3 years, the Auditor General shall

conduct an operational audit of accounts and records of each

organization that participates in the program. As part of this

audit, the Auditor General shall verify, at a minimum, the total

number of students served and the eligibility of reimbursements

made by the organization and transmit that information to the

department. The Auditor General shall provide the commissioner

with a copy of each annual operational audit performed pursuant

Page 94 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




2727
2728
2729
2730
2731
2732
2733
2734
2735
2736
2737
2738
2739
2740
2741
2742
2743
2744
2745
2746
2747
2748
2749
2750
2751
2752
2753
2754
2755

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

to this subsection within 10 days after the audit is finalized.

(b) The Auditor General shall notify the department of any

organization that fails to comply with a request for

information.

(14) NONPROFIT SCHOLARSHIP-FUNDING ORGANIZATIONS;

APPLICATION.—In order to participate in the scholarship program

created under this section, a charitable organization that seeks

to be a nonprofit scholarship-funding organization shall submit

an application for initial approval or renewal to the Office of

Independent Education and Parental Choice no later than

September 1 of each year before the school year for which the

organization intends to offer scholarships.

(a) An application for initial approval must include:

1. A copy of the organization’s incorporation documents and

registration with the Division of Corporations of the Department

of State.

2. A copy of the organization’s Internal Revenue Service

determination letter as an s. 501 (c) (3) not-for-profit

organization.

3. A description of the organization’s financial plan that

demonstrates sufficient funds to operate throughout the school

year.

4. A description of the geographic region that the

organization intends to serve and an analysis of the demand and

unmet need for eligible students in that area.

5. The organization’s organizational chart.

6. A description of the criteria and methodology that the

organization will use to evaluate scholarship eligibility.

7. A description of the application process, including

Page 95 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

2756
2757
2758
2759
2760
2761
2762
2763
2764
2765
2766
2767
2768
2769
2770
2771
2772
2773
2774
2775
2776
2777
2778
2779
2780
2781
2782
2783
2784

CODING: Words strieken are deletions;

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

deadlines and any associated fees.

8. A description of the deadlines for attendance

verification and scholarship payments.

9. A copy of the organization’s policies on conflict of

interest and whistleblowers.

10. A copy of a surety bond or letter of credit to secure

the faithful performance of the obligations of the eligible

nonprofit scholarship-funding organization in accordance with

this section in an amount equal to 25 percent of the scholarship

funds anticipated for each school year or $100,000, whichever is

greater. The surety bond or letter of credit must specify that

any claim against the bond or letter of credit may be made only

by an eligible nonprofit scholarship-funding organization to

provide scholarships to and on behalf of students who would have

had scholarships funded if it were not for the diversion of

funds giving rise to the claim against the bond or letter of

credit.

(b) In addition to the information required by

subparagraphs (a)l.-10., an application for renewal must

include:

1. A surety bond or letter of credit to secure the faithful

performance of the obligations of the eligible nonprofit

scholarship-funding organization in accordance with this section

equal to the amount of undisbursed donations held by the

organization based on the annual report submitted pursuant to

paragraph (11) (r). The amount of the surety bond or letter of
credit must be at least $100,000, but not more than $25 million.

The surety bond or letter of credit must specify that any claim

against the bond or letter of credit may be made only by an

Page 96 of 158

words underlined are additions.




Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48 Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48
36-00745D-21 202148 36-00745D-21 202148
2785| eligible nonprofit scholarship-funding organization to provide 2814| allow the organization 30 days to correct any deficiencies.
2786| scholarships to and on behalf of students who would have had 2815 (d) Within 30 days after receipt of the finalized
2787 scholarships funded if it were not for the diversion of funds 2816 application by the Office of Independent Education and Parental
2788| giving rise to the claim against the bond or letter of credit. 2817| Choice, the Commissioner of Education shall recommend approval
2789 2. The organization’s completed Internal Revenue Service 2818 or disapproval of the application to the State Board of
2790 Form 990 submitted no later than November 30 of the year before 2819| Education. The State Board of Education shall consider the
2791| the school year that the organization intends to offer the 2820| application and recommendation at the next scheduled meeting,
2792 scholarships, notwithstanding the September 1 application 2821 adhering to appropriate meeting notice requirements. If the
2793| deadline. 2822 State Board of Education disapproves the organization’s
2794 3. A copy of the statutorily required audit to the 2823 application, it shall provide the organization with a written
2795| Department of Education and Auditor General. 2824| explanation of that determination. The State Board of
2796 4. An annual report that includes: 2825| Education’s action is not subject to chapter 120.
2797 a. The number of students who completed applications, by 2826 (e) If the State Board of Education disapproves the renewal
2798 county and by grade. 2827 of a nonprofit scholarship-funding organization, the
2799 b. The number of students who were approved for 2828| organization must notify the affected eligible students and
2800 scholarships, by county and by grade. 2829| parents of the decision within 15 days after disapproval. An
2801 c. The number of students who received funding for 2830 eligible student affected by the disapproval of an
2802 scholarships within each funding category, by county and by 2831| organization’s participation remains eligible under this section
2803| grade. 2832| until the end of the school year in which the organization was
2804 d. The amount of funds received, the amount of funds 2833 disapproved. The student must apply and be accepted by another
2805| distributed in scholarships, and an accounting of remaining 2834| eligible nonprofit scholarship-funding organization for the
2806| funds and the obligation of those funds. 2835| wupcoming school year. The student must be given priority in
2807 e. A detailed accounting of how the organization spent the 2836| accordance with paragraph (3) (d).
2808 administrative funds allowable under paragraph (11) (k). 2837 (f) All remaining eligible student accounts with funds held
2809 (c) In consultation with the Department of Revenue and the 2838| by a nonprofit scholarship-funding organization that is
2810| Chief Financial Officer, the Office of Independent Education and 2839| disapproved for participation must be transferred to the
2811 Parental Choice shall review the application. The Department of 2840| student’s account established at the eligible nonprofit
2812| Education shall notify the organization in writing of any 2841 scholarship-funding organization accepting the student. All
2813| deficiencies within 30 days after receipt of the application and 2842| transferred funds must be deposited by each eligible nonprofit
Page 97 of 158 Page 98 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions. CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




2843
2844
2845
2846
2847
2848
2849
2850
2851
2852
2853
2854
2855
2856
2857
2858
2859
2860
2861
2862
2863
2864
2865
2866
2867
2868
2869
2870
2871

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

scholarship-funding organization receiving such funds into the

student’s scholarship account. All other remaining funds must be

transferred to the department. All transferred amounts received

by any eligible nonprofit scholarship-funding organization must

be separately disclosed in the annual financial audit required

under subsection (11).

(g) A nonprofit scholarship-funding organization is a

renewing organization if it maintains continuous approval and

participation in the program. An organization that chooses not

to participate for 1 year or more or is disapproved to

participate for 1 year or more must submit an application for

initial approval in order to participate in the program again.
(h) The State Board of Education shall adopt rules

providing guidelines for receiving, reviewing, and approving

applications for new and renewing nonprofit scholarship-funding

organizations. The rules must include a process for compiling

input and recommendations from the Chief Financial Officer, the

Department of Revenue, and the Department of Education. The

rules must also require that the nonprofit scholarship-funding

organization make a brief presentation to assist the State Board

of Education in its decision.

(i) A state university or an independent college or

university that is eligible to participate in the William L.

Boyd, IV, Effective Access to Student Education Grant Program,

is located and chartered in this state, is not for profit, and

is accredited by the Commission on Colleges of the Southern

Association of Colleges and Schools is exempt from the initial

or renewal application process, but must file a registration

notice with the Department of Education to be an eligible

Page 99 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

2872
2873
2874
2875
2876
2877
2878
2879
2880
2881
2882
2883
2884
2885
2886
2887
2888
2889
2890
2891
2892
2893
2894
2895
2896
2897
2898
2899
2900

CODING: Words strieken are deletions;

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

nonprofit scholarship-funding organization. The State Board of

Education shall adopt rules that identify the procedure for

filing the registration notice with the department. The rules

must identify appropriate reporting requirements for fiscal,

programmatic, and performance accountability purposes consistent

with this section, but may not exceed the requirements for

eligible nonprofit scholarship-funding organizations for

charitable organizations.

(15)43+2) LIABILITY.—No liability shall arise on the part of

the state based on the award or use of a Family Empowerment
Scholarship.
(16) 433> SCOPE OF AUTHORITY.—The inclusion of eligible

private schools and private providers within the options

available to Florida public school students does not expand the
regulatory authority of the state, its officers, or any school
district to impose any additional regulation of private schools
beyond those reasonably necessary to enforce requirements
expressly set forth in this section.

(17)+4*4> RULES.—The State Board of Education shall adopt
rules pursuant to ss. 120.536(1) and 120.54 to administer this
section. The state board rules must include a requirement that
the department work collaboratively with an approved
scholarship-funding organization to expedite the process for the
verification and reporting obligations specified under
subsection (11) +3+6+.

5 —IMPEEMENTATION—SCHEDULE—FOR—THE—2010-2020—-SCHOOL
YEAR N e 3 ) L £ thi . 1 y

£4F4 + + = 1icibilit + 1

ification requirements and eligibility timelines,

2019-2020——schoeot—ear+

2! for—th

Page 100 of 158

words underlined are additions.




2901
2902
2903
2904
2905
2906
2907
2908
2909
2910
2911
2912
2913
2914
2915
2916
2917
2918
2919
2920
2921
2922
2923
2924
2925
2926
2927
2928
2929

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48
36-00745D-21 202148
{ \ a2 + 1 ] ] £ hnl -1 Al +
{a—Astudent—+ Heagible for a Family Empowerment
fa) 1 AN A N P N RPN i PN
b s e e b St e s
bt o 4 £+ a1 i At : + . =
beatred o S ey e by s
12N ] +h o4 14 =N £ +h a N 4+ o (9
hool—that—+ Hiegibt r—the programunder subsection {(8)~
a + + A hal N £ +h . + +
T s T T T e N
£ w4 1ok £h 15 019 mn + £ b
e e s e st =
. h] 4+ 3 4 £ 4 + A+ Ao+ £
e e R T B e et Cet L
+ £ 4+ +
- e e
3 TS N il 11 il £ a k]
e L e e
N 4 + 1 e 4 2 hIR et TR I I SR |
o I ==t T SR EIE Rt B e
+ +1h 14 tlnd ] 44 24 s £ FRPPPR | + + 14 £ £ +
to—Eh Tigibitit riteriafor ndents—to—guatifyforth
l o a +h + g + =+
Fro e Sa e e e G e ! £
hel AN Tl A + + £ 4 Adiotal 1 £ 1 i il
O e e S b b e £ bt
dict £ o€ n ) + £ oof th )
distrietof the parent intent upon—¥ e £ the parentls
3 g +h a SN 1 a =i =N (10 \ + 1
- e S e R X e i s a e P
Chief tinaneial—OFfF r—shatt—mat The £ £ £

Section 20. Section 1002.395, Florida Statutes, is amended

to read:

1002.395 Florida K-12 Education Funding Tax Credit

Sehotarship Program.—
(1) FINDINGS AND PURPOSE.—

(a) The Legislature finds that:

Page 101 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions;

words underlined are additions.

2930
2931
2932
2933
2934
2935
2936
2937
2938
2939
2940
2941
2942
2943
2944
2945
2946
2947
2948
2949
2950
2951
2952
2953
2954
2955
2956
2957
2958

CODING: Words strieken are deletions;

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

1. It has the inherent power to determine subjects of
taxation for general or particular public purposes.

2. Expanding educational opportunities and improving the
quality of educational services within the state are valid
public purposes that the Legislature may promote using its
sovereign power to determine subjects of taxation and exemptions
from taxation.

3. Ensuring that all parents, regardless of means, may
exercise and enjoy their basic right to educate their children
as they see fit is a valid public purpose that the Legislature
may promote using its sovereign power to determine subjects of
taxation and exemptions from taxation.

4. Expanding educational opportunities and the healthy
competition they promote are critical to improving the quality
of education in the state and to ensuring that all children
receive the high-quality education to which they are entitled.

(b) The purpose of this section is to:

1. Enable taxpayers to designate portions of certain tax

payments as make—privates tuntary contributions to K-12

education funding te—menprefit heolarship—funding ergantzatien

in order to promote the general welfare.

2. Provide taxpayers who wish to help parents with limited
resources exercise their basic right to educate their children
as they see fit with a means to do so.

3. Promote the general welfare by expanding educational
opportunities for children of families that have limited
financial resources.

4. Enable children in this state to achieve a greater level

of excellence in their education.

Page 102 of 158

words underlined are additions.




2959
2960
2961
2962
2963
2964
2965
2966
2967
2968
2969
2970
2971
2972
2973
2974
2975
2976
2977
2978
2979
2980
2981
2982
2983
2984
2985
2986
2987

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

5. Improve the quality of education in this state, both by
expanding educational opportunities for children and by creating
incentives for schools to achieve excellence.

(c) The purpose of this section is not to prescribe the
standards or curriculum for private schools. A private school
retains the authority to determine its own standards and
curriculum.

(2) DEFINITIONS.—As used in this section, the term:

(5)—n 1 At I £ toata £ 1
\s=22 Frigat—ta reatrt—amotst Meah ST —for—any =3 fiseat
+h +h £ of + e g |
¥y hre—sum—of—the amount—of—+ta redits—app¥ d—under
(5 () i 1ads + dits t+to-be—tal
paragraph— tbr—inretuerng—ta reatt be—taken—under
220 1979¢% 624 51055 hieh 8 £
—+ ¥ - 451 7 Frreh—are—apps a—for—a—taxpayer
N . i i 2 £4 T 1 £ o+ 1
Fr axabt a¥—begins—on—or after Joanvary +—of—th arendar
a th tort-of +h 14 51 tote £1 1
¥ —P¥ eireg—th art—of—the—appticab+t ate—fiseat—year

(b) “Department” means the Department of Revenue.

NS o ¥ + 4 £ + 4 1iger N £iE3ad 134 £
A DEr rErrIeatIon—==% meaH T rErEree—=3St £
hild N £ £ +h food { o+ +h
rrareR—wWho— oty to¥r—tRe—+ S—aSSTStEah Prografy +r
fau) + o Need hn) h| ko £h Food
Temporar STSEaft to—Neecay—Fami==+ Prografmy r—ene—+ €
Distribye D Ind 44 ded + +h
Brstribution—Preogramon—tnaian—F FraErons—p¥ raea—t EHr
£ Bg £ Btk £ Child g
bepartemern —Reuecatron—=o Ae—bepartmen —Chrraren—ana

(d) “Division” means the Division of Alcoholic Beverages
and Tobacco of the Department of Business and Professional
Regulation.

(e) “Eligible contribution” means the taxes, or a portion

thereof, remitted by the taxpayer to the department or the

division which the taxpayer elects to designate for K-12

education funding a—menetasr aEributionfrom o taxpayery

subject to the restrictions provided in this section—te—an

Page 103 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

2988
2989
2990
2991
2992
2993
2994
2995
2996
2997
2998
2999
3000
3001
3002
3003
3004
3005
3006
3007
3008
3009
3010
3011
3012
3013
3014
3015
3016

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148
+ les N PR NP PR s 4+ £
taxpayerfaking—th atribution may rot—designa a——speeift
hild +h B £ £ + 1 IS
hitd—eas—+the benefieiar £k reributieon
N . . . . Lo
PR s f iz A A + 17
means—a stateuniversity;—or anindependent tleg ¥
s + o k] | + o] + + T4 1]
GREversE that— Tiegibt partieipa in—theHWiltliam L
7 7 7
h] o g i + 4 N o £ £ £ 4
toecated—andcharteredin—thit aEe;—+s—= for—prefit;—and 3
ditred b +h fal 17 £ + 1 lal +h
aecredited—lhy—th mrtssieon—on ey £k eheEr
A 3 + 2 £ Col] = 52N il 1 I +abl
As iatieon—of Ileges—and—Schoolsi—or—is—a~charitabl
2 ] o+
rgantration—that
1 £o4 12 + +
—F mpt—from deral—ncom ax—pursuan
5Nl ¢ (2) £ +1 T a
Hel{3r—of theInternatT Fri des
2 inkl 1 3+ £ & = + &05 h +
Is—aFlorida—entity formedunder chapter —chapter
607 + 17 1 ££3 1 +ed +
—or—chapter aRd—wh principal—offs +s—teoecated—an—Eh
state;—and
3 fal 13 14 i + {6} {15}
Pt +h—sub teors—6r—and—5)
w ”

7
dafa a 1 100 a1 ¢ i +ad 3 ] = 3N . £ £
defined—in = {2 —teecated in Fleorida—which offers an

dueatien—t tuderts—Srany—grad k2 —and—thatmects—+th
3 3 {8
reguirements—in subseetion—{8)=
VASAY A\Nad hald "o +h 5 + +
hr—Heouseholdinecom has—th ame—meaning—a he—term

N2 ”

(i)W toplt 1ud
= wher—or—operateor—ineludess:

1 dent ££ g + 1 |
3 Fr Re¥r—presiaenty fHieers F—ai¥ tor—eof—an—etigibt

Page 104 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




3017
3018
3019
3020
3021
3022
3023
3024
3025
3026
3027
3028
3029
3030
3031
3032
3033
3034
3035
3036
3037
3038
3039
3040
3041
3042
3043
3044
3045

Florida Senate

36-00745D-21

2021

£ =
Arp-TuRarhRg

. s
rgaRTZacIof=

SB 48

202148

2 + 3 dent i 3 £
= Fr Fe¥y peratery gperintendenty r—principat—of—an
1 1] : + heool RN 1 +
Hegibteprivate school—ora personwith eqgurvalen
a P o led + i 1 | + hool
deeisionmaking—avthort: r—an—etigible—priva oot
() wm g 1t N i 1+
5+ Tor reat ap—amourt—means—the mostimum—anngat—ta

FASR\Y 2 ted PR funds I + ot &

e wetrghtedFH—fundingamoun Featt Fr =3 +et
total = iohted—full ;. k| £ £ands

averad tat—funds—per—unwetrghted—futd—tim gutvatent—funding
£ thot 3 ted b £ i + c 1

SROHHT hat—3s—Fncorporated by referen Hhr—Ehe—GCene¥rat

D 1 + 1 + 3

pPhropriation 7 o HoSegue pecial—appropriation

+ £ 4 .| PR £
aets r—the—appticable—sta fiseat ¥

(o) T ikl da—T Credit—S 1 :

{to—Fhe—Florida—Ta reat hotarship—Program—

AN + £ 3 1 | £ ] L da—+ EEwS

tor—2 weert—+ Hreipte—for o Flrorida—ta reat

h N a £ £ 1 E 1 tudent +
sehotarship—under—this tron—i+f—thestudent—meet Fr F—HOT¥
+1 £aoll 3 1+ 1

f—+the—feollowing—eriteria

—Th tadert—3 r—the—direet reificationtist—or—th
+tudentl B hold 3 1 a + a4 2606 £
tudents—househotd—income—t 1—deoes—rnot € pereen £
£ £fad 1 + 1 1.
the—federal—p ¥ + 1 ¥

Z2—The—studentis—eurrently placed;—or during the previous
tata £ 1 =l : fost : tof-h
tate—fiseadt a¥r—wWas—pltaced,—in—foster—ear r—iar—out—of—hom

4 i 9 01

are—as—aefined—in —0+
Pri i+ PRI N ; + +tudent —wh h hold 1 1
Priorst mast—be—ogirven—to—=a vaent—wh househotd—income—+ +
a + 4185 t of & £fad PP | 1
€t ret € pereen f—+the—federalt—p rEy—+ T—oFr—wWh
' 3 fost - of h tudent—wh iadtiall
is—in—foster—ear r—ouvt—of—hom are-—Astudent—who—initially

Page 105 of

CODING: Words strieken are deletions;

158

words underlined are additions.

3046
3047
3048
3049
3050
3051
3052
3053
3054
3055
3056
3057
3058
3059
3060
3061
3062
3063
3064
3065
3066
3067
3068
3069
3070
3071
3072
3073
3074

Florida Senate

36-00745D-21

2021

SB 48

202148

i 1 151 + 3 + 31 1 + £
Femath gt partieipa brrEt—h r—she—gradua from
hiah hool 3 + £ 21 hieh
Biagh hroot—or—attains—the—ag + GFEST—WhHeh ¥ T
£ + a1 £ +h +udentl h hold i 1 1
first;—regardies £—th tudent’s—househotd—income— A
NG £ tudent i 4ot £ i N hel
toling—of—a——studen ho—is—participating—3n—th hrotarship
a PN N o i 1ieibl £ hol i £
program—under—tht tHo tron—3 Hgibie—for—o hotarship—3F
(4} SCHOLARSHIP PROHIBLITIONS +tudent i £ alieilbl £
4 HOEARSHIPR—PROHIBIETIONS vadenrt—35—+ HHgibte—Ffor
1 11 h
=3 hotarship—white—H r—Sshe—35-+
(a)VF 1led 3 heol 3 £ +h £
{o—Enrrolled—an—= hrool—eoperating for—the purp £
Ll g = 3 + + 3 £ of
proviairng—eaueationat i sEh—hn—Dbepartmen £
T 1 T- + 1+
ove Rt SISEES mt-Eme Rt —Pprogramss
In) R 3 1 hal hi £ + ] SN £4 4
—+ g —a rotarship—fromanotheretigible nonprofit
hol i funds i 3 a £ 4+ .
hotarship—funding—organization—under—tht o8
(e} R L ad + hol +
{e)—+ i —an—eaueationat hotarship—pursuan
chapter—1002+
()} Partiecs 3 N g + a : :
{eh—Partreirpating o RO dueatronr—programas—aefinea—Th
= = 3
y D 2 o] s + PR 3 4
r—Participating—In—aprivat vEoring—programpursuant

ot
£

learning programtha

he
=

FO—MOTE hah TES per—seh aF ¥
L) 1led 4 + ikl 1 hool £ + Deaf 8+
gr—Enrotted—in—the—Florida hoot—Ffer—the Peat—anad—+th

+5) K-12 EDUCATION SCHOLARSHIP FUNDING TAX

LIMITATIONS.—

CREDITS;

o L e 5220 mills e

CODING: Words strieken are deletions;

Page 106 of 158

words underlined are additions.




3075
3076
3077
3078
3079
3080
3081
3082
3083
3084
3085
3086
3087
3088
3089
3090
3091
3092
3093
3094
3095
3096
3097
3098
3099
3100
3101
3102
3103

CODING: Words strieken are deletions;

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148
201 okl tate £3 h|
+ =S——sta frseat aF
Ip+ 013-2014 P £3 = ot at 1
Fa—th 4 aEe—fiseadt a¥r—and—eaehr——state—fiseat
N £+ + + dit P the + e
a¥r—thereaftery Fr & reart—eap—ameount—+ thr =2 reat =P
PR £ 3 ot £ 1 ha1 ; ot
ottt —R—the—Pp¥rior tate—fiseal—year—How rr—FhA—af ot
£ 1 + 1+ dait P N 3
fiseat ar—when—the—annrvat—ta reart—amount—for—theprior
tota £3 1 : 1+ + 1 fo¥al + £ +h
= fiseadt ¥ —+ Sicicra r—greater—thah pereen —th
tax—eredit—capamount—appliicableto—that—state fiseal—year;—the
£ dat £ ohoall 4 B [ £
£ reatrt—eap—amoun Fatt—3nerea B pereen Th
B £ + £ 1w P 4 b + + £ R hall 51 h
bepartment—of auecation and bepartmen £—F Frix Fatt+—pubtish
thad Bodt i £ 1 1 4 4 £ +h + EERS
A—Ehetrr—webstt HRrformatiron—TaentrEying—the—ta reat ap
PR tE 3 1 4 PRSI SS N B N
SROHHT e+t —3Fs—Fnereasead—pursuant—t Fri- thparagraph-

(a)+b)r A taxpayer may elect to make eligible contributions

ubmit—an—apptication to the department or the division for a
tax credit or credits under one or more of s. 211.0251, s.
212.1831, s. 220.1875, s. 561.1211, or s. 624.51055. For

elections related to taxes imposed under chapter 211, chapter

212, or chapter 561, the taxpayer shall make the election on a

return filed with the department or the division. For elections

related to taxes imposed under chapter 200 or chapter 624, the

taxpayer shall make the election when making the estimated

payment.
(b) The taxpayer shall specify the amount of the eligible

contribution, which amount may not exceed:

1. For elections under s. 211.0251, 50 percent of the tax

due on the return on which the election is made.

2. For elections under s. 212.1831, 100 percent of the tax

due on the return on which the election is made.

3. For elections under s. 220.1875, 25 percent of the final

tax liability shown on the taxpayer’s Florida Corporate Income

Page 107 of 158

words underlined are additions.

3104
3105
3106
3107
3108
3109
3110
3111
3112
3113
3114
3115
3116
3117
3118
3119
3120
3121
3122
3123
3124
3125
3126
3127
3128
3129
3130
3131
3132

Florida Senate - 2021

36-00745D-21

SB 48

202148

Tax Return for the prior taxable year.

4. For elections under s. 561.1211, 90 percent of the tax

due on the return on which the election is made.

5. For elections under s. 624.51055, 33 percent of the tax

due for the prior taxable year under s. 624.509(1) after

deducting from such tax the prior year’s deductions for

assessments made pursuant to s. 440.51; credits for taxes paid

under ss. 175.101 and 185.08; credits for income taxes paid

under chapter 220; and the credit allowed under s. 624.509(5),

as such credit is limited by s. 624.509(6) .
=Y

1 The +

11 1 £ 3 +

Tt aRPpETYEE

+

h
b
L

o

r—whiech

h 14 +
Ao B Ty re—apprIreatIon e—ta

T aRPATYEeE

dr
a
fh

RO o F

£h 51 +
f €

re—applicabl

12 1837 561

7 ¥

£

taxpayer may apply for

bef the date—t
Fre—eh

£4 +h

+

+ h

14 11
PP TrEatTony ne—aepartment TP *

4 iol leaft o +h
r—aeniat—+ ¥ Fr

Page 108 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




3133
3134
3135
3136
3137
3138
3139
3140
3141
3142
3143
3144
3145
3146
3147
3148
3149
3150
3151
3152
3153
3154
3155
3156
3157
3158
3159
3160
3161

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

€111 g {4 + d otata £3 £ a4t
folty—used—wrthin—th peerfied aEe—fiseat ar—for—erear
g 211 0251 1 19831 561 12711 +
THeaer - - + 1S3+ ¥ = 12 H—er—again &
a £ +h L fiad + 51 £ a3t | 20 _1g97¢%
cdue—for—the speeified—taxabd r—for—ecredits—under =
24 51055 | £ £ FRs 1 bilit +
¥ - + beeat f—anasuffieren SR —FrattTt —th
t of + + + 11 b i £ a
par f—th aRPpayery hre—unRused—amots Fratd—b ar¥rirea—forwarda
L od £+ 810 i) £
for—aperiodrnot—+t € aFS—FOrPUrp =
220 190795 e 8 € N N +
= —a—e¥reat ar¥rrea—forwardmay beused—Fn—o SubSegueh
£+ 1 + + it a a
year—after oppiying—th ther—eredx aGRe—uhgsed—ea¥rE FS5—+H
£h = ided—3 290 02 gy
th raer—provided—in——5S- g {8
FERN + + .
b axpayer Moy Ve —aSSHahy r—Eransfer—an
a—+ EEwS £ 8+ ait+ +h
SPPE e reart—oer—a——earyr Fwara—ta reat S33acasracra
R 1 11 £ o+ . £ o+ + 4
et Soaes att—eof—the—= f—the—taxpayer—oF Fr S
3 & + £ 8 + + + H +
IS STERe; r—Eransferread—Fn—th S3iss ransactiron—1it r—a—ta
dit g 211 0251 21 1831 2201875 5611211

fe) Tiths ot £1 1 + ind

e r—Wrthin—an tate—fiseal—vyear; o taxpayer may—¥ et
11 £ + EES a g h{(b) Th
atl—orpartofa+ta redit—appr d—underparagraph—(bo)r—Th

Page 109 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

3162
3163
3164
3165
3166
3167
3168
3169
3170
3171
3172
3173
3174
3175
3176
3177
3178
3179
3180
3181
3182
3183
3184
3185
3186
3187
3188
3189
3190

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

PR NS + PSR 12 k| 3 + 4 +
PRt btairn—the—a3vision approvat—priror—to—= pEiag—th
ind £ of + EES & g1 1217 +
¥ Hhafmetr f—a—t= reart—unaer = 12— Fry oot
;. g g +hi N 11 b 1 1abl +
¥ rRraea—aRaer —this paragraph Sshatd+—bH Me—avatrtabt to—ah
1igibl + £ + a4 b B a
+Hgib+ taxpayer—on—a—f£1¥ me;—E+rst rrea—phasis—pasea—ohn
£ EERS 1 + a4 af+ + date+ ind +
= reart—apptireations—+ Trea—after—the—€da he—r TRamert
tod bvthe & +
5 ptea—o hre—aepartments
(£ maiehs 10 & £+ 3 b= 3 +
W+t 0—aays—after approvingor denying—th
+ £ ' + £ + ERS 4
Arreyaneey FaRStery F—arSSTEgRMeH fF—a—ta reart—unaesr
h {d + 1 a + £ + i+ a
paragraph—te r—Ehe—resernament—otr—a—ta reart—unaer
W (e + 4 + + 11 = £ 4+
paragraph— 7 he—aepartmen hFati—proviae—= By =
1 4 tal lett ot 1iegibl s hel 3
approvatr—eor—aenriat—+ ¥ Hr Teibternonproft Fotarship
£ EE 1 4 d £ g 1 + T
ToneTRgorgantZatron—SpeertIea o r axXpayer—rhe—acpartment
hall 1 : lude+ 1 ] + 1 '
Fratdt—at e e Fr Hregibternonproft Fotarship—funaing
a £ 1 1 g + £ + a3+ a
rresponden faecknowledgment—Ffor—ta reatrts—under <
3 : + + 200 34 g+
trmated rpora HRE O =2 pursuvant—+E s —4—ane—ta

1 hn) £ det i 1 £ 1+ int +
I—Feor—purp f—¢ R apenatty—or—3nter
hall b ' a4 £ = £ of +3 tad + :
hadtd—Pbe—imp d—for—underpayment—ofestimated rporate—incom

Page 110 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




3191
3192
3193
3194
3195
3196
3197
3198
3199
3200
3201
3202
3203
3204
3205
3206
3207
3208
3209
3210
3211
3212
3213
3214
3215
3216
3217
3218
3219

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

it 4 2200 1979¢% g 4 + ot
a—ereart—under g = —redt S thoted—payment—in—tha
£ 51 By +h £ + a5t Th N N
Eaxabt ¥ oy —the—amounrt—of—+th reart—Tht vhparagraph
1 + PR PP =l £4 Tl 1 2014
apptt rEributions—mad r—or—afterJuty 35 4~
hn) £ det et 1 £ 1+ a
—For—Ppurp £—¢k TR apenatty—under =
624 5002 11 b g i £+ i e
hFati—be—3mp —ahr—haSurer;after earping o c¥reart
= 4 51055 £ + 1 |
wRder 45+ for—a—taxableyear;—may redy =333
+ £ £ h 51 £ 27 + +
instatiment—payment—for—such—taxab+: a¥r—of pereen f—h
£ of + £ & g tad + + £ +
SO f—the——+ tax—due—as—reported—on—the—returan—for—th
dit T i N 13 + e o g
reart—Tht whparagraph—apptt Freributions—math A—o¥
£+ 1 2014
afEter—Juty 7 4~
) ORT TCOATTAON E ETTCTRTE NONPRAOERTT O T ROUTD _TTINDTANCG
* BEEFGATEONS OF EETFGIBEE NONPROFET HOEARSHEP-FONBENG
R NIFZATTONS 13 1 £+ 1 SNE £ =E
T NIZATEONS ar—etigibte—nonprot: hotarship—fanading
) M- + ] +h +h ESE S 1 1 + 3 1 £
a—Must T+ Heh—theantidiseriminotion pProvision £

£ s H + let £ of £31 s £

Fngerprin —How rr—Eh Tt f—Hingerprint f—an
+ £ 1 £ N 1 + Th

wher—or—operator may not—be—taken by —th whe¥r—eor—operator—Th

Page 111 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

3220
3221
3222
3223
3224
3225
3226
3227
3228
3229
3230
3231
3232
3233
3234
3235
3236
3237
3238
3239
3240
3241
3242
3243
3244
3245
3246
3247
3248

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

b ded+ + + £ md + £ : g
Be—Pp¥F Taee Are—bepartment ot Fageatieon—+tor reenrRg—whRaer
+ 435 + £ + baeal g : e b
AapEer T F—ERre—PoacKkgrouna reeRTRg Moy ©Oe—POoFrh
£
£h He¥r—o¥r—operateors
Lo [ foll ' 1 + PR
—Ivery =¥ fotTowiRg—CRpTovymeH F—ehRgagemer
4 . L . 14 i .
pE rae—Serviees—or association with aneligible nonprofs:
h fundd : 4 B + +
oo rShtp—EuRa I Rg—organtZationy SEH HEeF r—operator—must
PR 1 2 3 + andard = T bhed 4 435 04 +
i =+ + reeRIhg TRESFaS—aS—€r FHoea 3 —4 oA
PR B + £ 1 Py PR a +
reew re—bepartmen F—FEaw—hRforeemen forwara—tf
3 1 £ + Fed B £ T £ 3 £ 1 12
TIRgerprIH AHe—Feacrar—Bureaun—of =+ TgaEron—fe¥r—= =+
I£ +h £3 s £ + +
reenrng——HE—the—ftingerprints—ot—=an Re¥ r—operator—arenot
PR a b+ ia) £ + £ 1 EnPo + = B h
retarnea oy —tnre—Dbepartment—ofr—Taw khforcementuReer woparagraph
3 + + + h| + 1 11 £31 let
7 Hr e E r—operator—imu + rorreatty—frie—= TPt
+ £ £ it ith the T + + £ 1 Enf £ 171
t—ot—fIngerprin wirth—the—Dbepartmen F—haw—ERrforecements Pon
brad ' £ £ s £ +hi + h| 151
BOMTSSTHon— o I Rgerp¥rih £ ATFS—Purp 7 +r THFEOT
£he D + + £ T LRt £ £ g +h £ + +
the—bepartmen +—aw—IERrforecement—torwara—the—fingerprint
£ Fed 1 B £ T ' 1 £ 1 1 2 3
hre—tederat—Bureaw—of I rgatron—for—+ + reenthgy—and
Enf + i N
Erterecement—unaer Geparagrap g
EnE + g bv—thi B B 3 B
Enfeoreement—as—regurred—bH his—paragraphmast—be—retainea—b
£ + £ 1 LRt PR a4 b 1
the—bepartmen —aw—ERrfeoreement o ManRer apPp¥ S—y—Ft

£ £+ 5 1 1abl £ 11 = + a £

thereafter beavartablte foralt+—purp SRt athorized—for
£ £ 3 + = £ ot 3 A + tod i PR

aEE t—Erngerprint rEerea—3R—th aEewirae—automatedbrometrt

Page 112 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




3249
3250
3251
3252
3253
3254
3255
3256
3257
3258
3259
3260
3261
3262
3263
3264
3265
3266
3267
3268
3269
3270
3271
3272
3273
3274
3275
3276
3277

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21

202148

4 il + £ 1 Enf + 11 11
4—TheDbepartment—eof Taw Enforecemen hatd areh—att
+ 3 3 = = Q4 051 3 PR
aEF¥ Frrgerprin ¥ Trea—aRaer = 4 T—agatt Fr
dentif P + & 5 h 3 + &
raentifieation tem—under Hoparagraph = Ay—aEE ¥ re
£hat 3 E3ad I ’ + ’ £ s
hFat—3s—Fadentirfs Teh—ah Her r—operater Firgerprin
i tod + £ D, + £ g £ Th D. + +
mast—be—reportea—+t he—bepartment—of baueation—The bepartment
£ 1w + 11 + : + PN B '
Fageation—shatd—partieipa Th—tht aFFreh—P¥ by—Ppaying
1 £ o+ B + + £ 1 £ £ a4 b
a—anRdat—E he—bepartmen fF—aw—rforcement—ana—by
i N £ ' £ D. + + £ T Enf + £ K 3 £
rforming—the Dbepartment—oftaw Enrforcement—of any change—In—th
1 + + Lokl P £ +h
MpToymerts RrgagemeRty & +aEron et f—th rer ¥
+ N £3 s a3 = = B h
perater Fr FERgerprih a¥re—retarnea—gnRaer doparagraph g
mh £ + ha11 A + 1 PR N
The—bepartmern F—haw—ERforeement——Sshalt—aaopt—a—¥u+ terrg—th
£ £+ 1 £ + 3 a + + + £
SROtHT f—the—anngat—F to—be—mp Sd—aponr—the—bepartmen £
Ed 1 £ £ ' + ' = +albli ' +
baueatiron—for performing—th E S arrer SHotTShihg—th
A £ N + + £ +
PE Sa=so for—the—retentron rer—ana—operator ftIngerprInt
the o ' £ h 14 o £ beb N
aRe—Ehe—a+ fratron—of SFFER—F S=o —Fhe—F oy —be—Pborne—bYy
I e bl 3 £ 3 4
= roRp¥rof: Hotarship—funadingorganization—wh e E
+ 1] +h h| 1 2 bael = 3 3 +
r—operator—tait the—+ + backgroune reenrthg—+S—Hot
1 N + 1 + 4
e thi TR~

¥
banl + e banl + i i £ hioal 1
bankrupt ¥ rporate—bankrupteyin—= rporation—of—whichH
1 hol i = +hi +3
provide—schotarships—under—thi tron-
7 I ddaiti PPN ££ 1 tad 1 435 04
—Ih—agaition thr ffen +Hrstee—3n——s+—+4 45—

Page 113 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

3278
3279
3280
3281
3282
3283
3284
3285
3286
3287
3288
3289
3290
3291
3292
3293
3294
3295
3296
3297
3298
3299
3300
3301
3302
3303
3304
3305
3306

Florida Senate - 2021

36-007

SB 48

45D-21 202148

££ £ anos

|
o

23 £ another
+ 1 3 et L e 4 ££ £
a—Any—authorizing sta —if—th ffen as—a—feleony=
'~ m + e 4 ££ £
b—Thi hapter—3£f—+th £fen ras—a—feleony-
4 400 Q20 Ja+3 + Med o 1 £ g
- fon—4 —relating Mediecaid—provider—frauds
= + 3 400 Q2N1 1o+ + Med g £
&= ton—4 1—relating Mediecaidfraud-
+ 3 747 29 1 + =l + 3 3 il
= for—F41-28—relating dom 3 ioleneces
£ + Q1 024 1 + a1 + + +h
£ on 4—relating fravdutent—a threough
1 ] a3 1 + .sy il +
matl—wire;—radie;——electromagnetic,photeel ronie;—o¥
ot 4 hl +
ph teal—-sy RS
+ Q1 24 1 1 + £1 a £ a1 +
&= +on—81+7-234—relating £at and—fravdulent
insuran Taims—
h £4 817 505 1ot + £4 £ Brok 3
h- Tof —relating patientbrokering-
1 + Q1 569 1 + o + 1 1 ] £ ]
i~ fon—817- —relating riminal— £ persenat
identificationinformation
- —60+
+ £ Aial +
through—frauvdulentmeans=
1 1 Q17 ¢£1 1o+ + £ Azl + £ a4+
Y= Tof —relating—to—fraudulent—x £ eredit
eards;—3f+the offense—was—afelony-
1 + Q21 fakl ] 1
1= ion 1-01—relating forgery-
1 Q21 N9 1o+ + 4 : £ g 4 + +
s Tof 1-02—relatingtouttering forged—instrument
£ 31 falwl Ja+3 + £ 1 B 1 bi11 H k
A Ton - —relating—toforging bankbills;—~<cheekss
A £4 2 4+
drafts;—orpromt ry—f -
£ 231 09 1 a+3 + + 4 3 £ b le—311
g Tof 1-09—relatingtouttering forged bankbillsy

CODING:

Page 114 of 158

Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




3307
3308
3309
3310
3311
3312
3313
3314
3315
3316
3317
3318
3319
3320
3321
3322
3323
3324
3325
3326
3327
3328
3329
3330
3331
3332
3333
3334
3335

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

heek draft : +
heeks—daraftsy F—promissory—hot g
+ 231 1309 1aes + i btaind i
P~ +OH 1= —retating fragd—in—obtainingmedicinad
3 931 1 1 ati to +h 1 faet
= O +-3t7—relating+ hre——sale;—manufacture;
del RN intant + 11 £foot
dedliveryy P Fon—with—the—Inten H—maprufactures ¥
a + + trollaed N £ +h ££
gdetrver—any wrrEerfes: rErotted bstanece—3F—th ffen =3
(e} + + + +
M rot—ha aGR—owWhRer—or—operateor—wh Fr r—ope¥ra
1 | + hool—that = + +
af—etreible—priva hoot—that—3sparticipating—3n—th
hel N
rotarshipprografm:
() Mot N 3 1 | bt
{eh—Mur Provie hotarshipsy—from—eligibt FEributionsy
£ 1ieibl tudents—£ + £ of-
et vaerts—for—th £
] + £ £ ] Bl 1 I ]
—Totrtieon—and—F for—an—eligibleprivat oot ¥
2 o + + ] L 151 hool hieh
—rransportation—to—a Floridapubis: hoot+—3n—which—-a
tudent—3 1led & —+that 1 a5 £f £ £ + 1+
vaent—+ rrotted—anad—that—is—arfferent—from—th Hoot
3 5NE h + 14 + + ] 1o h ] a 1
Fieh—th tadent—was—assigned——or a—tab—sechool—as—defined—3n
h a haol oY £ 1 11 £+
ho—r ived—a—schotarship—froman—eligible—nonprof:
hol : ; 3 £ + ot £ @ :
hotarship—funding—organization—or—from—th =3 F—Florida
& 3 th 3 hoeol TR 1ieibl £i+
Sduring—the—previon hoolt a¥r—Th Hegible—nonprofit
hel i i + £ £017 1 4 +
heotlarship—funding—organization—my ot y—appty—and haust

1ieibl tudent £ + £ + RN ;. 1 +h

et tudent—on—a—first me,—fErrst-servedbasis—unt th

tudent 1s£- £ 3 + P h {e) =
veert—aguatiEs for—prior: Porstuat paragraph—({e)r—tach

Page 115 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

3336
3337
3338
3339
3340
3341
3342
3343
3344
3345
3346
3347
3348
3349
3350
3351
3352
3353
3354
3355
3356
3357
3358
3359
3360
3361
3362
3363
3364

Florida Senate -

36-00745D-21

2021

SB 48

202148

AN d4id + 1 i hel N |
23 S=ac 3 E= * aT—Eeh === r—RTtIar oo rSATp—Pasea
lal + 1 ] £ 1ok 4 £ £
EaSE H—tr EaSaSH T—avaTTaoT THHRe gReer—tnt ToRr—aha g

4+ 4+ + £ A 11
e at e has e o furds—avattables
les) M + PR k] £ +
o = =< e = R e S S
3 oY 1 = hal hi + hald £
carticular private scheol or provid kolarship a-child of
£
B B
FATAY M- + 11 a2 + £ + + 2N
bk Sten— eess—Se—= e et £t e
g a + haild £ h £ + 1 I +ad
r—a—dependen bitd—ofaparent—whets a member—of +th rited
S+ o+ in hal +
e et i e s
{3\ M- + 11 13 2] a2 + SRS A 13 1]
M atew—an—etigibt et = Ae—aay—etiatbt
+ h ul 11 4 £ I ul h
erivate—sehoot—and g =+ a—parent—to—transfer—= Fotarship
a 1 . | + + | ] + =N 1 £+
et Freedt = S Fer—ediaible prive Foot—etf—+k
parerntlis—<choteer
AW LY ul ul SN 3
= May—a Tieribt FrEributions—r Tved—purstant—t
£ + 212 NQQ 212 19729 100 40 3 +
A Lot + T2 et et ae—E
ESEN S £ ] 3N h 12N + 1 ot o 11 +rtaod £
state [iesoat ardnowhiohoguoh rrribubtons ar Slected for
A 3ot 4o £+ 3 4+ o i +ad
aemintstratt penses—+fth rgantzatieonha perated—as—an
13 2] £ 4+ hal 1 £ X 3 + 2 £ + 1 +
e D BT e (e o e e e

trily + & £ +the +otal + £
rErIoutrons—may € PeEr e T—Er totaT—amouh +
11 hel d b 11 1 £
S oo rShtpS—awWwaraca oy af—etgio+ Aorarshtp—funRatng

RN 51 = +h + ’
must—Pbe—reasonable—andn ary—feor—th rganization’s

+ d—distributs £ 1 ded 4 +
managemenrt—anad—aistributieon—of hotarships—awardead—under—tht

Page 116 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




3365
3366
3367
3368
3369
3370
3371
3372
3373
3374
3375
3376
3377
3378
3379
3380
3381
3382
3383
3384
3385
3386
3387
3388
3389
3390
3391
3392
3393

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

a4 £ lobbii 1444 1 £ iszit lated—+
wsed—fortobbyingor political—activityoF pet retated—t
1obbi 134 1 PRy e et third of + £und
tobbying—orpotrticat—actrvity—bUp—+ Fr hirad—eof—the—Ffun
+ 8 £ dmi-aistrats g £k N N
atheorizea—Ffor—= ratt: PeH raer—tht doparagraph
B a4 £ lated to—th 1+ £ of
may—be—used—for e related—+E he—recruitmen £
el £ + 1 | £ 4 hol
rEributions—from—taxpayers—Anr—etigibte nonprof: hotarship
Eunds i 3 + 13 3 £
fFoneingorganizatIonmay harge—anr—apprreation—+ =
by + 8f£ 1 351 hol i
—Mus penc—for—annual—or partiat-year scheolarships—an
+ 1+ + th 75 £ of +h £ ol |
SROHHT et r—greater—thahn pereen f—the—+ bt
e o i £+ draini-strat a : +
rErTbutirons—remarningafter aaministrats PeH duaring—th
tate £ 1 ;. hieh h PR PP 11 ted N
ate—fiseat ¥ —iFA—which——sueh rEributions—ar Heeted—N
+ 5 £ of h + 151 g o
Fiss Fror pereen f—sueh—+ et rEributions Moy o
Led ot £o11 3 tote £1 1 17 +
a¥r¥rirea—forware re—following =3 fiseat STam HH—amoth
RO =S A £ A+ £ L= 11
a¥rried—forward,; for auairt—Ppurp —ustbe—speecifieatd
deptified—£ I 1 tudent N +udent a—+
raertirfied—Ffor partieutar veerts—o waeRt—hame—ana—thehafm
£ + 1+ i + tudent—3 dmitted b £ +o +th
F—th oo+ Aieh—th waert—Is—admt €y 2S5 Fr

Page 117 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

3394
3395
3396
3397
3398
3399
3400
3401
3402
3403
3404
3405
3406
3407
3408
3409
3410
3411
3412
3413
3414
3415
3416
3417
3418
3419
3420
3421
3422

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148
; isel ' ; 1 e o ¥ . .

| ()
ghacr—paragrapa—{(Hr—

3 Muot  beaf 4 el £ 4 :
Must;—Pbefore—¢granting—= hotarship—for an—academt:
g + h el i +udentl lieibilit £ +hat
S aoeumeh EHr hrotarship—stoaent s etigibiiirtyftor—that
& : el 3 funds 3 P + +
e aeHT STam hotarship—fundingorgantzationmay gFrant
; hel
mutEryear hotarships—Fn—one approvat—p¥ -
= 4 fund
anc—eoperating—funas—s
(1) mael ok 1 £+ D + + £ wg 4
{H—Wrth—the Pprior approvatr—of the bepartmen faueationy
+ £ funds—+ +h 1 | £+ Aol N
e ranster—funas—to—anotherelirgibie nonproftt rotarship
funds : 4 adiei 1 fund + +
fFuneingorganizatronr T adadirtionat—funds—are—regutrred meet
ol 1 = d ot + Lz g £i+ hol :
hrotarship—eaemana—= Fe—F g HRohRproft Hotarship
£ g3 3 ] . £ 2 BRI IR | N + £
ToRerRgorganrZatron— A transter Is—rimitea—to—the—greater—o+f
$500 000 fa + £ +the +o+1 it 3 a4 b
% 7 ¥ pereen f—th tat rEributieons—F Tree—H
£ £+ ol ' £ ' 1 : +
Fre—ronrproft hrotarship—funaing organrzatron making—th
11 q £ a + = 1taod K +h
transter- —EransTerrea—tunasmust e acepoesTtea oy —th
: £i+ hed i funds 3 4 s e
¥ g hRonRproft hotarship—funaingorgantzationr—FTrteo—+
£ 4 el N £ A4 3 ] PR ol
ronprof: hotarship—fundingorganization—must P paratet
as h| 3 + 1 | e 3
erset d—Fr—the—anngat—fironciatl——ana Pt et —regurrea
(ra) + de to & it &g+ +
F—Mur proviea th verteor—Generat—ana—the bepartmen

1 fiad 51 e i
rErfred—pubtie—= vrtant—an—a reot +Heh—awditing
+ = 11 + 3 +he Upited Stat
tandarads—genreratty—o ptee—an—th rrtea—Statesy—¢ FRMeHE
suditing—standards;and—rules—promulgated by theAudite
o EES + + 1uad + £ 1
re¥rat—rThe—auait—report—mmy hretude—a—report—eon—financeiat
ot + tod 3 g ith 11 tad
tatements—Pp¥ rEea—A—o o Heh—generalty—= pted

Page 118 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




3423
3424
3425
3426
3427
3428
3429
3430
3431
3432
3433
3434
3435
3436
3437
3438
3439
3440
3441
3442
3443
3444
3445
3446
3447
3448
3449
3450
3451

Florida Senate - 2021

36-00745D-21

SB 48

202148

: : | et + N idedto—th
=3 s iRg—princeipt —Auait—reports—must—beprovided—+t B
+ Fal 1 + + of Td + + 1890 4
wetrtor—General—and—the Pbepartmen fEdueation—within—+ e
£+ lats £+ 1 1 £ 4 hol i
after mptetion—of—th Hgibte—hnonprof: hotarshtp—funding
3 +4 r £ 1 ik IEWS fa) 1 hall : 13
rganization fiseat ar—The—AuditorGeneral——shaltt—review alld
ik + it PN il ik
et —¥report tHoH: d—pursuan his—paragraph—Th et or
13 £ P 'S ot itrad o
re¥rat—shati—reay SRy —Sigariieant—3tem Frer ¥ Pt S35
tolati £ 1 dopoted byv—the Audit Ial 1 Th i+
Folation a—rute—adopted—lby—th vaitor—Generat-—The—+tem
£ b ded PN 45 4 £4 + dat + +
FH be—provie HehiRa—4o—¢a after—the—dat f—the—reguests
I£ + hol : funds : ] 4 + 1 h
H—h hotarship—funding—organization—a Fr Py —with—th
At Ial ’ £+ EEwS fal hall 3£ +h
Avairteor—Generat reat 7 B veitor—Generat——shalt notify—th
I islat R s
tegistats: Te e FAFRE =
(A} Mot 4 bt + 1 o to +
M prepare—ana—Submit—auarterty—repor Hr
D £ T4 4+ 2 + I {Q) 1) T
Bepartment—of Fauvecationpursuant—to paragraph {9+t ——*n
EIEENS 1 | £t hol N funds i 3
agertreon; anr—eligibie nonproft hotarship—funding—organization
+ it 4 1 i nf : tod bvt
P somTt—n—a—timelymanheranyInformation—regy S—oy—th
£ T4 4+ o ] + 3 + + 1 hal K
Bepartment—of Fauveationretating—+ Fr hotlarshipprogratms
(o)1 kY + + 3 + + £ g 1 £ of
tort—a—Mu parttreipa Fa—the—Joint—¢a Topmen £3

Th 4 = + i £ h| h| + 11 +
The—ag¥ S—apoR—P¥ Sacza maSt—unrtormiy—app+ to—at+—privat
h| + det + ] heth + 3
OO S—aRa My € i s e i zin-siin HeEReE Ae—P¥Iva

siiys

+ P £ + + 4+ 1 £ a4 2 +
B e e R s e B L R e B
+ iy £ 41 =] Th g =
& untant performarn fothe pr dures. The pr dur arid
Page 119 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

3452
3453
3454
3455
3456
3457
3458
3459
3460
3461
3462
3463
3464
3465
3466
3467
3468
3469
3470
3471
3472
3473
3474
3475
3476
3477
3478
3479
3480

Florida Senate - 2

36-00745D-21

021 SB 48

202148

by—Feab £ h b i i f + hel i Eands
by—Februoary—of—eachbiennium—3F—+th hotarship—fonding

3 + ded + 50000 1 N £ +
rarTZzatron—proviaee—i hFai—s == hotarship—Ffunds—t

fiseal year preceding the bicnnial review If the procedures—and
1 dal o + 1 + s dad +
guidelines are revised the revisions must be provided

£ i ht ted T i
Fr a¥F—ia—whieh—the—~revision \ASE3 T+ d—The—revised
a 4 11 +51 ffeet + 1
agreea—tgpoh—P¥ Sacc= Fratd+—tad £+ H vhseguen oo+
hn + 1 2019 0140 K 1 +h £
a¥r—For—th +9—sehoot a¥r—onty;—theJoint—review of
£ FEEEN leted a—+ 3
he—agreeca—gpon—p¥r Sac== st Tt d—and—the—revision
vbmitted—+to—th s stonerno—tater—than September 1520148
Th 1 = = 14 ] + + 019 010 h ]
The—revisedPp¥r Sacz= are—apptieabt Fr + T oot
Y + s+ +h 13 £ 3 + hool AN
—Must—monitor—th ptEah fFa—private—schoot—with——s-
100 4 1431\ ¢ Y 1 £+ haol SN £ = 1 + o ded
23—+ —the——schodarship—Ffundingeorganization provided
£ 2 e £ + 1 i £ 3 to +th hool i)
he—majort F—th hotarship—funaing Fr heoot—For—each
- = 7
hel i Eands i + 1 11 17 e £ 4
holarship—funding—organization—shatt—anngattynot:E B

g 1002 4271 (1) () -
BRae¥ — a2 ¥
(TT) + | £ £ fot ' th +
T Ay—materiad pEion £ reh—in—the—report

Page 120 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




3481
3482
3483
3484
3485
3486
3487
3488
3489
3490
3491
3492
3493
3494
3495
3496
3497
3498
3499
3500
3501
3502
3503
3504
3505
3506
3507
3508
3509

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21

202148

+ | i dali | N I i
=222 SFE S—aponR—P¥ SaE aTRa—agRTrae I gHacE =254 voparagrapn
1 4 4 ; £ +h 4 4 el
Ta—oher g3asacs TR —a—F Easy Tt PE \Sacs= oG guTrae T

(o) Mot int o + o band lett £ e
M et aT—th =2 bone—or—tetterof—ereds:

i RN N + (159 il £ of + £ bond
reguired—by—Ssub treor—t+ —Fhe—amotr —th S== bora—o¥
1ottt £ a4+ N 4 tod £ 1 +
tetterof ereditmay beadiy d—eaguarterd guat—the—actuat

£ of disk a8 € N g 3 IS
SROHHT fF—undispbursead—funaspbasead—upon—Submission—Poy—th

3 + £ ok + £ £3£iad 13 +ant
ranrzatron—of—= aFEemerrt—from—=o rErfreapubtie—= TrEatt

L £rd +h £ of dishb a4 fund Th 3 + £

rHEying—the—amount—eof undispbursedfunds—The reguiremen £
£ha N i a3 £ +h £ of i £z band
Fris—paragraph—oaf arvea—+f—th faeguirring—a suretybona
lett £ EEwS g+ 10 £ of
F—+ r—of——ereart €t hre—average—+ aF £

1 3 + N a 1 + 1+ £ di+ b fa¥al + Th
aeguring—a strety bond—or tetterof eredit P pereent—Th

i + £ +hd N : a £ ok
reguiremen f—thisparagraph—ar arvea—for—o =

; iz L nd dent 17 3 e ek
BREversTEyy r—ah—ihRaependen HHeq FURTVersSTE Hieh—+
1 11 + + 1 + 1 + v i i B a T Lf£ + o
Hgible—to participate in—the Wiltdliam b—Boye;—IvE£E ==
2 + tudent—REd 3 £ p 1 tad g + a
tuaentducatironGCrant Programy tocated—anachartered
' £k ot 3 £ £ £i4 g dited bw—th
in—this——state;—3s+n for—profit;——andisaceredited P Fr

1 +

Page 121 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

3510
3511
3512
3513
3514
3515
3516
3517
3518
3519
3520
3521
3522
3523
3524
3525
3526
3527
3528
3529
3530
3531
3532
3533
3534
3535
3536
3537
3538

Florida Senate - 20

36-00745D-21

21

SB 48

202148

1 £ + dras 1 £ N 1d
appty—for—the—admission—ofht r—her—ehiteas
)T inf + L1 dgr hool—distriat
o r—Fthe—parent—must—informth A3t hoot—a+s5tr: \gzicred

(e} A ud + + £ + hol 3
e geeRt—partrerpattI gt HoTaESHTP—Progran
+ 3 3 4 = +h h £k h 1
mast—rematri—i—accehRaah thHrovgRout—tr £t =+ STE BT
d b £h 1 £ 111 + 4
Bsea—o =222 23 T TO¥—F =¥t E= Her—¢ S—eat g
() | h + h 1d £ Bl 4 + £
{&)—fae—Ppareh aRG—eae BeeRHt—a SO0 ga Fr 3

£h PR g + tyiets h| = +h P
the—warrant s mademgst—r trretirvet SO Ehr NEETHT £
£ : + h 1 £ & e + + + £ & +
the—privat hoot—Ffeor—aepoesit—in he—a vrrt—eof—theprivat

Page 122 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; word

s underlined are additions.




3539
3540
3541
3542
3543
3544
3545
3546
3547
3548
3549
3550
3551
3552
3553
3554
3555
3556
3557
3558
3559
3560
3561
3562
3563
3564
3565
3566
3567

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

fatad N £iad e 3 + hool + Iy
=3 rated—with—the partieipatingprivat Foot—a he—paren
£+ } £ £ 4 4 hel i +
atterh in—faet—+ REOFE =3 hrotarship—warrahn r—app¥ =3
funds & £ 1ol + £o41 + 1 NS
Foret ransters partrerpant—who—fai+ Mp+y—with—Eths
N foitcs +h hel
paragraph—feorsE Fr hotarship-
Efundi 1 o + 3 ded—£ 3
fFuneingorgantzation—to—= Thformatiron—needed—for—Incom
Tieibilitv det : 3 a i £ = held b + ot
gttty ¢ ot ron—ane ririreation—hetd by her =t
£fod 1 ;. Tads the b + £ of R +h
r—federatlagencies; inctuding the bepartment—of T e, —th
£ of 1 1d i tha D £ of
bepartment—eof Chitaren—andtamities;—the bepartmen £
rd P + + £ o 2 + s 4 A+
baueatiron; —the bepartmen feconomt pportuntty;ana—th
£ I 1+ 1 2 3
AGgeH forHealth CareAdministrations
{8 —PRIVATE—SCHOOLELECIBILTTY ANDOREICGATIONS—An—etigiblt
; + L N + : + : PN
priva hoot—may—H SFIah—Or—hRoh aFiah—and—musts
) + 11 4 £ h ]
= o+ vrEh—att—reguirements—for privat oot
tied 3 : P 1 hod h
partreirpoting—Ir—Sta roeot—ehot Hotarship—prograit
)1 11 a 1 1 + 1 1 1 £ ESEEPS | +
1= Arga Y —aamiat r—o¥r—Ha preoviston—for vaern
tied 3 : + hol : : a 3+ h 10
participating—In—th rotarship—program—in—grad hrough—+
Byt £ of Td + + P 4 +
b he—bepartment—of dueation—or—th tatewide—= REF
+andards & tests ; + Lot £ £ £ha
tandardized sting—is—hnot—appropriate—ar mpt—from—this
1 + ] = 3 + heol + +
regurrements partireipatingpriva hool—mu report—a
) ’ ) 2 L . . ’ ]
+ 11 PRI N £ 10 +h £ 217
must—annvalty—report—b Tt + he——secores—ofatt
P o tudents—+ ot 3 g ibad—i
partieipating Gee to—a =3 STSESNASE S €k ribed—+n

paragraph O£~

Page 123 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

3568
3569
3570
3571
3572
3573
3574
3575
3576
3577
3578
3579
3580
3581
3582
3583
3584
3585
3586
3587
3588
3589
3590
3591
3592
3593
3594
3595
3596

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

P +h ot 1 d +
g amrarster—th tatewtrde—asSessSmenrts—pursuant—+€ -
1008 3 h 1 + ££ £ PR L d
H—a—privat hoodt—eh ££ Fr =SS,
+ Lo P + h + ££
=3 FerrEs— partreirpatingPpriva Hroot—ma Hr ffer
trand + + h 1 & + 10 & + bt
aEtend—theprivat hoot—3n—egraa hrrouvgh—+0—ane—must—subm:
+ 14 PN £ wg + s 1
a—Feat AW EThRg he—bepartment—of Fdueation by Marehr—+
£ K ; = £ dminict £ ot = + ;
f—each FEF—Th—o¥raer aamTrster—thestatewtrde assessments—+n
£ 5 + 1
thr tosegueh oot S
T£ 3 + K 1 + £ +h 3 + £+
H—a—privat Hroot+—tatis—to—meet—thereguiremen —Eht
5 4 1002 421 + : 3 det : IR
tHo TOR—OF — 42 H M-S STHoRer oy 6 T Frer
£ : + h 13 3 1iegibl + PR + : +
Fe—priva hoot—Fs—Fnetigibt partreipa Hr—EH
hal hi
rotarshtp—pPrografs
EPRA N RT T TTON T + + £
o N—OBEEGATIONS——The—bepartmen £
\ 11 npnd b+ PN A + 4+ PRSI I
o ARrgaE T domTt—to—the—Gaepartment e S vVISIon;T o
N K15 1 £ of o7 11 £i+ heol hi fundi
Mareh—3o——a3+ f—etiegiblernonprofs: Hotarship—fanaing
3 4 +hat £ +h ; + £ W (2) (£
ranZzatronsS—thatmeet—thereguirrement FPparagraph (25—
) 11 1 £ + ] 111 + £ £ 4
o) Arirgat 3£ th et Fronprofst
ol 1 1 4 that £+ 3 + £
hotarship—fundingorgoanization Frat—Hr hFe—regutrremen £
(o) 11 £z 1 3 + £ dit
s Arirgat 3£ th ettt £ penarEar =)
() heck + k| : 3 1
€} ¥ heek—theJdist—eof partieipating hotarship
(e} M + 1 + £ P 17 £ d test
e rMaintain—a st eof natieonalty norm—referenced—t
i deptified £ £ 4oy +the testi 3 £ 3
raentriiea—forPpurp s—of—satistying—the—t€ g —regurrement—an

Page 124 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




3597
3598
3599
3600
3601
3602
3603
3604
3605
3606
3607
3608
3609
3610
3611
3612
3613
3614
3615
3616
3617
3618
3619
3620
3621
3622
3623
3624
3625

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

134 3 g th Ctota [ d of 1
SgatiEy—Fn—o reat +eh—StateBoard—of rotes
(£) T + it +
{F—Fsswe—aPproT t—granrt—awara—teo—= FSHEy—E
hiah 1o £1 3 + K h| + £ +h £
vhreh—participating privat roots—must—report—the secor £
it | tudent + I 17 £ d toot
partieirpating GEe r—the—rnationatdy norm—referenced £
+ P + indot NS i + hool
F—EH ree—or e Sref rea—H hre—priva E2aSIS e
3 +h 10 Th 3 + 3 2 +h
in—grades throuwgh—+o-—Th o —i aFS;—ana—th
£ of & + + 250 000 T
SROHHT f—the—Pp¥r S5—up < 7 aFr—The—PproT S
+ a FEEEN &3 2 L nt g
grapt—aware g be—reissuead—Fn a¥F—FRtervats—3h—=o Feot
1 il P i + + 17 £ to +
=T =3 G e ST st —anngatty—repor thr
£ of g £ + tudent £
bepartmen Fraueatiron—on—th veerrt—performatt £
1 3 1 i34 +
partieipating waents:
P tde—b T 17 1 1ud +
o= A aFEewirde—Pbasis——The—report—shatt—at Thretudaer
£ tant | 3 £ hol : + Fy,
Fr P Fote;—a mparison—of roTarship v
£ + N o s RPN + £ £ K
performan £ B = rae—studentperforman fpubtt
hoeol tudent + : N L ot
oot GEee R + Hofftre—backgroune Hrtar Fr
LN + = A P 3 g £ N PRI
RS ts—ana—redy time—regurred—Ffor—th tat
Ty, : 1 3 + £ of
S S E aRaTySHs—ana aHaatErohy he—Dbepartmen £
data to + P 1 + 4 + + £
eata—t Fr HREFerst Ha—eordaer Fretss St £
1 1at trol tudent : a
ateudat rErol—group——student—performan vSing—an—agreed-—upon
+hodol th +h ot 3 N
methodotogy—with =3 HRrversTEyr—and

Page 125 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

3626
3627
3628
3629
3630
3631
3632
3633
3634
3635
3636
3637
3638
3639
3640
3641
3642
3643
3644
3645
3646
3647
3648
3649
3650
3651
3652
3653
3654

Florida Senate - 2021

36-00745D-21

SB 48

202148

11 & + + 3 4 3 1
hatd—Ppe—= Feng Feh—participatingprivat hoodt—and—For
PR 4 tudent 3 hieh +h PR £ 30
partireipating vaerts——whichthereare—at—3dea
1o 1 11 + 1 K £ + + dminiat a
partireirpatihng Eaaen ro—har ¥ for Sts—aaminrsteredas
I£ + P 3 tir deat : thot 4+ 30 + : 3
—Eh =3 TR e rSTHEy—6h T thar Fr partreirpating
tudent 11 B | = + PR :
a5 S8 +HH—s3 fay—be—Fredueea—wirthouvt—disetosing personatty

* piizea reat T+

Fr =2
P 3 + + 11 bat—t 11 3 + FEEEN
partireipating SaS S 2 HH—size;—Pbw Fr +H——s3 Fier Fr <
= a4 +teo1 th 10 ;. +4 tudent The d + +
redueed T thanr—10—participating students—The department
11 g N + rooll dent
Fro—provia aeh—prva oot PETOFE hoot—year Teert
17 £ 3 + 4+ ot 3 14 + +
rro+iment—information Hr g versity—ho—tater—than
T 15 I +tad K + 1 =
=223 f—each ¥ F—asS—Freau s he——sta R VersT =
2 o : g = £ otudant £ dat
—Th hFaring—anad—reporting—of vaent—performan data
g £k N N 3 L+ 3 + £
under—this—paragraph iy be—+h——a reah Wwith—Freguiremen £
1002 2 41002 221 420 11 g ¢ 123 IEN 3
T g et - +—ana —SC= —t §—the—Famit
Ed + R + in} + + Bl
baueatronatRIgh SePEIve —ana—the—appticabte—rut aret

£ + 4 £h k| + 3 d b I i
pPuER * reatIhe 23 aRRgaTT—¥FepPoE regqurree—o soparagrapa
1 11 £ £ £ t £ial3+ £
T TT—Pa¥rtEE riis=s PE ¥ 23 EEEEESS S e £ Sasz 24

as ta data + 1 1 thot 1 depntif i
eHsaggrega data—teo—a—=+ +—that—witd—Fdentify individuat

tied +3 hool + a a i i N
partiecipating——schootsy pt—as—reguired—under—Sub—subparagraph

3 T + i N N 11 3
—The—annval—report—reguirea—P vhparagraph—t—Sshatd—H
3 + £ + i + ’ deptified student
rganization—of—an f—th reanTZzation reentified GeeH
N e d 3 1 hol N + haot
vho—are—r ving—educationat hrotarships—Ppursuant—+ hapter

Page 126 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words

underlined are additions.




3655
3656
3657
3658
3659
3660
3661
3662
3663
3664
3665
3666
3667
3668
3669
3670
3671
3672
3673
3674
3675
3676
3677
3678
3679
3680
3681
3682
3683

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148
1062+

(A} Notif 1 151 1 :
H—Neotirfy—an—-eliegiblenonprofs: hotarship—funding
3 £ £ £ + i ] ’ Ldentified-student
rgonrzatiron—of—an £—th rgaRTZatTon raentrfied SaS S 83
N e + EEWS hol i £ +h 1ieribl
vho—are—¥ Ting—ta redirt—sechotarships—from her—eligibd
£+ 1 i £ands 3 I
ronprof: hotarship—fonding organtZzations=
(i) R i 1 PPN 1 | +
H—Reguire—eguarterty reports by an—eligibte nonprofs
+tudent 3 3 i + 1 + +
SaS 52t portireirpating—+a—th Rolarship—programy—the—Pprivat
1 £ ehieol +1 tudent 1led d—ok
reoets—at—which—th SaS 521 aF Arotlee;—ane her
i + 4 a g I +h D. + + £ o4 +
information—deemedH sary—by—the bepartment—of Eduecation-
(3\ D + okl as + s +
T —Previae—a—Pp¥ mateh—the—da3r rErfreation
1ist RN hol : 13 £ dat britted b
T3 Teh—Eh hrotarshipapprreation—aata—Sstubmt Sy —afy
£+ haol hENE £ = 1 4+ o ] SN +
ronprofit—sechotarship—funding organizationetigibt ¥ +
£ PR 17 g (6=
Fr pereent—aaminrstrats S HHowWah wRger—paragraph—6r{5—
105 CHOOE—DESTRICTORBLIGATIONS—PARENTAL—OPRTION
) 1T +h + 1 11 + haol SN
= por—the—reg fany—etigibte nonprofit—sechotarship
! £ i5Y il + + 11
o organiZation; o hroot—a3Strs Fratd—Fnaform—att
h hold RN tha digtes e £ a g 1 a
househotds—within—thedaistr ¥ Tving—Er r—reduced-priced
1 a +h Naot ] Sk ] T K + £ + 1 1 il +
meats—under—the Natieonat hoeot—FHuneh f—their—etigibidity
1 + EEwS h i i £ £ N £3
appry—Ffor =3 reet hotarship—The—formof——suchnots:

Eandi 1 | + | i 1 to b
Funeing—organtzatiIon—Trean a—Speetat Mt reaEron <
' d toh hold ek the disterict 3 £
issued—to—househotds—within—thedistrict—=r TERg—EE ¥
reduced-pricemealsunderthe Nationalt School tunchAet;—the
3 + 17 imb + dist £ £ + £ of
rgantzation——shatt—reimbyr hre—aistr: for—th t—of
+ la I + 3 1 13 i tad +

postages veh—hot: Fs—Himited—+& Fr a—year-

Page 127 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

3684
3685
3686
3687
3688
3689
3690
3691
3692
3693
3694
3695
3696
3697
3698
3699
3700
3701
3702
3703
3704
3705
3706
3707
3708
3709
3710
3711
3712

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

hool —diat + 11 ai th + £+ 4
hool—distriet—shatd renat +Heh—the—department—to—provia
i 3 i + hool—t P +
to—a—porticipatingpriva Hroot—th tatewirde—o FREF
drainiot 3 +h + hool—dist + 51
aamTrstering—the—=o MeRtES— hoot—aistrs: +S—responsibt
£ i tact i 3 + ] £ 3
for—imprementing Gt SEratrons—at o partreipating privat
h 3 1 ;. the-
hroodl—inetuding—thes
r 3 £ + i £ 3 + hool P oot
I—Preovisron—eoftrainingfor privat oo+ aEf—en—+t
T A + At ot o 5 4 .
HETEy—ana—a mert—aaminrstration—pr Sac== 7
Distributd £ teogts + | + 3 + heols
—Pbistributieon—-of+£ hgmateriats—to—a priva ool
3 __Ret £ teocts + Lol £ i + hool-s
—F rrevat—of Hhe—ateriats—fFromapriva oot
4 p iod + 3 8 £ £ £ : + h +
4—Provisronr—of the reguirreaformat for o prIva Fr
O o= P + N A3 o £ £ + + Arndnd ot P =
vhmit—information—t re—district—for—testadministration—and
13 + N g
rrottment—Ppurp —aRe
c L - . 3 Ly Ly .
—Provision—of any reguired—assistance T montTtoringy ¥
s + + . + i k]
E=is trgationr ot o priIva hood-
= CHOEARSHIRAMOUNT-AND—PAYMENT
] oY ] N 14 S| £1 4 hal K £ =IE
+Ret hoo+ ar—Pby—an—etigiblenonprofit hotarship—funeinyg
: 3 £ 1ieibl it 11 be £ ot
rganizatiron—fromedligibt rEribution hatd—Pbe—Ffor at
+ +h 3 6V (e + g 1
ts—authorized—underparagraph—{(6){td)+~n £ d—anhgadt

Page 128 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




3713
3714
3715
3716
3717
3718
3719
3720
3721
3722
3723
3724
3725
3726
3727
3728
3729
3730
3731
3732
3733
3734
3735
3736
3737
3738
3739
3740
3741

Florida Senate - 2021

36-00745D-21

SB 48

202148

b : PP £ £ tudent 1led 3 de 6
b—Ninet rvo—pereent—Ffor—= veent—enrotied—3In—grad
N4 4 3 + £ 14 + 13 =1 = [0}
—NERety—six—pereent—for o Sthdentenroltead I graa
£ N de 1
threouvgh—egrade—+2~
inJ dent i 11 1 11 + 0192020 N 1
—Foer veerts—Fnrtiatd eipte—aa—th oot
+h £4 +h h| lated £ tudent—+
a¥r—o¥r—thereaftery H areutatedamount—for astudent—+
e 1 | + 1 hall be b =] +
aEtend—an—etigibte priva hoot——shalt based—upon—the—¢grad
1 h| = 1 dist + h+ +tudent = 95
+ T—ane ¥ drsErT Th—whieh—th waert—¥resie =t
+ £ +the fund teahted—full 3 +h
pereen f—the—funas—per—unwetrghtea—fult—tim gorvatrent—Fa—th
ikl L da Ed 4 } D £ dent the b
FeoridaRageation—Finan Program—for— veerrt—Rr—the—Past
+ablished PR 1011 62 (1) ()]
pPrograft abtishea—pursuah —+o++= e pras—aper
£.77 4 1 + i £ £ = £ 17 +
Fot—t3m atrvarent—Sshar F—Hunas—for att—ecategorieat
£ £ + in) + 1 Student Ed +
programsSy pt—for—the I pEronat vaert—aueation
a A1l 4
darFatt At tocation-
2 Th K a + + + 11 a 1
— Fora¥rShtp—amount—awaraca—to—= SasaSras rro++ea—+h
ikl g B1ls h 1 3 tudent 1led a that
G roriaa—pubtt hroot—Fn—which—= weert—i rrotlea—ana—tho

£i+ hel i funds 3 +£4 to +th 3 + hoeol
ronprofit—scholarship—funding organization the—privat hroot
£ +h 1 hod d +th + 11 Iy s 1
f—+the—paren heotece;—and—the—parent——Shall—F rietived
= +h £ te +h + hoeol 1ieibl £i4
naorse—th aTEFERE the—privateschool—An—etigible nonprofit

Page 129 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

3742
3743
3744
3745
3746
3747
3748
3749
3750
3751
3752
3753
3754
3755
3756
3757
3758
3759
3760
3761
3762
3763
3764
3765
3766
3767
3768
3769
3770

Florida Senate - 2021

36-00745D-21

SB 48

202148

4 1
* TrFett e f2aSaSra

hrom—th varrant—is—mad 22 arrant—t
£ i + 1 £ g I DS £ of +h i +
the—privat hoot—Ffeor—aepesit—iH Fre—a wrrt—eof—theprivat
hoeol +that +h £ B = funds—t £ bef
hrool—or—that—the parent—has—appr d—a—funds—transferbefor
hol £and d itad
St hotarship—funds—are—deposttees
(e 13 51 + 1 3 3 3 I
) Ar—eigibte—hnonproft heotarship—fundingorganization
hall btad £ 3 +h : hoeol £ rudant !
hatl—obtain rificationfrom—the private school—ofa student
i &—att £+ hool £ L d a4 b
rErRwed—attendan =3 Fr hoot—Ffeor—each period rea—by—=
hol ; +
hotarship—payments

1 ] + 1 3 i + 1
Hgible—nonprof: hotarship—funaingorgantzation—Hno—=+
£ + N :
freguently—thahr o a guarteriy Pasts—
120 DMINTCSTDATTAN RUOIES
12 PMINESTRATFON—RUEES—
(e)V—T g + FRS g a—+ D + £ of
{a—The—department; —thedivision, ancd—the bepartmen £
Ed £ 11 4 1 £ PR Py o +
bBaweation—shatd—a Top—a perat: Sgreemen G55+ F—Eh
2 £ o+ P
aamiistration—of—thi Eroh
)T + 13 doot +
tbr—Tthe—departmen Fratd—aaopt—rust Fr ¥
dminist £ £ d 211 0251 2190 1 20 _1g87¢%
aamiister—this tron—ane—5S5+ 11— £ 18345 -
51 l 11 a 624 51 QncC ] a ] ol hi
123 —and + —rRetueng—rut So+HEShihRg
; £3 £ 4 3 + £ +
apptieca r—Eorms,—PpE Sacs2 Si rRiRg—the—approvat—of—ta

4 to be fol11 a4 b £ N irns

P¥ Sacz= to—be—fott Sass axpayers—wheh—elatming—appr S
£ EENS thed +

tar redits—on—their—returnss

d + fal

SRG—Ett TR TOREE £

£ g I g ki I
et

(4) 433> DEPOSITS OF

CODING: Words strieken are

e tIroRn—ugReeE E2=a Toh=

ELIGIBLE CONTRIBUTIONS.—All eligible

Page 130 of 158

deletions; words underlined are additions.




Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48 Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148 36-00745D-21 202148
3771 contributions received by the department and the division must 3800 “+a—Ar—apptication for initial approvalmustineluder
3772 by areligiblte neonprefit Rrotarship—funding organization shaltt 3801 1= B £—th rgantzationl s—inecerporation documents—and
3773| be deposited into a designated student fund and used for K-12 3802 registrationwith the Divisien—of rporation e e
3774 education funding im—a—manner Asistent—with s—37-572). 3803 of Stater
3775 (14} PRESERVATION -OF CREDIT.—If any provision or portion—of 3804 - py—ofthe organization’ s Internal Revenu et
3776| £hE tion;—s+—231-025t——s+—232-3831,—s—220-1875—s~ 3805| eeterminatt —S50HHe 3=
3777 Seti2ti—er—s= 4-51055—~or+theapplication therecof to—an 3806| erganization—
3778| persen—or—eireumstan is—held—uneconstitutional—by—an GrE—or 3807 3= E th rganization +—ptan—that
3779 + therwt deetared—invatid—theunconstitutionatit ¥ 3808| eemenstrat res—E perat root
3780 Imvalidit hattnot—affeet—an redit—earned—under—s—231-0251 3809
3781 —2 1218315220 1845—s—561-F2tt—oer 5624510855 by—an 3810
3782| +taxpayer—with respeet—to—an rEribution—paid—to—an-eltigibt 3811
3783| rpeorprefit——schotarship—funding organizationbeforethedat £ 3812
3784| determination—of unconstitutionality orinvalidity—Sucheredit 3813
3785 el be—allowed ot sueh time and S such o merner as—+f = 3814
3786| determination—of unconstitutionalit r—invalidity hadrnetlbeen 3815
3787| made;—provided—that nothingin—thi =S tiorn—by—itselfeor—in 3816
3788| <combinatieon—with any other provision of taw shaltlt resutt—inthe 3817
3789 atlewan £—an dit—+to—anytaxpayer—in fone—dollar 3818
3790 £ ereditfor coch dollar paid teoanetigible rorprofit 3819
3791| seholarship—fundingeorganizations 3820
3792 55— NONPROFET HOLARSHIP-FUNDINGORGANIZATIONS 3821
3793| APPLICATION-—Inorder—toparticipate—inthe scholarship program 3822
3794 ereated—underthis seetion——a charitable organizationthat seeks 3823
3795| +te—be—anenprefit Frotarship—funding organization must——submit 3824
3796| an—applticationfor initial approvalor rerewal to—the Officeof 3825
3797| ZIndependentEduecation—and Parental Cheiecenolater—than 3826
3798| Septembert—eof—each ar—pefore—th root ar—for—whieh—th 3827
3799 rgarization—intends—£ ffer roltarships— 3828

Page 131 of 158 Page 132 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions. CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




3829
3830
3831
3832
3833
3834
3835
3836
3837
3838
3839
3840
3841
3842
3843
3844
3845
3846
3847
3848
3849
3850
3851
3852
3853
3854
3855
3856
3857

Florida Senate - 2021

36-00745D-21

SB 48

202148

=]
G OF

N
proviea hotarship t Ao
had hol ded—3 + £ £ + ai £
haet hotarships—funded—3f—+ rere—hnot—for—thediversion——of
fund i sz g ' to +th 1a4 1 £ +the bond lett £
funds—giving—rise—to—th taim—against—the bond—ortetter—of
o)V T it PN i nf £ - a4 b
tor—Fr—adartton hFre—information—reguiread—P
- — :
1 £ bond lott £ it & + foithfial
1= vrety—bon r—Fetter—of——ereds Sza hre—faitnfut
£ £ + 14 I £ + 1 | £ 4
performan f—th biigatien f—th Treiblernonprofs:
hel N funds ;. 43 3 g ith +ha +
rotarship—funding organization IR retah Heh—tht ttron
1 +to+h £ of disb a—d o held bt
et the—amourt—of unairsbursed—aonations—heta—Ppoy—th
3 4 N A N + SRR £ 4
rarrzatrohbaSea—or—the anRdat —Fepor Bt S—purstat
VN2 my 4+ PN + T Tet+ £
paragraph—{or{tm——TFThe—amotn f—thesurety bonad—or tetter—of
it PN £ ] + $100 000 —but + + 25 1113
reart—Tmy be—at—dea S+0-0+ 7 T HO¥ Far—- idtFoh-
T £ band lett £ &5 + £ that 1
Th === bora—or—= r—of—ereart—mu pectiy—that—any—ctatm
+ 1 N a 1 + 1+ £ REES 1o a ] I
agETh re—bond—or tetterof ereditmay bemad Ay—Poy—an

ol N £ = £ 34 £ £ the di £ fand
AroTa¥rsShips—tunaea—3++—3 re—hpeot—tor—theeairversiron—otf—+funa
frd 3 to—th 3 ' + bond lett £ EERS

FErvIhg—¥TE Hr Tar—agattt He—bonra—o¥r—= ¥ f—ereaxts

Th 3} £1 12 1 a4 Tnt 1 R
—FH FaRTZatETofn mptetead—Inrternat—+ Frx Vi
fo¥al brdtted 1o+ + N 30 £ + bef

Form vomittea—ho—tater—+than N RO —Eh STamE SISESSE -

Page 133 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

3858
3859
3860
3861
3862
3863
3864
3865
3866
3867
3868
3869
3870
3871
3872
3873
3874
3875
3876
3877
3878
3879
3880
3881
3882
3883
3884
3885
3886

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

b~ he—numpber wetent Fr re—app¥ for
hel N + a4 b
hotarships—bH tHt ROy —graaes
Th N £ otudent N ' a4 fundi £
—Thenumber—of students—who—r Fved—funding—for
el : (PN B Fuandl + b £ g
hotarships—withineachfunding—eategory;—P T aRe—5

distributs 1 3 £ '
arstriputea—3n AT FSATPSTaha oo TR f—r E=2c
4 g+ b1 4 £ +h fund
FaRres—anRe—th orrgatron—of—+th TURaS—
det led 4 £} +h ;. £4 £t
—A—aetartea—=a e g oW —th rgaRTZatiron—Spent—th
e P 11 51 | W (6N (=
e R SEratE FuRaSs—orrowabtre—BRacer paragraph—t \w war
ley T leats ith the D + £ R +
{e—+r Asrtation—with—the bepartmen + e —aha—tfr
N i 1 _off £ ££4 £ Ted PR R 3
et rRonciatr—offreer;—th £ —IhaepenaentEageatron—ana
a1 h 11 + h| P o in) + + £
Parentar—CRox fAor+—F e he—apptieation—The bepartmen £
Ed 1 11 4 fer + 1 4 3 1 £
baueatiron—~shaltrnotrfy—th oo Zat o WETEIRG oy
def N o4 £+ + £ +h 14 + g
aetrerenet WrEhT Sics aEte¥r—r + f—Ehe—apptication—anea
11 +h 30 4 + + def '
ST OW—Efr FooRTZatETon Saco ¥ SRy —G&eErEeFenReT =
1 + B—th ££3 £ Trnd = rd + I oY PR
apptreatron—b Hr £+ —Fnea raert—aueation—onaParentat
Chos + ' } £ 1g P 11 = 1
o+ 7 Fr fESSTonesr F—hageatiron—shatd—F e Ra—approvat

Page 134 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




3887
3888
3889
3890
3891
3892
3893
3894
3895
3896
3897
3898
3899
3900
3901
3902
3903
3904
3905
3906
3907
3908
3909
3910
3911
3912
3913
3914
3915

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

3 + e £ 4 ffoctad ol | tudent |
rganization—must—hotiE the—aff d—ediegibd veents—and
+ £ + g it 15 4 £+
paren f—the—deecirsiron—within o 6o aEter—disapprovat—FAn

: + r i + 3 1 ] g + +
R Zatron artieipation—remathn Hgible—under—tht Eron
£31 +h dof +h hool Wt i i
aRE—Eh Aea—oF—EF hroot—year—in—which—th rgaRTZaton—wWor
3 Th +d + 1 a4 b ted b +h
SEsappr d—The—student—mustappty andbe—=a another
1ieibl £+ hol i £unds i + £ +
Hgible—nonprof: hotarship—fundingorganization—for—th
3 hoeol il tudent 11 b : +
TP eomIg oot a¥r—Th vdent—shati—be—givenr—priority—in
(£ 11 i funds—heldb £t hol
5 ¥ Hrg—fundas—heta—by—ahnonprof: rotarship
funds : 3 thot 1 g £ : ;
funeingorganizatronr—that—S—arSapp¥ S—for—Ppatr Fpation—must
B + £ a + +h 14 11 + ] oY 3
be—transferred ther—eligible nonprofit—scholarship—funding
3 + + g hol s 1 | tudent 13
rganTZation provia hotarships—for—edigibt weerts— =+
4 + a ited b helicibl e
ransterrea—funas—my be—depositea—Db ach—etigible—nonprofs:

] K 1 1 £ +
rotarship—funaingorgantzation—F Tring——sueh—funds—inte 3t
hol A1 + b
hotarship—o BrE— H—transferrea—amoun ¥ TreePby—af

+ 1 a 1 a 1 + ] £ SRS 1 a
parately—arsed d—n—the—annvat—fHinaneiat—auairt—reguired
under—sub tiorn— 6}

3 i 1 £ intE o i |
repewing—organization—+f3tmaintain rErnveous—approvat—and
£ tied P 1 ' as 8+
to—participate—for 1 —year or mor r—iS5—adisappr Sans

it P 1 + it 14 I £
partreipate—Ffor— ¥ —O¥r—more it vbmit—an—apptiecation—for

R i dall £ fazd ; 3 4 '
PE rerRg—guTrae T TO¥—¥ TV ERgT—F rewing,ane—appE THG
14 4 £ g 3 £i4 hol AN £ a4
SPPpTrrEatTon TO¥—Fr SRG—reRewWIRg hoRproTIt AOTaESATP— T uRaThRg

Page 135 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

3916
3917
3918
3919
3920
3921
3922
3923
3924
3925
3926
3927
3928
3929
3930
3931
3932
3933
3934
3935
3936
3937
3938
3939
3940
3941
3942
3943
3944

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

3 3 Th il + 3 ul = £ 113
rgantzations—TFhe—rut mast—inetude—a—pr ss—for mRpiag
1 + =i =SS £ + 1 £ o4 1 ] ££4 +
input—and——r mendations—fromth hief Finaneial Officer—th
D. + 4+ £ D g+ n. + + £ og 1 Th
Department—of—+ re;—and—the Bepartmen £ Edueation—Th
1 + ul 3 +that +h £3+ hod NS £ a4
rat RSt —at reguire—tha he—nonpreofit—scholarship—funding
] 1 N = PR + £ 4 Q4 4 B A
rganiration make o brief pr station—teo—asst hr ate—Board
£ B4 + + =
£ Edueation—in—3 deeistons
VAEIY ESEE 1 1+ . 1 + 11
H)—A——state—university;—or an—independent 1leqg ¥
1 + h 1 1 151 + + + 1 + wWa 1]
wRverst whieh— it partieipa ita—theWilliam L~
R =i T inE2 + + Qe + A + lal +
Bevyey —E£E 3= A gdertEducationGCrantProgramy
h] tad 4 K + a3 13 £ ot £ £ £34+ =
leoeated—and<chartered—in—thi tate;—is—not—feor profit;—andis
ditred b + -1 17 £ + 1 el +
aecreditedhvy—th mrtssien—on Heg £k wehern
iy 1 + 3 £ Caoll g Sk il 3 + 1 1 3
tatieon—of eq afreh B — mpt—from—thednitial
1 1 + 2 Bt £ £17 s 4+
r—renewal—applticationpr s—but—must—filearegistration
44 IS NI, Y D. 4+ + £ md 4+ + i 1 1
ot +eh—the DPepartment—of Fduecation be—an—eligibl
3+ h] AN £ a4 3 4 m Sy o4 A £
roRprefs holarship—fundingorganization—Th Beard—of
pn=] 4+ hall a + Eo NPT + 2 £ 1 =1 £
Edueation—shall adept—rul thattdentify the pr dure—for
£471 4 +h f ot 4 4+ 4 oS N A + + m
filing—the registrationnotst +th—thedepartment—The—rult
£ 14 1 £ L ot +4 3 + £ £
must—tdentify appropriate reporting reguirementsfor fiseals
+ 2 A £ EE SN B o 4
programmatie; and performan =S srtabitity—pure = asistent
LI S A 3 a3t 11 + RN : + £
R —EhE tor—bw Aot d—the—reguiremern for
1+ 1 4+ o
Baritabt rganirations.
Section 21. Section 1002.40, Florida Statutes, is amended
to read:

1002.40 FhreHep helarship Florida K-12 Education Funding

Tax Credit Program.—

(1) PURPOSE-——The Heope—Scholarship Program—is—established—+teo

de + + Bl K h| +udent +ad
PE e hre—paren F—a—Ppubtt OO EnaeRt—wWhRo—Wo T tea
£ 1 £ 14o+ 3 B 4 {3} £ e £
to—an—FTReTaeRt T Stea I == roR—(o)—an—opportunzt

Page 136 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




3945
3946
3947
3948
3949
3950
3951
3952
3953
3954
3955
3956
3957
3958
3959
3960
3961
3962
3963
3964
3965
3966
3967
3968
3969
3970
3971
3972
3973

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148
+ £ +h a1 + £h h) T h] + +
cransfor th cadent too apobher oupli bocl or so regusst oo
el N £ N FEPPOS] £ 4 11 g A 1 s
e R S R e e e e T
private—sehool-
+42)» DEFINITIONS.—As used in this section, the term:
(a) “Dealer” has the same meaning as provided in s. 212.06.
(b)) Soesmsbpe sl meee tee emnpernert s e e len

+e) “Designated agent” has the same meaning as provided in

s. 212.06(10).

(c)+4e “Eligible contribution” or “contribution” means the
amount of tax paid by a—menetar rEributien—frem a person
purchasing a motor vehicle, subject to the restrictions provided
in this section, and designated by the purchaser to be used for
K-12 education funding an—eligiblenonprofit—scholarship—funding

4 1 Th 1 + ot baaad o +

ot ratier. Fhepersermakine—+tE At ten ey
4 3 + L £ 4 i + + i £ £+
desteare e I b e by iy
eontribution~

L \ A\Enl | 21 + hal =N 1 - + ’”

e i e e e T Aetarship—funcirgerganteEatbier

w . ”
106239525~
V=AY AN nl 1 1] + h 177 + 1
I e B e B e R ]

(d)4e> “Motor vehicle” has the same meaning as provided in
s. 320.01(1) (a), but does not include a heavy truck, truck
tractor, trailer, or motorcycle.

(b)Y WD i 2 A + £ o+ PR i s
e means—a—resitden £ —£hi ot ho—ds5—=
parent——as—defined—ins—1060-2t——and whese student—reported—an

3 1 & + 3 = T+ B £ {6}
ineident—in—a rdan vith—subs on—6)
[iV WD ” +h 7 [P NG| AN D
e e s e g A s e ey AR S
(5 W W a4 d + 1 +
5 hoot’means—any ecducational programor activi

Page 137 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

3974
3975
3976
3977
3978
3979
3980
3981
3982
3983
3984
3985
3986
3987
3988
3989
3990
3991
3992
3993
3994
3995
3996
3997
3998
3999
4000
4001
4002

Florida Senate - 2021

36-00745D-21

SB 48

202148

condueted—by apubtie K12 educationat institution,—any school-
loted hoeol 4 + {4 = el
related—or hool—sponseoredprogramoractrvity,——ana—ridingon—a
heol—b defi a1 1006-25(1) 1ads s +
hool—Pbus—as—definea—3n + = tI—iretuerng—wartingat—=
(Je)} N7 hted FTRE £fuands o + o a
, awetrghtedFTE—funding—amoun Featr Fr =3 ==S.
+total fund fehtod—£a1l i 1 + i
FFerad a+—Eune rF—aRwergntea—fFutt—tim Sutrvatrenrt—funeing
that d b £ ; the &
amounrt—that is—incorporated by referen inr—the—Generadt
+ N
pPhropriation 7 by —a——subseguent——special—appropriation
£ £ £ 1 | toate £ 1
aet;—for—the appticabt tar fiseat aF
h I + 51 fund +
hootl—years rErRgert—ponr—avartabte—funds; oo o f£3¥
£ + RN 3 tudent 1led ikl 3 :
fe—E+F rreePbasisS——o et rrotied o Froriaapubtst
] 1 le s a + +h h a ] ] SN £
root—in—Kkindergarten—through grade 12—+ Heagitbte—for—=
hol T a PN i+ tudent +
hotarship—under—this program £ —+th tugent—reportead—an
depnt— a AN N 3 (6) i) £ +hi
perdent—3h—a raat viEER—sub ror—(6)—For—Ppurp f—Ehi
43 +h + A 24 4 1 o+t i + T
tron;—th — raerdentT—meansbattery;—harassment;—hazings
Bzl 3 1 . T £+ 1 NN £F
bt ying—kidnappingrphysTeatattack;—robberys dat—offen 7
7 7 7 7
£ i + I defi g K + + + a
fraghting—= hood—as—defined—PH he—department—3n—o reot
RENL N 1006-09(6)
g 1002 3 100 1 1002 332
whReaer + 7 + 1 ¥ 7
53 13 1 3 £ +h £
{o—Enrrolded—an—= hrool—operating for—the purp £

CODING: Words strieken are

Page 138 of 158

deletions; words underlined are additions.




Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48 Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148 36-00745D-21 202148
4003| providingeduecational servieestoyouth in the Department—of 4032| eavaileble—funding—A parent—whochooses—+teo—enrollhisorher

4004 Favertte—Justt ff-ERe Rt programsy 4033 tudert—ia—apubit roel—tecated—outsidethe distrietdn—whiech
4005 {er—Participating—ina—virtuat rools rresponden 4034 = tudent—resid pHEstant—t —1002-31+—shatt P Tigible—for
4006 hool;—or—distan Tearningprogram—that—=r ives—state—funding 4035| a——secholarship—totranspert—the student—as providedin paragraph

4007| pursueant—tothe studentls participationunl the partieipation 4036| -ArHey—

4008| ds—timited—tono—more—than—t G pe¥ oot a¥—O¥ 4037 or—For—ecach—studentpartieipatingin—the programin—an
4009 +d—Reeeivingany othereducational —scholarship pursuant—+te 4038 Ligibleprivateschool—wh B to—participate—din—+th
4010| #«his—~chapter= 4039 tatewide—= ments—under—s-—3+008-22-er+the FloridaRAlternat

4011 (5)—TERM OF HOPE SCHO

b o f 4040| A PR hool distriet 3 teh & +

H —For—purp merrt—Eh Fr sEri in—which—th =)
4012 dueationat—echotece;,——= Hop Fotarship—shelt remainIrn—for 4041 mustrmotifythe studentarnd his or her parent —about—the

4013| umeil—th tudent—returns—to—pubii rool—or—graduat £rom 4042| Zleeations—and—tim to—take—atl—statewide—= FReFrES—

4014 bieh hoot—whiech ¥ Es—first—A Hotarship—student—wh 4043 PR EVATE—SCHOOE BEICIRILEFY ANDOBEITCATIONS —An—elieaibt
4015 Arelis—in—a—publi hoot—eor—pubdt heoot—program—i 4044| privete—school may be seetarianor nonseectarian—and—shall:

4016 rsidered—to—ha returped—to—a—publi root—feor—thepurp 4045 e} mpty—withallreguirements—forprivat Frood

4017 4046 portieipotinginstat root—ehet Foltarshipprogram

4018 4047| pursvent—te—this tieon—and—s—+002-421=

4019 4048 o —Anrnvalty administeror make provisionfor student
4020 4049| portieipatingin the programin grades 3 —through 1b—tetake one
4021 4050 £ —the natieorally rorm—referenced testsidentified by th

4022 4051 deportment—eor—<h tatevwide—= et purstant—- — 0682
4023 4052| Students—with disabilities for whom standardized testingis net
4024 4053| apprepriate—ar mpt—from—this reguirement partieipating

4025
4026

4054| private—schootshall report—a studentls seores—tohis—or her
4055| parents

4027 4056 —Administerth tatewide—= ments—pursuant—+ =
s - +faprivate school—<h £ £fer—the statewie
4028 4057 1009 22 £ = + ool eh + £€ + PP a
4029 + tundibe + 11 hd N +udent—i th 4058 + tiadmatd frrat hool N + ££
parent—an—opportunity arotl—hi r—her—student—3in—another as sments—Aparticipating priva heool—mma heos ffer
4030 publt heool—+that—he r—to—reguest—and—=r - & 4059 end—administer—+th tatewide—= ments—to—att—students—wh

4031 holarship—toattendan—eligible private school;——subjeet—+£ 4060| o=ttend—the private school ingrades 3—through 10 —and must—submit

Page 139 of 158 Page 140 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions. CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




4061
4062
4063
4064
4065
4066
4067
4068
4069
4070
4071
4072
4073
4074
4075
4076
4077
4078
4079
4080
4081
4082
4083
4084
4085
4086
4087
4088
4089

Florida Senate - 2021

36-00745D-21

SB 48

202148

= + i + ot 1 d + 3 +
Ir—orger—to—admint r—& tatewtrde—a ments—n—th
N 1
Tt seaguent oot ¥~
I£ + N k| 1 + PR 3 + £ +hs
H—a—priva hroot—Fa+d mect—the—reguiremen F—Eh+
N 4 1002 421 + ' 3 det that
tHo +OR—OF —F 42 Hr M-S STHoRer oy 6 T Frer
£h 1 + 13 3 1ieibl + PR ;. +h
the—private——sehoot—3Fs—Fnedtigib+t to—partreipa Th—the—Pprogram-
{9\ DEPARTMENT OF EDIJCATTAON RT T TTON T +
r—BEPARTMENT O T HON—OBEECGATIONS—The—departmen
(ay—¢ heek—+the 1ist £ 4 £4 | AN}
{a) £ reek—the—Iist—of Ppartierpating—schotarship
+tudent 1l & 51 hool 11 £ 1iotbo o+ L d
GeeH FER—the—pubit hool—enrotiment—d3st aote
Y Mo o 13 o £ 2 11 A+ +
o—Marrtatrn—a i st ot hRotronaity Rorm—referencea—test
‘deptified £ £ PR the +teocti 3 +
raentifiea—Ffor purp f—satisEying—th Hhe—Fregurrement—iH
W (O) (£ o oot + + dust 4 £
paragraph— tB——TH Fier i RS EEY SretaEer £
13+ 1 a h 4+ o4 B A £ T4 4+ o 1
SHatrEy—Fh——= reot THEh—State Boara—eotrFaueatiron—rus:
o) : PPN 1 11 £+
{ter—Regurre—guartesr reports—Poy an—eligible nonprofs
. . £ o] + 1 N + N 1
Gee R partireipating—3n—th rograf,—the—priva hoo+s—+h
vhieh—th tudents—ar rrolled,—and—other informationdeemed

3 e
Wit ThaepPenRachH et PEr Tae—ah

Bli h 1 3 + h 1 : +h I el i +
pPuoT= r e r—prrva Fr T—aSsTIRg—Ence—HoeP SEROTEESATR
dat ' } + h h| N 14 ot a
aeTermIe—area FH—tr 222 - * T+ et E==o PE \Sac=a
. 1eps L . s L A . s L
ey IR FreportI gy I h ErgatIRgyans Mg Treat IR pParenRt——S

CODING: Words strieken are

Page 141 of 158

deletions; words underlined are additions.

4090
4091
4092
4093
4094
4095
4096
4097
4098
4099
4100
4101
4102
4103
4104
4105
4106
4107
4108
4109
4110
4111
4112
4113
4114
4115
4116
4117
4118

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

a4 studentl tehts that : = : + +
and—studentis—rights—that are—inneed—ofimpr FReRE &
1 + ludes
marrman—Ehe—review—muast—Inedy
£ of + + + i i £
o o FREFT f—the—3H Teatron—time—ana—guatt £
£h £ +h hoeol a4 +h hool -distriet
the—respons £—th hool—and—th hool—distriets
b £ o€ + oot £ 3
b Ao FREFT —th £+ e £ TRt TeatTon
a PN udent 1 dent—+
PE Sacs= with—th Tete HhRveotvea—Th—an—heiaents Fr
tudentsl a4 +th 1 | hool—dsi L et
taden parents—and—th hool—and—schootl—distrt rsonrned-
£ hoeol dent a—d ] dat
= Ar—aRatySE £ hool—Fneident—and—diseiptine—datas
a7 hall d—obst 1 1ot : 1 I
Tk Fratdeng ae—obsta retating—to—Tmplementing
dat £ +h 3
¥ mmeRdation rom—the—review:
2 R i N hool—bull + g +
—F rewirng—th hroot—putiying—Pp¥ rEron—edueation
; g tudent £ of B 13
prografty Hmate;—ane € £ GEee Fret f—eachpubis
1+ RPN FRPPPS] . g 4 F o+ RPN + £
root+—% rreh—a—student—transferredif the student—wasfrom—=a
h deptified N h1 a + deptifu-begt
hool—Faentified i subparagraph I+ order—totdentify b
3 a ] g : + 513 hool + ieh
praett SHre— o ¥ e RaaETon a—pibti hoot—at—which
PN : 9 + A
the—ineident THrreds
2 n 2 + 3 + 4 £ +
—F rewirng—the—performar FPparticipating Gee
ot ] 11 a ESEEPS] + + h ] + 1 +aod
teotatl—enreolted—stugents—3in—the prior oot ar—partieipated—3n
£ : teh & PR £ 10 Lo ;
he—program—and—in—whtrch—there—are—at—dea Ho—participating
tudent ho—h £ tact dminist =
tuden who—ha ¥ for sts—admintstereds

Page 142 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




4119
4120
4121
4122
4123
4124
4125
4126
4127
4128
4129
4130
4131
4132
4133
4134
4135
4136
4137
4138
4139
4140
4141
4142
4143
4144
4145
4146
4147

Florida Senat

36-00745D-21

e -

202

1

SB 48

202148

1 | + N 1
Hegible—privat oot
(o) sudent : 3 + + 3 :
e Fr waerrt—participating I —the progrommusSt—rematn—+n
+ttend +h hout—+th 1 h| dbv—th
aEtendah threoughot he—sehoot—year BRiess wsea—Py—th
1 £ 11 + &
hoot—Ffor—33dn ¥ ther—gooa—eat <
() Faeh £ a h student 51 + o+
{eh—Eaeh—parent—ana—each vaert—has—an—obtigation Fr
+ heol— h| N B hooll 51 hed 1
private—sehoot Mpty—with—steh ROO+ pabtishea—potieres
(e} 1T 51 4 PPN + g+ bl
e Por—reasonabtehRot: S he—aepartment—and—th oo+
4 + + + + + + +h +
erstrrety Hre—parent—ftrayFem Fr waerrt—from—the—Ppriva
oY ] a ] + 1 i34 + 1 h
roo+——ana—Ppta e veert—Ih—a—pubit Hoot+—+h—o ot
el ki 4
TeEh—Eh+ +OH~
(£y + + that +h sudents + 3
{E—Tthe—Pparent—su ASHFE Frar Fr waerrt—partieirpating
s N PN £ A 4+ ££ A 1
R—the—program—ta¥ the—hnorm—reterencea—= SSHER trerea—o
£h + h 1 il + +
Fe—priva hoot—The poarent—may ot Fr Frer Hr

+ + PR ] £ 3 +

& MeRESy he—parent—is—responsible—for—transporting—th

1 . _
() 1 ik o f hol + £ &
S poR—F o = heotarship—warrants he—paren

he—priva seh for postHEt—Ih he—a unt—of—sueh
hoeol I£ £ de—byu funds—t £ 3 g +
hoot—FIpayment—is—made—by—fund ransfer—3n—= Featt +Eh

Page

143 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

4148
4149
4150
4151
4152
4153
4154
4155
4156
4157
4158
4159
4160
4161
4162
4163
4164
4165
4166
4167
4168
4169
4170
4171
4172
4173
4174
4175
4176

Florida Senate -

36-00745D-21

20

21

SB 48

202148

a 3 + s 3 tad N
destragnate—anyentityor—Inadrvidual—a rated—with—th

P 3 i + hool + e Frs foet +
partireipatingPpriva hool—as—theparen aEEerh Th—faet—+t

RCANIZATTIONS 1iegibl £+ heol funds
F NEZATION r—etigibtenonproft hotarship—funding
' 4 +£ab] h hed 3 £ 1igibl +tudent
FoaRTZatron—ia abEsh hotarships—for +Hgib+ GeeH
(5} R 3 1 3 a det i tudents
e —+ TriRag—apptireations—ana—¢a FRIATAE TSt
1 SRS = + +h 1 + £ +hi 4
Hagtbitrty o ot Heh—the—Freguiremen F—EhT TOF~
By Neot 3 + £ +h Lt £ 1 I
o—NeotEying—parent f—Ehetrr—r Hpt—ot—= rotarship—ofn
£4 + £ + a b ' 5 = L 1o fund
a—EFF¥ e —E+¥St EYee—Pa5T 5y PaSea Bpoh avarTapTre TuRaST
(o) Fotalbls : e b W+ + £
{ter—Estabtishing o aa = vrreh—the—paren f—=
Lo 3 +tudent + £ Py 3 PR P :
partrerpating weertE—mest P rErRurRg—partrerpation—3H

+ £ +h
=

he previeu o

(o)} B 1 + iadtigll 1 | i +h 20192020 K bl
{a—toer EgneeH Fhartia+ GO+ HA—Ef + f2aSASES

EN £+ +h il lated £ £ fudent—+

E r—EnereatrteEry T Sregratea amouRt—Tor—< Egaent—<

Page 144 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




4177
4178
4179
4180
4181
4182
4183
4184
4185
4186
4187
4188
4189
4190
4191
4192
4193
4194
4195
4196
4197
4198
4199
4200
4201
4202
4203
4204
4205

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

1 1 4 1 dist + o + + 4
+ +—anet hoot—aistrs: Fh—whieh—th Gee R aFS—assTIagnee—=
g5 £ of + tad £a11 3 +
pereent—ofthefunds—Pperunweirghted—Futd—tim arvatent—3H
+abl hed £+ 1011 62 (1) ()] 1
progrant abtiIshea—pursuahn —+0+—= e ri—Fp+us—a—Pper
£1311 i 1 + £ founde £ 13 + 1
Foit—t3m Savateh Far f—funas—feoralt—~ecategeoricat
£ £ +h i 1 h] 11 £ wd £
Programsy pt—for—the ¥k ptironat—StudentBdueation
a-211 £
Suarath —Atteocations
)T : + ded—+ tudent 1led—3
o —The—maximum—amouirt—awardeea =3 TSt rrottea—Fn—o
1 heol—1 = toid £ +the dist + hieh +h
pubti root—Jocated—outstd f—the—distrietin—whtech—th
+ + il 11 b 50
weert—¥resiea Fatd—pe—=% +
(e} Wh tud + + N 14 i1
e r—Wheh—= GeeH reesr he—prografty Fr gt
£4 4+ haol h £ = 1 4+ o + 1 11
ronprofit—sehotarship—funding orgoanizationmust—+ + ot
& ok a £ N PR Py + 3 +
documentation—reguirred rF—th tuaen partrerpationy
: Trds £ + £ of + 3 L dent : a
Hretuarng—o Pyt —the—repor f—the—inecident—= Trea—pursuan
ES N + 3 { AY a +h 1 + h 17 a ESEEPa| I £
£ S3c) ttror—{6)r—and—the priva oot aRre—student £
hedal il faaEial + 11 b a £+ 1 £ 3
heaut —rhe—ThTtiot—paymen hatl—bemade—after rriEreation

s £ 4+ £ P = 11 + A Py A + 4
Sycicras rifreatieon—-of rEinved—enreoldment—ant—= Aetatr aE—th
(P £ of th hel AN} br—th 1 iegild £i+
{teh—Payment—otf—the—sehotarship oy —th Hregrble—nonproftt
ol ' : 3 beb trads duaad
hotarship—fundingorganizationmay be by individuat—warrant
L
made—payablte—to—the studentisparent—or by funds—transfers
7 7 7
+ £ thot 4 =
SEas=y Ry her—meah fPpayment—tha he—aepartment—deem
b 1 h| 1 + ffoets T£ £ 4 =
£ e eiratty—viabt st—etf === —HEpaymert S moe
by—warrant;—thewarrantmustbedelivered by the—eligible
£+ hel 3 funds ' 4 PPN 3 + B 1
ronproft hotarship—fundingorganization the—privat oo+
£ +h i hod d +th £ ohall tyrietd h|
f—the—parent hrotree;——ana—theparent——shalt—Frestrictrved

Page 145 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

4206
4207
4208
4209
4210
4211
4212
4213
4214
4215
4216
4217
4218
4219
4220
4221
4222
4223
4224
4225
4226
4227
4228
4229
4230
4231
4232
4233
4234

Florida Senate - 2021

36-00745D-21

SB 48

202148

by—£f + N + beof
by—funds—transfery he—parent—mmu SPPE¥ ach—payment—befor
£ hol £ g tad T +
Ehr hotarship—funads—may bedaeposttea—The parent—may
+ 1 | i + hool + e Fs foot +
partireipatingpriva hool—as—theparen aEEerh Th—faet—+t
hol 3 fuand
Rao¥ & hotarship—warrahn r—app¥ a—E et ransfers
11 N £ 3 £ + i + hool £ PR
hati—obtain rifieation—from—thepriva hool—oef—= Tete
+ ttand £+ heol—£ h a a4 b
rErRwed—attendan =3 Fr hroot+—Ffeor—each period ree—by—=
(£ P £ of + hol i 11 B de—lv—t
—Paymen b hotarship—shatd—bemade oy —th
1ieibl £i+ 1 i funds : 4 1
igible—nonprofs: hotarship—funcdingorganization—hno—+
+ 1 + + ] N 3
freguentliy—thanronr o guarteriy pbasiss
Le}—A 1 51 £i4 hol 3 funds 4 P
e Ar—eligibte—hnonprof: hotarshtp—fundingorganizationy
NG £ to + Lot £ 1002 305 (o) (V1
2S5} the—timitation £ —+ = oS5 r+=may—
1 11 1 1 +h ESEE £ 1
Hgibt rEributions—r Tred—during—the state—fiseadt ¥ —TH
h it 11 tod £ L n 3
vreh—stueh rEribytions—ar 3 S—fFor—adminrstratt
h) M. a +  + +h + a +
—Mon ¥ Hrea—pursuant Eha ron—do—not
Arstitute—taxable income—to—the equalified student—or—hi r—her
(i) Notwithstands 100 Q5 (G) (4D + 5
N +Hehstanding — 0 2 ——ho—moex hasr
£ of £ alieibl PR T led £ a &
perecent—of gt rEributions—may—H arried—forwara—t

Page 146 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions;

words underlined are additions.




Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48 Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148 36-00745D-21 202148
4235| regulatiens—issuedPpursuant—teo such reguirements—Any amount 4264| poragraphwithin 10 days after the auditis finaltizeds
4236 arried—forward—shatlt—Pb pended—for—annuat Fotarship ¥ 4265 Ho—Fh wditer—GCeneratl—shall notify the department—of an
4237| partiat e rotarships—in—the following statefiseal—year- 4266 rganization—that fails—+ mpty—witharegquest—for
4238| Net—eligibt rrributionsrematningon—Jun 0—cf—ecach—year 4267| informatieon—
4239 hich—are—in £ the 5 percent—thot may beecarried forward 4268 (2)433) SCHOLARSHIP FUNDING TAX CREDITS.—
4240 hallbe transferred+ ther eligible nonprofit holarship 4269 (a) A tax credit is available under s. 212.1832(1) for use
4241| fundingeorganizationspartieipatinginthe HopeScheolarship 4270| by a person that makes an eligible contribution. Eligible
4242 Program—to—provid holarships—fer—eligibl tudents—ALL 4271 contributions shall be used for K-12 education funding fe—fund
4243| <+ransferred—fundsmustbedepositedb aeh—eligible nonpreofit 4272 rotarships—under—thi tion—and—may beused—teo—fund
4244 helarship—furding organization - iring—sueh—funds—inte—th 4273| sehotarships under s. 1002.395. Each eligible contribution is
4245 hetarship—= grt—of—eligibt tudents—Att—+transferred 4274 limited to a single designation payment of $105 per motor
4246| amourts—r ived—byan—eltigible nonprofit rotarship—funding 4275| vehicle purchased at the time of purchase of a motor vehicle or
4247 rgaRtEatenust paratety—disetosed—dnthe annuat 4276 a single designation payment of $105 per motor vehicle purchased
4248| <£inonecial ouvditreguirementunder 531002 395{6m)—TFf = ther 4277| at the time of registration of a motor vehicle that was not
4249 Hegiblernonprofit holarship—fundingorganization partieipat 4278| purchased from a dealer, except that a contribution may not
4250 in—theHep helarship Program—raet—eligibl aeributiens—in 4279 exceed the state tax imposed under chapter 212 that would
4251 £ the 5 percentmay beused—teo—Ffund heolarships—Ffor 4280| otherwise be collected from the purchaser by a dealer,
4252| students—eligibleunder s-——1002-395onty after fully exhausting 4281| designated agent, or private tag agent. Payments—of
4253 att stributions made—in support—of hotarships—under—that 4282 sEributieon ottt be madeto o deater at—the tim £ pureha
4254 tton—ir—a e with—the prioricy tebtished—4r—s= 4283 £ a—motor Hied rtoadesigratedagentor private tag ogent
4255| 18023856y {e)rpriertoawarding any inttiatscholarships+ 4284 at—thetimeof registration of o moter vehiele that was net
4256 2 BLICATION FTHE AJDITORGENERAL- 4285 purehased—freom—a—deater- An eligible contribution shall be
4257 “4a—FhePAuditor Genreratl——shall econduct an annvatoperationat 4286| accompanied by a contribution election form provided by the
4258| audit—efacecounts—and records—of ecach organization that 4287 Department of Revenue, developed in collaboration with the
4259| partieipat in—the program part—ofthisaudit—=h gditor 4288| Department of Education. The form shall include, at a minimum, a
4260| Gereral—shall verify;——at o minimum,—the total number of students 4289| +he—foltewing brief description of each scholarship program
4261| served—and—transmit—that information to—the department—The 4290| available under this chapter and the type of student served in
4262 weiteor—GCeneral—shall provide—th mrtsstoner—with—= < £ 4291| each program the—Hep rotarship Programand—the Florida—Ta
4263| eachannualeoperational—audit performed pursuant—to—this 4292| €redit—-—Scheolarship Programt—THE HOPESCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM

Page 147 of 158 Page 148 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions. CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




4293
4294
4295
4296
4297
4298
4299
4300
4301
4302
4303
4304
4305
4306
4307
4308
4309
4310
4311
4312
4313
4314
4315
4316
4317
4318
4319
4320
4321

Florida Senate - 2021

36-00745D-21

SB 48

202148

ENCEBEHNT - OF VIODENCE GRBULEYING A% SCHOOL 1HE OPEORIGHITY 2
e R RIar e

T REBFF—SCHOEARSHIP PROGRAM PR IBE LOW—INCOME—STUBENTTHE
PRORTUNTITY—TFOAPRPEY FORA—SCHOEARSHIPR T FTTEND-AN—EEEGEBEE
. . L
PRIVATESCHOOE-"—Theform shall altsoinetude, ot o minimum =
+ 2 11 4+ + a 1 + £ 11
ton—allowing—th nsumer—to—desigrate;,—from—altd
2 1 + 3 hal 1 £ = 1 S 1 ah
partieipating heolarshipfunding organizations,—whiech
rganization—will—r 5 hi r—her—doenatien+ For purposes of

this subsection, the term “purchase” doe

or rental of a motor vehicle.

s not include the lease

(b) A dealer, designated agent, or private tag agent shall+
ul in] =i +h h +h + 1 b3t 1 + £
I—Preovide—the purechaser—k rEributien—et ton—form—a
ded K 3 D + £ D +  + 1 2N
provided—by—the Departmen £+ roeT—ar B E=a £ purehe
£ + hial + 4 + 4 £ 4+ £ +
f—a—motor hiet r—at—th 3 f—registration—ofam ¥
h] + + + d f£ ! ul
hied hat—was—r parehased—freom—adeaters
Cold + 13 11 + 1 B33
< Tleet—eligibt rEributienss

£+
pursuant—t€o—S=

a
€

e
Ho
Ho
il

4— report to the
212.11

Department of Reve

pursuant to s. the total amount o

Page 149 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions;

nue on each return filed

f credits granted under

words underlined are additions.

4322
4323
4324
4325
4326
4327
4328
4329
4330
4331
4332
4333
4334
4335
4336
4337
4338
4339
4340
4341
4342
4343
4344
4345
4346
4347
4348
4349
4350

Florida Senate -

36-00745D-21

2

021

SB 48

202148

s. 212.1832 for the preceding reporting period.

e

B £ ¢

(c) An

Revenue shall deposit all receipts designated

rganiza

The Department of

11
o EePpo¥

as eligible

contributions into a designated student fund;—en—er—lbefore—th
20+ A £ h + + SN | + £ + 1l o
e e mep b e Le e smpenl e Bt Lo
3 + = VAZNY + a3 1 A
¥ e B e B

1 il feod 1 h| tdentifsl 4 N £ h
I—The—federat—empt r—raenrtifreation number f—each
3 = £ ' + + + 4 1 K it+ad
aesrgnatea—agentprivate—tag—agenty r—aeatrer—who—remittea
Lt to +th 3} + ' ot =
rEFrToutiron Fr ranrzatron—auring—that reporting perioa:
2 _m £ of L bat a £
—The—amoth £ rEributirons—F Trea—from——each
A 3 + 4+ g 1 3 PR NP
aesTgnrotea—agentprivate—tag—agenty r—aeorer—auring—tha
£ =
reportingperiodas
(A TSNS i ntent & £l
{teh—A—person—who,—with the—Frten dhtaw gty —aepr: ¥
A RN £ 44 + 4 I £+ 4+ £
aetraga—theprogram ot ROREeY r—eRre—& r—oenetit—tner £
£531 + } tribut 11 tad + +
fairt Femrt—a rErThutton =+ d—arnder—tht For—+
7 g
1 TE£ +1 PR + ol 1 N an N
+—FF—+th S—amotT ten—3s—+ han—= 7 Fr
££ iod £+ a4 3 51
£fen TS—amISaemeanor fF—Eh Ha—aegE T Puhtshabte—=&
i g 75 082 75 083 ¥ g +
pE raed—3h——S g ¥ / 0 = A—a—S et AVretrohy
£ £fand | £ tad £ + £ £ 4
th ffender3s—oguit fF—a—misdemeanor—of—thefirst—degr 7

+ | +h £fond ;. RS £ £fol £
r—subseggent Aviretron;—th frender—3s—guitEy f—a—+teton £
£ thied d : 51 ded 3 75 082
£h Arra—aegy —PuRrSshabte—aS—P¥ Taee—ih < 7
775 08 75 084
- 5 0
I£ +h total + ol $300 ASCEE |
H—Eh totat—amount tenr—35—=% more;—pbut—3Fess
£ 20 000+ ££ feol £ + thied d
EhrahR—s =223 HEen +S—a—Fe+on —Eh Arra—aegr 7
habl i ded—3 75 082 75 08 7975 084
paRtrshable—as—p¥ raee—3h—S—— g 7 - ¥ o= 4~

CODING: Words strieken are deletions;

Page 150 of 158

words underlined are additions.




4351
4352
4353
4354
4355
4356
4357
4358
4359
4360
4361
4362
4363
4364
4365
4366
4367
4368
4369
4370
4371
4372
4373
4374
4375
4376
4377
4378
4379

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48
36-00745D-21 202148
3 T£ +1 +otal + + 20 000 ASEEES 1
H—the—totatl amount—stelen—35—+5 r—more;—but—des
+h $100 000  +h ££ £a] £ +h g
thar B ffen s—a—feton f—th ne—aegr 7
51 rded—3 75 08 775 08 75 084
paRrtshable—as—proviaea—+n 0 7 + ¥ +
4 T£f +h fotalt + ot 3 $100- 000 +h
44—t —the—total—amount 35—+ r—more;,—th
££ 3 £a] £ +thea £ £ o habl ded
ffen +s5—a—felon f—the—fi¥ degree;—punishabite—as—provideda
s 75 NgQ 795 NQ 75084
3 - 7 - ¥
e} ted of ££ h e
{e)r—A—person avicted—ofan—offen under—paragraph—a)
11 1 g b+ + 3 : e + ] P T
hFatd—H raerea—H Fr rEencIng—Fuad Fiar ¥ Hegeion
£h : ] 3 th £ fhot ol £ th
Fr rganizatiron—in—the—amouh Rart—war r—Erom—the—programs
g N (V3 £ N + deal
rErbutiron—under subparagraph (b} for—whieh—th SEa=E2
EEwS + 212 1935 (o + £
tarmee—a—ereadrtpursuan 23 7 nre—bepartmen £
R hall Py +h ££ o 3 i £ o+ A 1 12
F rae—shatt—rnotify—theaff ted—organtzation f—the—dealer
dd fad 1 1 L dentifl ] N g
Aafe—aaar 7 derat—emplroyer—taentiis ron—number;—ana
tod to—diff bet dits—tak bv—th
information—reda SrEferen s A—e¥reat aken—by—th
A 1 + 1 1Q29 (9 A + LIS SR B +h
deater—pursuwant—+t =2+ {Z2—ane—amoth remrtted—to—th
1 ] + hol funds : 4 g
Hgible—hnonprof: hotarship—funaing organization—BRaer
) a ] a 1 +aod + 1 + + +
€ ny—adeater—designated—agent;—privat aGg—agenty ¥
3 that fa41 ot 1 bRt o to +h
rganizatiron—that—fait et bt —repor Fr
B + £ of R 3 a3 N () = \
PDepartment—of—+ e —as—reguired—in—paragraph tr—ana— +5
£+ + £ 81 000 £ N £+ £
TS a—penatty—of <17 for ry—monthy r—pa¥ thereofs

D + + £ D fhat +1 13 1 4 £
Department of F g kat the noncomplian tsodue £
Kl =i + A + 211 £..1 12 11 £:21
reasonabt i A I o Lt B
] + £ a
real ;oer fraud.
Page 151 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

4380
4381
4382
4383
4384
4385
4386
4387
4388
4389
4390
4391
4392
4393
4394
4395
4396
4397
4398
4399
4400
4401
4402
4403
4404
4405
4406
4407
4408

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148

£ ded £ 4 +
TRyt fawarded—funas—unaer—tht SEaSE 2
(159 COPRPE-OF AUTHORIT Th £ g + +
{59 PE—OF THORTFTY—Th3 +or—¢t Fr Pare—th
lat +h + £ +hi tat + ££ hoeol
regutatoryauthority of this state;—itsoffiecersy r—af hoolt
dist £+ it 1 1ok + 3 I
eHstriet—to—imp aaertronat—regutation—onparticipating
i + hool N d+th +
pEFva Fr < He—th reasonabty—H aF Aio¥r
; + 1 £ £ +h £
reguirement presst t—forth—3n—tht tron

+
I

(08

(3) 436> RULES.—The State Beoardof Ekducation shall =

1 + dmi-aist thi 3 £ &
ot S r—Ehi +OF7 pt—th

Department of
Revenue shall adopt rules to administer this section subseetion
3.

Section 22. Subsection (4) of section 1002.411, Florida
Statutes, is amended to read:

1002.411 Reading scholarship accounts.—

(4) ADMINISTRATION.—An eligible nonprofit scholarship-

funding organization participating in a scholarship program

under this chapter the FleridaTaxCreditScholarship Program
establtished by -s+—306062-395 may establish reading scholarship

accounts for eligible students in accordance with the

requirements of eligible nonprofit scholarship-funding
organizations under this chapter.

Section 23. Paragraphs (i) and (g) of subsection (1) of
section 1002.421, Florida Statutes, are amended to read:

1002.421 State school choice scholarship program
accountability and oversight.—

(1) PRIVATE SCHOOL ELIGIBILITY AND OBLIGATIONS.—A private
school participating in an educational scholarship program
established pursuant to this chapter must be a private school as

defined in s. 1002.01(2) in this state, be registered, and be in

Page 152 of 158

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48 Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148 36-00745D-21 202148
4409| compliance with all requirements of this section in addition to 4438| shall prohibit the school from enrolling new scholarship
4410| private school requirements outlined in s. 1002.42, specific 4439| students, for 1 fiscal year and until the school complies. If a
4411 requirements identified within respective scholarship program 4440| private school fails to meet the requirements of this subsection
4412 laws, and other provisions of Florida law that apply to private 4441| or has consecutive years of material exceptions listed in the
4413 schools, and must: 4442 report required under paragraph (q), the commissioner may
4414 (1) Maintain a physical location in the state at which each 4443 determine that the private school is ineligible to participate
4415| student has regular and direct contact with teachers. A private 4444 in a scholarship program.
4416| wvirtual school with at least one administrative office located 4445 Section 24. Paragraph (aa) of subsection (4) of section
4417 in this state which requires all of its administrative staff to 4446 1009.971, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:
4418| be Florida residents meets this requirement. 4447 1009.971 Florida Prepaid College Board.—
4419 (q) Provide a report from an independent certified public 4448 (4) FLORIDA PREPAID COLLEGE BOARD; POWERS AND DUTIES.—The
4420 accountant who performs the agreed-upon procedures dewveloped 4449| board shall have the powers and duties necessary or proper to
4421 pursuant to s. 1002.394(11) (g) s+—3+862-395+46)+e) 1if the private 4450 carry out the provisions of ss. 1009.97-1009.988, including, but
4422 school receives more than $250,000 in funds from scholarships 4451 not limited to, the power and duty to:
4423| awarded under this chapter in a state fiscal year. A private 4452 (aa) Adopt rules relating to the purchase and use of a
4424 school subject to this subsection must annually submit the 4453| prepaid college plan authorized under s. 1009.98 or a college
4425| report by September 15 to the scholarship-funding organization 4454 savings plan authorized under s. 1009.981 for the McKay-Gardiner
4426| that awarded the majority of the school’s scholarship funds. 4455| Gardiner Scholarship Program pursuant to s. 1002.381 or the
4427 However, for the 2020-2021 school year only, a school that 4456 Family Empowerment Scholarship Program pursuant to s. 1002.394
4428| receives more than $250,000 in scholarship funds only through 4457| s5+—3+662-385, which may include, but need not be limited to:
4429| the John M. McKay Scholarship for Students with Disabilities 4458 1. The use of such funds for postsecondary education
4430 Program pursuant to s. 1002.39 must submit the annual report by 4459| programs for students with disabilities;
4431 September 15 to the department. The agreed-upon procedures must 4460 2. Effective procedures that allow program funds to be used
4432| be conducted in accordance with attestation standards 4461 in conjunction with other funds used by a parent in the purchase
4433| established by the American Institute of Certified Public 4462| of a prepaid college plan or a college savings plan;
4434| Accountants. 4463 3. The tracking and accounting of program funds separately
4435 4464 from other funds contributed to a prepaid college plan or a
4436 The department shall suspend the payment of funds to a private 4465 college savings plan;
4437 school that knowingly fails to comply with this subsection, and 4466 4. The reversion of program funds, including, but not

Page 153 of 158 Page 154 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions. CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48 Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148 36-00745D-21 202148
4467 limited to, earnings from contributions to the Florida College 4496| changed while a prepaid college plan contains funds contributed
4468| Savings Plan; 4497 under ss. 1002.381 and 1002.394 s+—3662-385.
4469 5. The use of program funds only after private payments 4498 Section 26. Subsection (10) of section 1009.981, Florida
4470| have been used for prepaid college plan or college savings plan 4499| statutes, is amended to read:
4471 expenditures; 4500 1009.981 Florida College Savings Program.—
4472 6. Contracting with each eligible nonprofit scholarship- 4501 (10) IMPLEMENTATION PROCEDURES.—
4473 funding organization to establish mechanisms to implement ss. 4502 (a) A college savings plan may be purchased, accounted for,
4474 1002.381 and 1002.394 s+—3+662-385, including, but not limited 4503 used, and terminated as provided in ss. 1002.381 and 1002.394 s=
4475 to, identifying the source of funds being deposited in the 4504| +602-385.
4476| plans; and 4505 (b) A designated beneficiary may apply the benefits of a
4477 7. The development of a written agreement that defines the 4506| participation agreement toward the program fees of a program
4478| owner and beneficiary of an account and outlines 4507| designed for students with disabilities conducted by a state
4479 responsibilities for the use of the advance payment contract 4508| postsecondary institution. A designated beneficiary may not be
4480 funds or savings program funds. 4509 changed while a college savings plan contains funds contributed
4481 Section 25. Subsection (11) of section 1009.98, Florida 4510 under ss. 1002.381 and 1002.394 s-—3662-385.
4482 Statutes, 1is amended to read: 4511 Section 27. Subsection (4) of section 1011.61, Florida
4483 1009.98 Stanley G. Tate Florida Prepaid College Program.— 4512 Statutes, is amended to read:
4484 (11) IMPLEMENTATION PROCEDURES.— 4513 1011.61 Definitions.—Notwithstanding the provisions of s.
4485 (a) A prepaid college plan may be purchased, accounted for, 4514 1000.21, the following terms are defined as follows for the
4486| used, and terminated as provided in ss. 1002.381 and 1002.394 s—= 4515| purposes of the Florida Education Finance Program:
4487 1662-385. 4516 (4) The maximum value for funding a student in kindergarten
4488 (b) A qualified beneficiary may apply the benefits of an 4517| through grade 12 or in a prekindergarten program for exceptional
4489 advance payment contract toward the program fees of a program 4518 children as provided in s. 1003.21(1) (e) shall be the sum of the
4490 designed for students with disabilities conducted by a state 4519 calculations in paragraphs (a), (b), and (c) as calculated by
4491| postsecondary institution. A transfer authorized under this 4520| the department.
4492 subsection may not exceed the redemption value of the advance 4521 (a) The sum of the student’s full-time equivalent student
4493| payment contract at a state postsecondary institution or the 4522| membership value for the school year or the equivalent derived
4494 number of semester credit hours contracted on behalf of a 4523 from paragraphs (1) (a) and (b), subparagraph (1) (c)l., sub-
4495| qualified beneficiary. A qualified beneficiary may not be 4524 subparagraphs (1) (c)2.b. and c., subparagraph—H+e)r3— and

Page 155 of 158 Page 156 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions. CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48 Florida Senate - 2021 SB 48

36-00745D-21 202148 36-00745D-21 202148
4525 subsection (2). If the sum is greater than 1.0, the full-time 4554 their recruitment and retention of classroom teachers and other
4526| equivalent student membership value for each program or course 4555| instructional personnel. The amount of the allocation shall be
4527 shall be reduced by an equal proportion so that the student’s 4556| specified in the General Appropriations Act.
4528| total full-time equivalent student membership value is equal to 4557 £ Neotwithstanding any other provisioneof taw,—funds
4529 1.0. 4558 | alteecatedunder—thi b tien—shalt naeot e inetuded—in—th
4530 (b) If the result in paragraph (a) is less than 1.0 full- 4559 ateuvlated amountfor any holarshipawardedunder—chapter
4531| time equivalent student and the student has full-time equivalent 4560| 31002+
4532 student enrollment pursuant to sub-sub-subparagraph 4561 Section 29. This act shall take effect July 1, 2021.

4533 (1) (¢c)1l.b.(VIII), calculate an amount that is the lesser of the
4534 value in sub-sub-subparagraph (1) (c)l.b.(VIII) or the value of
4535 1.0 less the value in paragraph (a).

4536 (c) The full-time equivalent student enrollment value in

4537 sub-subparagraph (1) (c)2.a.

4538

4539| A rotarshipawardprovided—to o student—enrolled—in—theJohn
4540 M—MeKaySehetarships—for Student +eh—Pisabidtits Program
4541| pursvant—= —1002-39—isneot—subject—to—the maximum—vatue—for
4542 funding—astudent—under—this subseetion~

4543 Section 28. Paragraph (f) of subsection (18) of section
4544 1011.62, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

4545 1011.62 Funds for operation of schools.—If the annual

4546 allocation from the Florida Education Finance Program to each
4547| district for operation of schools is not determined in the

4548| annual appropriations act or the substantive bill implementing
4549| the annual appropriations act, it shall be determined as

4550 follows:

4551 (18) TEACHER SALARY INCREASE ALLOCATION.—The Legislature
4552| may annually provide in the Florida Education Finance Program a

4553| teacher salary increase allocation to assist school districts in

Page 157 of 158 Page 158 of 158
CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions. CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




The Florida Senate

BILL ANALYSIS AND FISCAL IMPACT STATEMENT

(This document is based on the provisions contained in the legislation as of the latest date listed below.)

Prepared By: The Professional Staff of the Committee on Education

BILL:

SB 146

INTRODUCER: Senator Brandes

SUBJECT: Civic Education
DATE: February 2, 2021 REVISED:
ANALYST STAFF DIRECTOR REFERENCE ACTION
1. Westmark Bouck ED Pre-meeting
2. AP
Summary:

SB 146 authorizes the development and integration of a nonpartisan civic literacy practicum and
the designation of a public school providing high-quality civic learning as a Freedom School.
Specifically, the bill requires:

e The Commissioner of Education to develop minimum criteria for a nonpartisan civic literacy
practicum that may be incorporated into a school’s curriculum for the high school United
States Government course, along with a process for district school boards to verify student
completion of the practicum.

e School districts to include and accept nonpartisan civic literacy practicum activities and
hours in requirements for academic awards.

e The State Board of Education to annually designate each public school in the state which
provides students with high-quality civic learning as a Freedom School, based on specified
criteria.

The bill has no impact on state revenues or expenditures.

The bill takes effect July 1, 2021.

Present Situation:

Civic Literacy in Florida

Florida law establishes civic literacy as a priority of the Florida K-20 education system and

defines civic literacy to mean that students are prepared to become civically engaged and
knowledgeable adults who make positive contributions to their communities.t

! Section 1000.03(5)(c), F.S.



BILL: SB 146 Page 2

Next Generation Sunshine State Standards

Florida law requires the adoption of standards for core curricula content taught in public schools
and specifies the requirements students must meet to earn a standard high school diploma.? The
Next Generation Sunshine State Standards (NGSSS) establish the core content to be taught in
Florida and specify the core knowledge and skills K-12 public school students are expected to
acquire. The curricular content must integrate critical-thinking, problem-solving, and workforce-
literacy skills; communication, reading, and writing skills; collaboration skills; information and
media-literacy skills; and civic-engagement skills, among others.?

The State Board of Education (SBE) is responsible for adopting the NGSSS and subsequent
revisions to standards in rule.* NGSSS for social studies include at a minimum curricular content
for geography, United States and world history, government, civics, humanities, economics, and
financial literacy.®

Civic Standards Review

In 2019,° the Legislature required the Commissioner of Education to conduct a comprehensive
review of Florida’s civics education course standards. The SBE is expected to complete adoption
of necessary revisions to these standards by summer 2021, and approval of new civics education
course descriptions is anticipated by fall 2021.7

High School Diploma Requirements

Students have several options to earn a standard high school diploma.® In order to graduate from
a Florida high school with a standard high school diploma under a 24-credit or 18-credit option
or the Career and Technical Education pathway, a student must complete three credits in social
studies comprised of one credit in United States History, one credit in World History, one-half
credit in economics, and one-half credit in United States Government.®

Demonstration of Civic Literacy

Students in Florida public schools and those entering Florida College System (FCS) institutions
or state universities must demonstrate competency in civic literacy.'® Students must successfully
complete a one-semester civics education course in grades 6, 7, and 8, which includes the roles
and responsibilities of federal, state, and local governments; the structures and functions of the

2 Sections 1003.41 and 1003.4282(3), F.S.

3 Section 1003.41(1), F.S.

4 Section 1003.41(3)-(4), F.S.

5 Section 1003.41(2)(d), F.S.

® Section 1, ch. 2019-150, L.O.F.

" Florida Department of Education, Civics Review, http://www.fldoe.org/civicsreview/ (last visited Jan. 25, 2021).

8 A student may complete a 24-credit program under s. 1003.4282(3), F.S., an 18-credit Academically Challenging
Curriculum to Enhance Learning (ACCEL) option under s. 1002.3105, F.S., the Career and Technical Education (CTE)
Pathway under 1002.4282(11), F.S., an International Baccalaureate (IB) curriculum or Advanced International Certificate of
Education (AICE) curriculum, pursuant to s. 1003.4282(1)(a), F.S., or an option for students with a disability under s.
1003.4282(10), F.S.

% See ss. 1003.4282(3)(d), 1002.3105(5), and 1003.4282(11)(a)1., F.S.

10 Florida Department of Education, Civic Literacy, http://www.fldoe.org/civicliteracy/ (last visited Jan. 28, 2021).




BILL: SB 146 Page 3

legislative, executive, and judicial branches of government; and the meaning and significance of
historic documents, such as the Articles of Confederation, the Declaration of Independence, and
the Constitution of the United States. Moreover, each student’s performance on the statewide,
standardized end-of-course assessment in civics education constitutes 30 percent of the student’s
final course grade.™*

Students initially entering a FCS institution or state university must demonstrate civic literacy

competencies and outcomes, including:*2

e Understanding of the basic principles of American democracy and how they are applied in
our republican form of government.

e Understanding of the United States Constitution.

e Knowledge of the founding documents and how they have shaped the nature and functions of
our institutions of self-governance.

e Understanding of landmark Supreme Court cases and their impact on law and society.

Service Learning

Service learning refers to a student-centered, research-based teaching and learning strategy that
engages students in meaningful service activities in their schools or communities. Service
learning activities are directly tied to academic curricula, standards, and course, district, or state
assessments. The Department of Education is required by law to encourage school districts to
initiate, adopt, expand, and institutionalize service-learning programs, activities, and policies in
kindergarten through grade 12.

Florida Bright Futures Scholarship Program

The Florida Bright Futures Scholarship Program (program)** is comprised of four awards, the
Florida Academic Scholarship (FAS), the Florida Medallion Scholarship (FMS), the Florida
Gold Seal CAPE Scholarship (CAPE), and the Florida Gold Seal VVocational Scholarship (Gold
Seal).t®

In order to be eligible for an initial program award, a student must meet residency, academic, and
service work requirements specified by each award. Criteria specific to each scholarship program
include completing, as approved by the district school board, administrators of a nonpublic
school, or Department of Education for home education students:

e For the FAS, a minimum of 100 hours of volunteer service work.®

e For the FMS, a minimum of 75 hours of volunteer service work.!’

11 Florida Department of Education, Civic Literacy, http://www.fldoe.org/civicliteracy/ (last visited Jan. 28, 2021). See also s.
1003.4156(1)(c), F.S.

12 1d. See also s. 1007.25(4), F.S. Students must demonstrate competency by successful completion of a specified civic
literacy course or by achieving a passing score on an assessment. Id.

131d. Section 1003.497(1), F.S.

14 Section 442, ch. 2002-387, L.O.F. See also ss. 1009.53-1009.538, F.S.

15 Section 1009.53(2), F.S.

16 Section 1009.534(1)(e), F.S.

17 Section 1009.535(1)(e), F.S.




BILL: SB 146 Page 4

e For the CAPE and Gold Seal, at least 30 hours of volunteer service work.8

The program of volunteer service work includes identifying a social or civic issue or a
professional area that interests the student, developing a plan for his or her personal involvement
in addressing the issue or learning about the area, and, through papers or other presentations,
evaluating and reflecting on his or her experience.'® Service work may include, but is not limited
to, a business or governmental internship, work for a nonprofit community service organization,
or activities on behalf of a candidate for public office. The hours of volunteer service must be
documented in writing, and the document must be signed by the student, the student’s parent or
guardian, and a representative of the organization for which the student performed the volunteer
service work.?

Il. Effect of Proposed Changes:

SB 146 authorizes the development and integration of a nonpartisan civic literacy practicum and
the designation of a public school providing high-quality civic learning as a Freedom School.
Specifically, the bill requires:

e The Commissioner of Education (commissioner) to develop minimum criteria for a
nonpartisan civic literacy practicum that may be incorporated into a school’s curriculum for
the high school United States Government course, along with a process for district school
boards to verify student completion of the practicum.

e School districts to include and accept nonpartisan civic literacy practicum activities and
hours in requirements for academic awards.

e The State Board of Education (SBE) to annually designate each public school in the state
which provides students with high-quality civic learning, based on specified criteria, as a
Freedom School.

The bill requires the commissioner to develop minimum criteria for a nonpartisan civic literacy

practicum that may be incorporated into a school’s curriculum for the high school United States

Government course required for high school graduation, beginning with the 2022-2023 school

year. The bill also requires the commissioner to develop a process by which a district school

board can verify that a student successfully completed a practicum meeting the required criteria.

The criteria developed by the commissioner must require a student to:

e Identify a civic issue that impacts his or her community;

e Rigorously research the issue from multiple perspectives and develop a plan for his or her
personal involvement in addressing the issue; and

e Create a portfolio to evaluate and reflect upon his or her experience and the outcomes or
likely outcomes of his or her involvement. A portfolio must, at a minimum, include research,
evidence, and a written plan of involvement.

18 Section 1009.536(1)(e) and (2)(b), F.S.

19 Except for credit earned through service-learning courses adopted pursuant to s. 1003.497, F.S., the student may not
receive remuneration or academic credit for the volunteer service work performed. Sections 1009.534(1)(e), 1009.535(1)(e),
and 1009.536(1)(e) and (2)(b), F.S.

20 Sections 1009.534(1)(e), 1009.535(1)(e), and 1009.536(1)(e) and (2)(b), F.S.



BILL: SB 146 Page 5

The bill specifies that the civic literacy practicum must be nonpartisan, focus on addressing at
least one community issue, and promote a student’s ability to consider differing points of view
and engage in civil discourse with individuals who hold an opposing opinion.

School districts are required to include and accept nonpartisan civic literacy practicum activities
and hours in requirements for academic awards, especially those awards that currently include
community service as a criterion or selection factor. The bill authorizes school districts to count
the hours outside of classroom instruction a student devotes to the nonpartisan civic literacy
practicum to implement his or her plan of involvement toward meeting the community service
requirements of the Florida Bright Futures Scholarship Program.

The bill requires the SBE to designate on an annual basis each public school in the state which

provides students with high-quality civic learning, including civic-engagement skills, as a

Freedom School. The SBE must establish the criteria®* for a school’s designation as a Freedom

School, which must include:

e The extent to which strategies to develop high-quality civic learning, including civic-
engagement skills, are integrated into the classroom using best instructional practices.

e The scope of integration of high-quality civic learning, including civic-engagement skills,
across the school’s curricula.

e The extent to which the school supports interdisciplinary, teacher-led professional learning
communities to support continuous improvement in instruction and student achievement.

e The minimum percentage of students graduating with a standard high school diploma who
must successfully complete a civic literacy practicum and earn community service hours.

The creation of a civic literacy practicum may promote civic literacy in Florida and create an
additional pathway for students to fulfill the community service requirements of state and local
academic awards.

The bill takes effect July 1, 2021.

Constitutional Issues:

A. Municipality/County Mandates Restrictions:

None.

B. Public Records/Open Meetings Issues:
None.

C. Trust Funds Restrictions:
None.

2L According to the Florida Department of Education, the State Board of Education should be granted explicit rulemaking

authority to develop criteria and processes required in the bill. Florida Department of Education, 2021 Legislative Bill
Analysis for SB 146 (Jan. 28, 2021).



BILL: SB 146 Page 6

D. State Tax or Fee Increases:
None.

E. Other Constitutional Issues:
None.

V. Fiscal Impact Statement:

A. Tax/Fee Issues:
None.

B. Private Sector Impact:
None.

C. Government Sector Impact:

The bill has no impact on state revenues or expenditures. There may be costs for a school
district to incorporate a nonpartisan civic literacy practicum into a school’s curriculum
for the high school United States Government course. However, the nonpartisan civic
literacy practicum is not required and a school district will only experience these costs if
the district chooses to incorporate the practicum into its curriculum for the course.

The Department of Education estimates that compliance with the requirements of the bill
relating to the civic literacy practicum and criteria for a school designation would require
two additional staff at a cost of $152,939.%

VI. Technical Deficiencies:
None.
VII. Related Issues:
None.
VIII. Statutes Affected:

This bill creates section 1003.44 of the Florida Statutes.
IX. Additional Information:

A. Committee Substitute — Statement of Changes:
(Summarizing differences between the Committee Substitute and the prior version of the bill.)

None.

22 Florida Department of Education, 2021 Legislative Bill Analysis for SB 146 (Jan. 28, 2021).



BILL: SB 146 Page 7

B. Amendments:

None.

This Senate Bill Analysis does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill’s introducer or the Florida Senate.




0o J o U Ww N

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 146

By Senator Brandes

24-00351-21 2021146

A bill to be entitled
An act relating to civic education; amending s.
1003.44, F.S.; requiring the Commissioner of Education
to develop minimum criteria for a nonpartisan civic
literacy practicum for high school students, beginning
with a specified school year; requiring the
commissioner to develop a certain process for use by
district school boards; specifying criteria for the
civic literacy practicum; authorizing students to
apply the hours they devote to practicum activities to
certain community service requirements; requiring
school districts accept nonpartisan civic literacy
practicum activities and hours in requirements for
certain awards; requiring the State Board of Education
to designate certain high schools as Freedom Schools;
requiring the state board to establish criteria for

such designation; providing an effective date.

Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:

Section 1. Present subsection (5) of section 1003.44,
Florida Statutes, is redesignated as subsection (6), and a new
subsection (5) is added to that section, to read:

1003.44 Patriotic programs; rules.—

(5) (a) In order to help students evaluate the roles,

rights, and responsibilities of United States citizens and

determine methods of active participation in society,

government, and the political system, the commissioner shall

develop minimum criteria for a nonpartisan civic literacy

Page 1 of 3

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 146

24-00351-21 2021146

practicum that may be incorporated into a school’s curriculum

for the high school United States Government course required by
s. 1003.4282(3) (d), beginning with the 2022-2023 school year.

The commissioner also shall develop a process by which a

district school board can verify that a student successfully

completed a practicum meeting those criteria.

1. The criteria must require a student to do all of the

following:

a. Identify a civic issue that impacts his or her

community.

b. Rigorously research the issue from multiple perspectives

and develop a plan for his or her personal involvement in

addressing the issue.

c. Create a portfolio to evaluate and reflect upon his or

her experience and the outcomes or likely outcomes of his or her

involvement. A portfolio must, at minimum, include research,

evidence, and a written plan of involvement.

2. A civic literacy practicum must be nonpartisan, focus on

addressing at least one community issue, and promote a student’s

ability to consider differing points of view and engage in civil

discourse with individuals who hold an opposing opinion.

(b) The hours outside of classroom instruction which a

student devotes to the nonpartisan civic literacy practicum to

implement his or her plan of involvement may be counted toward

meeting the community service requirements of the Florida Bright

Futures Scholarship Program. School districts must include and

accept nonpartisan civic literacy practicum activities and hours

in requirements for academic awards, especially those awards

that include community service as a criterion or selection

Page 2 of 3

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 146

24-00351-21 2021146
factor.

(c) The State Board of Education shall annually designate

each public school in this state which provides students with

high-quality civic learning, including civic-engagement skills,

as a Freedom School. The state board shall establish the

criteria for a school’s designation as a Freedom School. The

criteria must include all of the following:

1. The extent to which strategies to develop high-quality

civic learning, including civic-engagement skills, are

integrated into the classroom using best instructional

practices.

2. The scope of integration of high-quality civic learning,

including civic-engagement skills, across the school’s

curricula.

3. The extent to which the school supports

interdisciplinary, teacher-led professional learning communities

to support continuous improvement in instruction and student

achievement.

4. The minimum percentage of students graduating with a

standard high school diploma who must successfully complete a

civic literacy practicum and earn community service hours as

provided in this subsection.
Section 2. This act shall take effect July 1, 2021.

Page 3 of 3

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




The Florida Senate

BILL ANALYSIS AND FISCAL IMPACT STATEMENT

(This document is based on the provisions contained in the legislation as of the latest date listed below.)

Prepared By: The Professional Staff of the Committee on Education

BILL: SB 282

INTRODUCER:  Senators Baxley and Albritton

SUBJECT: Moments of Silence in Public Schools
DATE: February 2, 2021 REVISED:
ANALYST STAFF DIRECTOR REFERENCE ACTION
1. Brick Bouck ED Pre-meeting
2. JU
3. RC
Summary:

SB 282 requires a moment of silence to be set aside for students during each school day. The bill
directs the principal of each public school to require teachers in first-period classrooms in all
grades to set aside one to two minutes daily for a moment of silence, during which students may
not interfere with other students’ participation.

The bill has no impact on state revenues or expenditures.
The bill takes effect July 1, 2021.

Il. Present Situation:

District school boards may set aside up to two minutes for silent prayer or meditation at the start
of each school day or each school week in the public schools in the district.*

Fourteen states require a moment of silence or a period for contemplation or prayer during each
school day.? An additional eighteen states authorize the school district, school, or classroom to
observe a period of silence or prayer during each school day.®

1 Section 1003.45, F.S., added in s. 1, ch. 80-336, L.O.F.

2 Ala. Code s. 16-1-20; Ark. Code Ann. s. 6-10-115; Conn. Gen. Stat. s. 10-16a; Ga. Code Ann. s. 20-2-150; 105 Ill. Comp.
Stat. 20/1; Ind. Code s 20-30-5-4.5; Mass. Gen. Laws Ann. ch. 71, s. 1A; Nev. Rev. Stat. Ann. s. 388.075; N.H. Rev. Stat. s.
189:1-b; R.I. Gen. Laws s. 16-12-3.1; S.C. Code Ann. s. 59-1-443; Tenn. Code Ann. s. 49-6-1004; Tex. Code Ann. s.
25.082(d); Va. Code Ann. s. 22.1-203.

3 Ariz. Rev. Stat. Ann. s. 15-342(21); Del. Code Ann. tit. 14, s. 4101A; Section 1003.45, F.S.; Kan. Stat. Ann. s. 72-9929;
Ky. Rev. Stat. Ann. s. 158.175; La. Rev. Stat. Ann. s. 17:2115; Me. Rev. Stat. Ann. tit. 20-a., s. 4805; Md. Code, Educ. s. 7-
104; Mich. Comp. Laws Ann. s. 380.1565; Minn. Stat. Ann. s. 121A.10; Mont. Code Ann. s. 20-7-112; N.M. Stat. Ann. s.
22-27-3; N.Y. law s. 3029-a; N.C. Gen. Stat. s. 115C-47(29); N.D. Cent. Code s. 15.1-19-03.1; Ohio Rev. Code s. 3313.601;
24 Pa. Const. Stat. s. 15-1516.1; Utah Code Ann. s. 53G-7-207.



BILL: SB 282 Page 2

I, Effect of Proposed Changes:

SB 282 amends s. 1003.45, F.S., to require a moment of silence be set aside for students during
each school day and state legislative findings for the value of a moment of daily reflection.

The bill directs the principal of each public school to require teachers in first-period classrooms
in all grades to set aside one to two minutes daily* for a moment of silence, during which
students may not interfere with other students’ participation.

The bill provides that a teacher:

e May not make suggestions as to the nature of any reflection that a student may engage in
during the moment of silence.

e Must encourage parents to discuss the moment of silence with their children and to make
suggestions as to the best use of this time.

The bill takes effect July 1, 2021.
V. Constitutional Issues:
A. Municipality/County Mandates Restrictions:
None.
B. Public Records/Open Meetings Issues:
None.
C. Trust Funds Restrictions:
None.
D. State Tax or Fee Increases:
None.
E. Other Constitutional Issues:
None.
V. Fiscal Impact Statement:
A. Tax/Fee Issues:

None.

# One to two minutes daily accumulates to three to six hours of instructional time over the course of the school year. Florida
Department of Education, Agency Legislative Bill Analysis for SB 282 (2021), at 3-4.



BILL: SB 282 Page 3

B. Private Sector Impact:
None.
C. Government Sector Impact:
None.
VI.  Technical Deficiencies:
None.
VII. Related Issues:
None.
VIII. Statutes Affected:
This bill substantially amends section 1003.45 of the Florida Statutes.

IX. Additional Information:

A. Committee Substitute — Statement of Changes:
(Summarizing differences between the Committee Substitute and the prior version of the bill.)
None.

B. Amendments:
None.

This Senate Bill Analysis does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill’s introducer or the Florida Senate.




0o J o U Ww N

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29

Florida Senate - 2021

By Senator Baxley

12-00083-21
A bill to be
An act relating to moments of

schools; amending s. 1003.45,

SB 282

2021282
entitled
silence in public

F.S.; providing

legislative findings; requiring that public school

principals require certain teachers to set aside time

for a moment of silence at the beginning of each

school day; specifying the duration of the required

moment of silence; prohibiting teachers from making

suggestions as to the nature of any reflection that a

student may engage in during the moment of silence;

deleting a provision authorizing district school

boards to provide a brief period of silent prayer or

meditation; requiring certain

teachers to encourage

parents or guardians to discuss the moment of silence

with their children and to make suggestions as to the

best use of this time; providing an effective date.

Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:

Section 1. Section 1003.45, Florida Statutes, is amended to

read:

1003.45 Permitting study of the Bible and religion;
requiring a moment of silence permitting brief meditation

peried.—

(1) The district school board may install in the public

schools in the district a secular program of education

including, but not limited to, an objective study of the Bible

and of religion.

(2) The Legislature finds that in today’s hectic society

Page 1 of 2

CODING: Words strieken are deletions;

words underlined are additions.

30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51

CODING: Words strieken are deletions;

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 282

12-00083-21 2021282

too few persons are able to experience even a moment of quiet

reflection before plunging headlong into the activities of daily

life. Young persons are particularly affected by the absence of

an opportunity for a moment of quiet reflection. The Legislature

finds that our youth, and society as a whole, would be well

served if students in the public schools were afforded a moment

of silence at the beginning of each school day.

(3) The principal of each public school shall require

teachers in first-period classrooms in all grades to set aside
at least 1 minute, but distrietschool board may provide—that o
briefperiod; not more than te—exeeed 2 minutes, dailys for a
moment the—purpese of silence, during which students may not

interfere with other students’ participation. A teacher may not

make suggestions as to the nature of any reflection that a
student may engage in during the moment of silence sitent—prayer

ditats B + d £ ) + + £ h K 1 4
r—meartatIon—=5 t—asrae—at—tn tar E= SEH EEISASESaS & x
N h bl 3 £ 13 N h| ; £h distriat
SEFT OO+ K—h—ERe—PuoTt peaS S ES Hh—ERe—a3SErT .

(4) Each first-period classroom teacher shall encourage

parents or guardians to discuss the moment of silence with their

children and to make suggestions as to the best use of this

time.

Section 2. This act shall take effect July 1, 2021.

Page 2 of 2

words underlined are additions.




The Florida Senate

BILL ANALYSIS AND FISCAL IMPACT STATEMENT

(This document is based on the provisions contained in the legislation as of the latest date listed below.)

Prepared By: The Professional Staff of the Committee on Education

BILL: SB 200

INTRODUCER: Senator Berman

SUBJECT: Student Retention
DATE: February 2, 2021 REVISED:
ANALYST STAFF DIRECTOR REFERENCE ACTION
1. Jahnke Bouck ED Pre-meeting
2. AED
3. AP
Summary:

SB 200 authorizes a parent to request that his or her K-12 public school student be retained, for
the 2021-2022 school year, in the grade level to which the student was assigned at the beginning
of the 2020-21 school year. Specifically the bill requires:

e Parents to submit a retention request in writing to the school district superintendent by
June 1, 2021.

e The superintendent to grant the retention request if timely filed, but authorizes the
superintendent to grant a late request.

e School districts to administer a midyear assessment to a student retained under this act to
evaluate the student’s progress. The student must also participate in the statewide
standardized assessments and other assessments required by law.

e That a retained student may qualify for whole-grade or midyear promotion, or subject matter
acceleration.

e School districts to report to the Department of Education the number of retained students
under this act.

The bill has no impact on state revenues or expenditures.

The bill takes effect upon becoming a law.



BILL: SB 200 Page 2

Il. Present Situation:
Student Progression

Each district school board must establish a plan for student progression from one grade to
another based on the student’s mastery of the Next Generation Sunshine State Standards.! The
plan must, among other things: 2

e Emphasize student reading proficiency in grades K-3 and provide targeted instructional
support for students with identified deficiencies.

e Use results of statewide, standardized assessments and end-of-course assessments to advise
high school students of any identified deficiencies and to provide appropriate preparatory
instruction.

e Provide for timely information to a student’s teacher and parent evaluation results of progress
monitoring in grades K-12.

e Provide requirements and notification procedures regarding student participation in whole-
grade promotion, midyear promotion, or subject-matter acceleration.

Statewide Standardized Assessments

The primary purpose of the student assessment program is to provide student academic

achievement and learning gains data to students, parents, and schools. The program is designed

to, in part:3

e Assess the achievement level and annual learning gains of each student in English Language
Arts and mathematics and the achievement level in all other subjects assessed.

e |dentify the educational strengths and needs of students and the readiness of students to be
promoted to the next grade level or to graduate from high school.

Each student must participate in the statewide, standardized assessment program in grades 3
through 10.# Students who do not achieve a Level 3 or above on the statewide, standardized
English Language Arts (ELA) assessment, the statewide, standardized Mathematics assessment,
or the Algebra I EOC assessment must be evaluated to determine the nature of the student’s
difficulty, the areas of academic need, and strategies for providing academic supports to improve
the student’s performance.®

Any student in kindergarten through grade 3 who exhibits a substantial deficiency® in reading
must be provided interventions immediately following the identification of the reading
deficiency.’

! Sections 1003.41 and 1008.25, F.S. The plan must focus specifically on ELA, math, science, and social studies standards.

2 Section 1008.25(2), F.S.

3 Section 1008.22(1), F.S.

4 Sections 1008.22, F.S and 1008.25(4)(a), F.S.

> Section 1008.25(4)(a), F.S.

& Determination of a substantial deficiency is based upon screening, diagnostic, progress monitoring, or assessment data;
statewide assessments; or teacher observations Section 1008.25(5)(a), F.S. School districts are required determine the criteria
used by the district to identify K-3 students with a substantial deficiency in reading. Rule 6A-10.053(9)(c)3., F.A.C.

7 Section 1008.25(5)(a), F.S.



BILL: SB 200 Page 3

Student Retention

Florida law specifies that no student may be assigned to a grade level based solely on age or
other factors that constitute social promotion.®

To be promoted to grade 4, a student must score a Level 2 or higher on the statewide,
standardized ELA assessment required for grade 3.° The student must be retained if the student’s
reading deficiency is not remedied by the end of grade 3, by scoring a Level 2 or higher on the
statewide, standardized assessment required for grade 3.1°

The district school board may only exempt students from mandatory retention in grade 3 for
good cause. A student who is promoted to grade 4 with a good cause exemption must be
provided intensive reading instruction and intervention. Good cause exemptions are limited to
students in grade 3 and relate to limited English proficiency students, students with disabilities,
the use of alternative assessments or portfolios, and students previously retained in grades K-3.!

In the 2018-2019 school year, 28,436 students were promoted to grade 4 based on a good cause
exemption.'2

Based on data from the Florida Department of Education,® there was an overall 43 percent
reduction in statewide K-12 student retention rates for the 2019-20 school year compared to the
previous 5-year average. Students in grade 3 had the most significant reduction in retention rates,
with a 77 percent reduction in grade 3 student retentions in 2019-20 compared to the previous 5-
year average.

8 Section 1008.25(6)(a), F.S.

9 Section 1008.25(5)(b), F.S.

104,

11 Section 1008.25(6)(b), F.S.

12 pursuant to Florida Department of Education Emergency Order No. 2020-EO-01, spring K-12 statewide assessment test
administrations for the 2019-20 school year were canceled. Florida Department of Education, Emergency Order No. 2020-
EO-01, March 23, 2020 available at http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/19861/urlt/DOEORDERNO2020-EO-01.pdf.
Therefore, 3rd grade good cause exemption data are not available for the 2019-20 school year. Florida Department of
Education, 3rd Grade Promotions: Good Cause Exemption 2018-19 available at http://www.fldoe.org/accountability/data-
sys/edu-info-accountability-services/pk-12-public-school-data-pubs-reports/students.stml, and Florida Department of
Education, 3rd Grade Promotions: Good Cause Exemption 2014-15 to 2017-18 available at
http://www.fldoe.org/accountability/data-sys/edu-info-accountability-services/pk-12-public-school-data-pubs-
reports/archive.stml (last visited Jan. 27, 2021).

13 Senate staff analysis of Florida Department of Education, Retention Rates by District 2019-20 available at
http://www.fldoe.org/accountability/data-sys/edu-info-accountability-services/pk-12-public-school-data-pubs-
reports/students.stml, and Florida Department of Education, Retention Rates by District 2014-15 to 2018-19 available at
http://www.fldoe.org/accountability/data-sys/edu-info-accountability-services/pk-12-public-school-data-pubs-
reports/archive.stml (last visited Jan. 27, 2021).




BILL: SB 200 Page 4
Total Percent Percent
Retained Retained Reduction in
5-year 5-year Total Percent Retained
Average Average Retained | Retained | Students 2014-19
Grade | 2014-15to 2018-19 | 2014-15 to 2018-19 | 2019-20 2019-20 to 2019-20
K 6,894 3.40% 4,710 2.33% 32%
1 7,647 3.63% 4,830 2.34% 37%
2 4,941 2.31% 2,862 1.38% 42%
3 16,841 7.55% 3,805 1.74% 77%
4 2,289 1.06% 669 0.32% 71%
5 1,464 0.68% 521 0.24% 64%
6 2,621 1.25% 1,719 0.77% 34%
7 3,525 1.70% 2,370 1.09% 33%
8 5,445 2.61% 4,260 1.94% 22%
9 7,714 3.60% 4,670 2.14% 39%
10 8,776 4.21% 6,115 2.89% 30%
11 7,852 4.06% 4,651 2.36% 41%
12 11,351 5.83% 8,270 4.08% 27%
Total 87,360 3.21% 49,452 1.80% 43%

COVID-19 Public Health Emergency

In response to the COVID-19 emergency, the Florida Department of Education (DOE) issued an
Executive Order (EO),* which cancelled remaining K-12 state assessments for the 2019-2020
school year.*® The EO also authorized school districts and other educational entities to evaluate
students for promotion, graduation, and final course grades for the 2019-2020 school year as

though those assessments which were cancelled did not exist.®

Resulting guidance!’ relating to the cancellation of state assessments specified that, because the
Grade 3 ELA FSA was a key component districts used to make promotion decisions, and such
data would not be available due to the cancellation of statewide assessments for the 2019-2020
school year, promotion decisions should be made in consultation with parents, teachers, and
school leaders based on the students’ classroom performance and progress monitoring data.

Additionally, state-level guidance®® suggested that promotion decisions should be made in
consultation with parents, teachers, and school leaders based on the students’ classroom
performance and progress monitoring data. Therefore, the guidance specified that parents should
have the ability to request retention of their child in the current grade for the 2020-2021 year.

14 Florida Department of Education, Emergency Order No. 2020-EOQ-01, March 23, 2020 available at

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/19861/urlt/ DOEORDERNO2020-EO-01.pdf.

15 1d., Section 4. Assessment, Accountability and Promotion, March 23, 2020 available at

http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/19861/urlt/ DOEORDERNO2020-EO-01.pdf.

16 Florida Department of Education, Coronavirus (COVID-19), K-12 Public, Private & Charter Schools, Assessments,
Accountability and Promotion http://www.fldoe.org/em-response/schools.stml (last visited Jan. 27, 2021).

7 http://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/19861/urlt/FDOE-COVID-QALpdf at p. 2.

18 1d.



BILL: SB 200 Page 5

Effect of Proposed Changes:

SB 200 authorizes a parent to request that his or her K-12 public school student be retained, for
the 2021-2022 school year, in the grade level to which the student was assigned at the beginning
of the 2020-21 school year.” Specifically the bill requires:

e Parents to submit a retention request in writing to the school district superintendent June 1,
2021.

e The superintendent to grant the retention request if timely filed, but authorizes the
superintendent to grant a late request.

e School districts to administer a midyear assessment to a student retained under this act to
evaluate the student’s progress. The student must also participate in the statewide
standardized assessments and other assessments required by law.

e That a retained student may qualify for whole-grade or midyear promotion, or subject matter
acceleration.

e School districts to report to the Department of Education the number of retained students
under this act.

The bill specifies that a parent who wishes for his or her student to be retained must submit a
retention request in writing to the school district superintendent. Only retention requests received
by the superintendent on or before June 1, 2021, must be considered. The superintendent must
grant a timely filed retention request; it is at the discretion of the superintendent to grant a late
request.

The bill requires school districts to administer a midyear assessment to a student retained under
this act to evaluate the student’s progress to mastery of the Next Generation Sunshine State
Standards. The student must also participate in statewide standardized assessments and any other
assessments required by law.

The bill specifies that a retained student may qualify for whole-grade promotion, midyear
promotion, or subject-matter acceleration during the 2021-2022 school year. If the student does
qualify the parent may request the school district promote his or her student accordingly or
request his or her student be retained pursuant to the parent’s retention request. School districts
must grant all such requests.

The bill requires school districts to report to the Department of Education the number of students
retained pursuant to this act for all or part of the 2021-2022 school year.

The bill may likely provide parents with greater authority to determine that their child should be
retained in the 2021-2022 school year. However, this authority is granted only for the 2021-2022
school year, unless extended by legislative action.

The bill takes effect upon becoming a law.



BILL: SB 200

Page 6

V.

VI.

VII.

VIII.

Constitutional Issues:

A. Municipality/County Mandates Restrictions:
None.

B. Public Records/Open Meetings Issues:
None.

C. Trust Funds Restrictions:
None.

D. State Tax or Fee Increases:
None.

E. Other Constitutional Issues:
None.

Fiscal Impact Statement:

A. Tax/Fee Issues:
None.

B. Private Sector Impact:
None.

C. Government Sector Impact:
None.

Technical Deficiencies:
None.

Related Issues:

None.

Statutes Affected:

The bill creates an unnumbered section of Florida Law.



BILL: SB 200 Page 7

IX. Additional Information:

A. Committee Substitute — Statement of Changes:
(Summarizing differences between the Committee Substitute and the prior version of the bill.)
None.

B. Amendments:
None.

This Senate Bill Analysis does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill’s introducer or the Florida Senate.




=

R O W O J o O b W NN

Florida Senate - 2021 COMMITTEE AMENDMENT
Bill No. SB 200

| INRRNERY =<

Senate . House

LEGISLATIVE ACTION

The Committee on Education (Berman) recommended the following:

Senate Amendment (with title amendment)

Delete everything after the enacting clause

and insert:

Section 1. Notwithstanding s. 1008.25, Florida Statutes, a

parent may request to retain his or her K-8 public school

student in the grade level to which the student was assigned at

the beginning of the 2020-2021 school year for the 2021-2022

school year.

(1) A parent who wishes for his or her student to be

retained under this act shall submit a retention request in

Page 1 of 3
2/2/2021 7:46:08 AM 581-01595B-21




12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40

Florida Senate - 2021 COMMITTEE AMENDMENT
Bill No. SB 200

| INRRNERY =<

writing to the school district superintendent. Only requests

received by the superintendent on or before June 30, 2021, must

be considered. A school district superintendent who timely

receives such a request shall grant the request. A school

district superintendent who receives such a written request

after the deadline for receipt may grant the request upon his or

her discretion.

(2) A student retained at the request of a parent pursuant

to this act may not qualify for midyear promotion pursuant to s.

1002.3105, Florida Statutes, and shall remain in the grade in

which he or she was retained until the student qualifies for

promotion at the end of the school year.

(3) By June 30, 2022, school districts shall report to the

Department of Education the number of students retained pursuant

to this act for all or part of the 2021-2022 school year.

Section 2. This act shall take effect upon becoming a law.

================= T ] TLE A MEDNDDMENT ================
And the title is amended as follows:
Delete everything before the enacting clause
and insert:
A bill to be entitled
An act relating to student retention; authorizing a
parent to request that his or her student be retained
in a grade level for a specified school year;
requiring such request to be submitted in a specified
manner; requiring school district superintendents to
grant such requests if they are timely received;

authorizing school district superintendents to grant

Page 2 of 3
2/2/2021 7:46:08 AM 581-01595B-21




41
42
43
44
45
46
47

Florida Senate - 2021 COMMITTEE AMENDMENT
Bill No. SB 200

| INRRNERY =<

requests that are not timely received; requiring a
retained student to remain in the grade in which he or
she was retained in until the student qualifies for
promotion at the end of the school year; requiring
school districts to report certain data to the
Department of Education by a specified date; providing

an effective date.

Page 3 of 3
2/2/2021 7:46:08 AM 581-01595B-21




0o J o U Ww N

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 200

By Senator Berman

31-00413-21 2021200

A bill to be entitled
An act relating to student retention; authorizing a
parent to request that his or her student be retained
in a grade level for a specified school year;
requiring such request to be submitted in a specified
manner; requiring school district superintendents to
grant such requests if they are timely received;
authorizing school district superintendents to grant
requests that are not timely received; requiring
school districts to administer a certain assessment to
specified students; requiring such students to
participate in the assessment; clarifying that
specified students may qualify for midyear promotion;
authorizing a parent to request such promotion or to
request that his or her student continue to be
retained; requiring school districts to approve such
requests; requiring school districts to report certain
data to the Department of Education by a specified
date; providing for future repeal; providing an

effective date.

Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:

Section 1. Notwithstanding s. 1008.25, Florida Statutes, a

parent may choose to retain his or her K-12 public school

student in the grade level to which the student was assigned at

the beginning of the 2020-2021 school year for the 2021-2022

school year.

(1) A parent who wishes for his or her student to be

Page 1 of 3

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58

Florida Senate - 2021 SB 200

31-00413-21 2021200

retained under this act shall submit a retention request in

writing to the school district superintendent. Only requests

received by the superintendent on or before June 1, 2021, must

be considered. A school district superintendent who timely

receives such a request shall grant the request. A school

district superintendent who receives such a written request

after the deadline for receipt may grant the request upon his or

her discretion.

(2) School districts shall administer a midyear assessment

to a student retained pursuant to this act. Such assessment

shall evaluate the student’s progression to mastery of the

standards imposed under s. 1003.41, Florida Statutes. A student

retained pursuant to this act shall participate in such midyear

assessment, the statewide, standardized assessments administered

under s. 1008.22, Florida Statutes, and any other statewide

educational tests required by law.

(3) A student for whom a parent requests retention may

qualify for whole-grade promotion, midyear promotion, or

subject-matter acceleration pursuant to s. 1002.3105, Florida

Statutes, during the 2021-2022 school year. In such case, the

parent may request that the school district promote his or her

student accordingly or that his or her student be retained

pursuant to the parent’s retention request. School districts

shall grant all such requests.

(4) By June 1, 2022, school districts shall report to the

Department of Education the number of students retained pursuant
to this act for all or part of the 2021-2022 school year.
(5) This act shall stand repealed on June 30, 2022, unless

reviewed and saved from repeal through reenactment by the

Page 2 of 3

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.




59
60

Florida Senate - 2021

31-00413-21

Legislature.

SB 200

2021200

Section 2. This act shall take effect upon becoming a law.

CODING: Words strieken are deletions;

Page 3 of 3

words underlined are additions.




	Intro
	Bill and Amendment List Report
	Expanded Agenda (Long)

	Tab 1
	S00048
	ED Bill Analysis 2/2/2021
	876706
	453090
	854600
	904122
	837324
	380768
	782544
	00048__


	Tab 2
	S00146
	ED Bill Analysis 2/2/2021
	00146__


	Tab 3
	S00282
	ED Bill Analysis 2/2/2021
	00282__


	Tab 4
	S00200
	ED Bill Analysis 2/2/2021
	794706
	00200__





